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SENATOR JOSEPH L. BUBBA (CHAIRMAN): May we have your
attention, please? I thank you all for being on time. You

have to uhderstand, if you are not familiar With Trenton, that

this is Trenton time, and probably we start the earliest of any
committee. v | ‘ '

We are here to begin the process on a ‘vefy serious"
discussion. We are here todayvto diScuss and receive'testimony
on the issuance of bonds by the State, State authorities, State 
colleges, commissions, etc. The >Cbmmittee is seeking to
develop a systematic process for reviewing the State's debt
profiie, 'planning the capital needs of the State, and
overseéing debt issuance practices. The Legislathfe- has no
method, procedures, or requirements for reviewing the'State's
overall debt profile which allows for oversight, nor is there a
process for planning the short-term and long-term capital needs
of the State.

' ‘Today, we will exémine two proposals to revise current
law by: ‘ j

1) Strengthening the New Jersey Commission on Capital
Budgeting and Planning; and

2) Creating a new entity to review the proposed sale
and issuance of Dbonds or other obligations of State

"governmental entities and the revenue bonds of the State's

authorities, commissions, and colleges.
The Committee's first proposal deals with the New
Jersey Commission on Capital Budgeting and Planning: The

- Commission is statutorily responsible for reviewing the capital

expenditure requests of the various State agencies, preparing a

- State Capital Improvement Plan, and reviewing legislation which

affects the indebtedness of the State. We will examine whether
the COmﬁission's responsibilities should be increased so that
it must assess, on an annual basis, the State's current and
projected debt 1levels, and recommend 1limits on new bond
authorizations based on such assessments.




The Committee's: 'second proposal deals with the
issuance of bonds. We will examine whether a new entity should
be created to review the proposed issuance of State general
obligation bonds. and the revenue bonds of the _State's
'authoxities, commissions, and. colleges. The purpose of this
body would not‘be to make a judgment on whether there is .a need
_fdr a particular bdhd'issue,-but to examine if the procedures
‘connected with the proposed sale conform with existing law and
applicabie regulations in order to ensure that the issuance of
the bonds is handled in a fair,‘impartial, and équitable manner.

We intend to use and take into consideration all.

_proposed current ,Jlegislation on this subject. This meeting is
the start of a process, for this is a crucial and complex issue
area which cannot be dealt with in a quick and easY fashion.

‘The Committee 1is ,fortunate to have assembled a
distinguished group of persons to‘ speak  today. Our first
spéakers will be Mr. Bruce Coe, former Executive Director of
‘the New Jersey Commission on Capital Budgeting and Planning,

‘and Mr. William Tremayne, former Chairman of the New Jersey .

Commission on Capital Budgeting and Planning.

» We will then proceed to have three groups of
speakers. Our first group, from 10:30 a.m. to 11:15 a.m.,
includes-- By the way, we will not be unhappy with anyone who
does not take up the full allotment of their time. We want you
to say what is on your mind, but be as brief and to the‘point

as - possible. From 10:30 to 11:15 will include speakers

representing underwriters and  advisory and rating service

organizations. They are: Mr. Gerald McBride, of the Municipal-

Securities Division of the Public Securities Association; Mr.
William Cobbs, of the Public Resources Advisory 'Group; Mr.
Hymén Grossman, of Standard and Poor's Rating Grdup; and Mr.
William O'Connell, of the National Association of Securities
Dealers. '

-




- Our second group, from 11:15 a.m. to 12:00 noon, will
include speakers representing the financial community.  They
are: Mr. Robert A. Rich, of J.P. Morgan & Company; Mr. Richard
Raphael, of Fitch Investors; and Mr.  Steven Elias, of the
Municipal & Govérnment Securities Corporation of New Jersey.

Our third group, from 12:00 noon to 1:00 p.m., will
include Senators and Assemblymen who have introduced
legislation in this issue area. Those invited are: Senator
- John H. Ewing; Senator Henry P. McNamara; Senator Bradford S.
Smith; Assemblyman Richard H. Bagger; Assemblyman Rodney P.
Frelinghuysen; AsSemblyman Leonard Lance; Assemblyman Monroe
Jay Lustbader; and Assembly David C. Russo. Did I omit
anybody? (no response) | |

I will ask Senator Inverso to comment on the
proceedings. k

SENATOR INVERSO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Since your
comments covered some of whét'I had intended to say, I will be
rather brief. ‘, | , -

"1 think today's meeting is the beginning of an
~ endeavor to‘detetmine how best to ensure that the taxpayers of
New Jersey are not burdened by more debt than they can bear.
. Also, we must make sure‘that the process of funding our capital
needs is not a mechanism cleverly vused for personal or
_political gain, . but only a process which results in the lowest
possible cost of funds to the taxpayefs of our State. .

It appears that the Legislature has no systematic
means to review the State's overall debt profile, nor is there
a comprehensive process for planning the'capital needs of the
State. | | o

"Recent revelations involving the specter of political
influence and quid pro quo in the State's debt fﬁnding and
- refinancing have raised wuncertainty regarding the State's
future debt picture, and have exposed, I believe, our inability.

to effectively oversee the bonding procedures.



In reviewing what needs to be done to enhance the
integrity of the process, I focused on the .role ‘0of the New
Jersey Commission on Capital Budgeting and Planning and how it
COuld be a more involved and effecti?e player in not only
determining which capital projects to move forward, but also to
‘1look mbrev comprehensive1y at the 1long-term debt service
implications on the financial capabilities of our State. -

| This Commission -is statutorily responsible for
reviéwing the requests for capital.expenditure of the various
State agencies. When the process is completed, the Commission
prepares a State Capital Improvement Plan, which includes: a
'list of projects and the means to finance them. |
A However, we understand that the CommiSsioh. does nbt‘
scrutinize the relationship between a particdlar'bond isSue and
the entire bonded indebtedness of the State, nor does it assess
the procedures and practices used in the actual issuance of
bonds by the State. We believe this deprives the Legislature
of a clear pidture of the State's debt outlook, 1leaves
undetermined the criteria used by the executive branch, and
provides no definitive valuation criteria of the considerations
employed by them in implementing, finahcing, and refinancing.

To correct this, I propose'that the Législature amend
the responsibilities of the Commission on Capital Budgeting and
Planning to require it to specifically assess the State's
current and projected debt levels, ahd to annually recommend a
limit on new bond authorizations. That limit would be based on
a set of criteria- that would include: debt levels of
comparable states; New Jersey's capital needs; the ability of
our State to support'ptesent and future debt; State operating
- costs; and projected State revenues. ‘ ' _ |

| | In the process, I see a collaborative role for the
counsel and economic advisers and " the State's Revenue
’ Forecasting Commission. I also believe that the composition of
the Commission, the makeup of the members of the Commission,




needs to be éhanged. Increasing the Commission's role ih'this.
prbcess_ would provide the Legislature and the administration
with a resource that would help to guide them in the decisions
that we will be required to make concerning the State's present
and future debt policy. _ ‘ ' _

‘ I am pleased that the Chairman agreed to hold 'this
. hearing, and I certainly 1look forward to the inputi of the
people with experiénée and expertise in this field.

‘Thank you, Mr. Chairman. ‘

SENATOR BUBBA: . Senator Cardinale?

SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. -

The Florio administration's apparenf abuse of the bond
process for political advantage,demonstrates quite‘vividly the
. need for meaningful bond reform in New Jersey. It seems that
with each passing week I read in the newspapers about another
. bond scandal emanating frbm_the Governor's Office.

I was out campaigning on a Sunday, and I saw a
. headline in The Bergen Record about a bond scam. The following

Sunday there was another headline in The Bergen Record, a
- front-page story about still another. bond scandal. Last

Thursday there was another article, a front-page story in The
gerggn RggQ:Q,'another bond scandal. Just yesterday, there was
still another front-page story in The ggrggg Record, and still
another bond scandal involving this administration.
' It is embarrassing. It is embarrassing to have to say
. to people that we are part of this government. Something
absolutely and definitively must be done - to restore the
‘confidence that people need to have in government, so that we
can get about the business of the things that we must do in
order to have this government work.
‘ Certainly, bonding is something fhat we all know is
part of the process. But when Randy Primas can be given a bond.
‘sales commission of $100,000 without ever selling a single



bond, something is rotten. This series of bills is a
beginning, only a beginning. I think we need to go further.

Mr. Chairman, I am very pleased to see that you have
called this hearing, that we are dealing with these bills, that
we will make that beginning, and that perhaps'we can begin to
réstore some of the integrity that belongs in government.
People wére proud to be from New Jersey four years ago, and now
we need to restore that pride, because we have become a
scandal-ridden mockery. A :

I am not going to be repetitive of some of the thingsb
that you and Senator Inverso have already mentioned. I was
goihg to mention some of those, but in the interest of time I
will not make the rest of my remarks. |

SENATOR BUBBA: Thank you very much, Senator Cardinale.

Senator Schluter? | '

SENATOR SCHLUTER: Thank you. Very, very briefly,
Senator Bubba, I want to commend you'for calling this hearing.
‘This is a very important subject.

_It seems to me that there are two major themes that we -
will be addressing: One éoncerns overall debt management of
EhevState, which is very, very important, dealing with our bond
rating and so on. 'And the other is the process of underwriting
and selling bonds to be sure that that is sanitized. Yes, they
go together, but I think we are addressing them as the two main
themes of this hearing. | »

I just want to make the point that  this
administration, perhaps, can be criticized justifiably on the
processing of bond sales, but past administrations also could
‘have been. We are not really saying that one is better than
the other. 'We'want to start here, and we want to be sure that
the process from here on is good, sound, and without corruptioﬁ.

Thank you. _ '

SENATOR BUBBA:  Thank you very much.

Mr. Bruce Coe. Bruce, you have the floor.




BRUCE G. C O E: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of

the Committee.

Just by way'of background, I once wor‘ked w’ith'Ki.dder_

Peabody, an investment banking firm. I was there for 20 years,

the last 10 years as a member of the Executive Committee. I
left in 1975. In '76, I came to be the first Executive
Director of the Capital Budget and Planning Commission. The

background of that Commission is not totally dissimilar to the
" reason for your meeting today.‘ v _

Back then, Governor Byrne concluded that the voters
had lost confidence in the capital budgeting and planning
process. He created a distinguished Commission, led by then
Chairman MacNaughton of Prudential, but including Dorothy
Powers, head of the League of Women Voters, and really a
blue-ribbon superior Commission. They Concludedb that the

voters were right, in the sense that the State really didn't

have any sort of a Capital Budgeting and Planning Commission.
It was floundering; it was not well-thought-out; it needed
changes. In fact, it was Bill Tremayne, who will speak next,
who was the Executive Director of that so—called_MacNaughton
Commission back in '74 and '75. ‘ '

So in '76, a permanent Commission was created at their
recommendation. It had on it public members. It was clearly
- bipartisan. The two Republican legislative members were people
named Ray Batemen and Tom Keén, bofh of whom attended every
meeting and did an outstanding job.

I was with the Commission for two and a half years and
it was fun, because the State really hadn't ever gone about
~thinking about, "Well, how do we prioritize our capital needs?
How do we take a wish list and separate that into reality? How
"can we forecast time schedules of what can be done over the
" next three years, or the next seven years? How do we know the
operating income and expenses associated with = the capitai
expenditure,“ meaning that if we build that prison, or



whatever, what are the  operating income  and expense

1mpllcat10ns for the general State budget? | '
'Subsequent to that, about a year and a half later, I

became the‘ExecutivebDirector of the New Jersey Housing Finance

Agency. We were selling an enormous number of bonds during
that period from the middle of '79 to the end of '8l. Cliff
Goldman was the then State Treasurer. The way decisions were

made on bond counsels, or‘bond firms; or what was to be done,
were really made by us, with the concurrence of the Board of
the Housing Finance Agency. I can remember specifically-- We,
by the’way, during that two and a half year period, soldAin
excess of $1 billion worth of bonds -- that is a lot of bonds
-- a number of issues, frequently two or three per Year.

A The decisions were primarily made by me and the State
Treasurer. . I remember in '79, or '80, when we édded Salomon
Brothers as a comanager. Salomon Brothers had done some unique
. pioneering, outstanding work, in the municipaljfinance housing

field, and invented some hew approaches towards funding housing
bonds. They clearly were professionally QUalified,,and I made
the . recommendatlon to the State Treasurer, Cliff Goldman, who
felt they were quallfled, and the Board approved add1ng them to
our ' comanaging group. This was not done on the basis of
campaign contributions or things of that type. It was done
purely on the basis of professionalism.

At the moment, I serve on the bBoard of the
Transportatidanrust Fund Authority. In fact, I have been on
it since it was created, back in 1984. I can remember back

when Mike Horn was State Treasurer and the question was: Who

should  Dbe the lead managers for the issues of the
Transportation Trust Fund Authority? He appointed several of
us -- I was one -- whom he felt were qualified to make
judgments. We received proposals from seven firms and, based
on those recommendations, ahd based upon our recommendations,

us




which Mike Horn agreed with, the firm of Dillon Reed (phonetic
spelling) was selected at that time, because they had clearly
- put together the best presentatibn.

I am just mentioning these things by way of
background, because you are trying to probe for greater
involvement in the capital budgeting and planning process, with
some sort of, perhaps, limits on how many bonds can be sold. I
think that part is easy. I think that could easily be done
within the existing Capital Budgeting and Planning Commission.
In fact, we really used to do it, because it is not hard to
do. I mean, you are going to have, I think, Moody's and
Fitch's testify'heré later -- Standard & Poor's and Fitch's.
Moody's is the third firm that clearly you 'should talk to.
Every State Treasurer has to talk to these firms. Clearly,
preservation of bond quality and, in fact, the improvement of
bond quality, is critically important to the State and the
taxpayers. o . - } . ’
It was back in 1977 that ﬁew Jersey regained its AAA

- bond rating from both Moody's and Standard & Poor's. If you

have an AAA bond rating -- which we do not have today, although
we are close-- If you have that, you are going to seil bonds
at a lower interest cost than anybody else. Well, the criteria
that gd into how to measure that, how to quantify it, what
‘preserves an AAA bond rating) are teally the most critical
things you are interested in. That is clearly something that
can be accomplished. o '

The other part, which I wunderstand relates to the
selection of investment advisers, or managing underwriters, or
- bond counsels, is an area that the whole industry is in an
uproar about. In fact, I do not have this morning's Bergen
Record, Senator Cardinale, but I do have this morning's
§tar-LgQggr, and the front page is about the head of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, Arthur Levitt, Jr.,

disclosing bond firms "adopting a ban on political donations,”



both as firms and as individual members of firms.. I think that
.iS-becausé the industry has been aware that nationally, and at
1ocal) county, and State levéls, what has-‘been going on has
been going on for years and years and years. If you want to
maintain your managershipé, in many cases you are  under
enormous pressure to give campaign contributions. That_is hot:
something that is a product of the '90s or the '80s. That was
going on in the\'SOS, '60s, and '70s, when I was on Wall Street.

‘We are all familiar with the selection of bond counsel
firhs, We are,ali familiar wifh people Who leave government at
some time, join a bond firm, join an underwriter, and seem to
enjoy undue benefits from their former associations. That is
just the way it has always been. You are trYing to improve it
from a credibility standpoint, and I think that is terribly
important. '

The reason that the Capital Needs Commission came into
"being -- and Bill Tremayne can speak to that in a moment -- 1is
that the voters had lost confidence in government.b They were.
voting no on every single general obligation bond issue in the
iate '60s and 'early *70s. It was frustrating to the State,
which was trying to, you know, do things in a more intelligent
manner, but the voters somehow were smarter than government.
They were saying, "No, we don't believe it. We don't believe
" you need this transportatioh bond issue. You lied to us last
time, and we are not going to vote for it this time." '

The good news is thét the Capitai Needs Commission
 recreated credibility with voters. I remember in 1976, which
‘was the first year we recommended three bond issues, I
testified before a legislative committee that had to approve
them. A couple of the Senators were saying, "Well, I will vote
for them, but it is a waste of time, because the voters are
going to vote these down." Well, they didn't. The voters
voted all threé up, as they did in '77, as they did in '78, és
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they have dbne for all but one bond issue since then, since
that moment in time. So credibility was restored. '

| The key question is how to do that now. I am not sure
that you couldn't combine this. I don't have a specific
recommendation here, but to me the qualifications that go into
the decision-making process should include decisions made in
public, 1like - the Capital Budgeting and Planning Commission,
which is subject”to sunshine laws. It should include a highly
professional staff, a very qualified staff. You have that with
the staff running the State Pension Fund system today. vIn
fact, you have had it there-for a long period_of'time. So you
need a similar, in my opinion, highly qualified, professional
staff. % - : |

You also need a Commission composed of public members
and legislative members as bipartisan, just like the Capital
Budgeting and Planning Commission. I;personally‘think fhat it
might be possibie to enlarge the entire scope of their work to
achieve all of the goals you are talking about this morning. I
"~ would rather see you do it that way, than create some new
entity that might make things kind of complicated and more’
difficult to achieve. »

I applaud you for this effort. I think it really is
important. I wish you well, and I thank you for having me this
morning.

SENATOR BUBBA: Just a couble of questions, Bruce.
Your comment on picking a lead manager, the process that the
~ brokerage industry uses-- - There is a special cohnotation, and
I guess it can be spoken to by some of the représentatives from
- the brokerage firms. i '

MR. COE: Right. ‘

SENATOR  BUBBA: There is a special connotation
attached to the lead managing underwriter.

MR. COE: Yes.

11



SENATOR BUBBA: He makes more money, plainly and
‘,simply. 'When you went ‘through your process to select an
underwriting group-- Your comments were interesting. You said
that Dillon Reed made the best‘preéentation.

MR. COE: Right. | o A |

SENATOR BUBBA: I think the most important factor in
any underwriting group is whether or not they can get rid of
the bonds; whethei or not théy can sell the bonds. So whomever
the firm is, the process is a factor of what the interest rate
is, what we can make as - a State, and secondly, whether or not
they can place all the bonds. Those are the two key points, or
two of the most important points. o

On that basis then, why shouldn't we'develop a procéss
‘here by which we don't permit managing underwriters; say that
e?eryone'should'share and share alike in the concession fee, in
the hndérwriting "fee, .the commission? On that basis then,
maybe we would get everybody involved, because we have no ax to
grind.  As a matter of fact, if I want to select a firm, I want
to select a firm that is in New Jersey, as opposed to a firm
that is in New York, or a firm that, you know, at least
contributes to the economy in New’Jefsey.

_  Would you think that if we developed some method of
saying, ybu know, underwriting costs should be shared equally,
that we would end the competition, so to speak, and get
everybody involved? | | _

MR, COE: Yes. Well, an awful lot of bond issues are
highly susceptible to competitive bidding, which is cleérly the
purest way for bonds to be sold. . The problem with what you are
suggesting, 'though, whether you are selécting a finanCial
adviser and, for good reasons -- .and there are occasionally
good reasons when a bond sale should be negotiated, as opposed
to competitive bid-- Whét you are really saying is, "Let's.go

out on the football field and each of the 11 of us canvcéll
signals.” That is my analogy. You really cannot work that way.

12




In other words, Dillon Reed -- this is not a
commercial for Dillon Reed, every firm has different stfengths
-- is extraordinarily strong in their knowledge and their
professiohalism in transportation funding issues. They have a
strong infrastructure of people. They have had enormous
experience. Other firms are very strong in selling bonds, and
I am not here to give breakdowns of underwriting spreads. But
Merrill Lynch built its underwriting prowess primarily because
they were great at selling bonds. o

SENATOR BUBBA: Right. Let's Stay on that point for a
minute. Dillon Reed -- and I do not know Dillon Reed from the
man in the moon; I mean, I have never met any of their people,
and I have never been in their office—- So what that Dillon
Reed was - extraordinarily strong in transportation financing.
What does that matter to us? What matters to us 1is the
interest rate we pay and the fee that is charged. Isn't that
correct-- . ' '
a MR. COE: Absolutely. -

SENATOR BUBBA: --or am I oversimplifying? ,

MR. COE: No, absolutely. But I thought  you were
suggesting sharing the fee equally amongst every firm that
sells a bond.

' SENATOR BUBBA: See, it is my understanding that-- As
we are talking, I am being led away from-- There should be
somebody 1in chafge. I see what YOd meén there. Maybe they
shouldn't make as much as they are making now. Maybe we ought
to split that fee a little bit. | |

Still, the factors involved in-bohding are, can they
get rid of the bonds, what is the interest rate, basically-—

MR. COE: No question about that.

SENATOR BUBBA: --and whether or not they can do the
paperwork, and I presume everybody can do the paperwork.

I heard what you said about the public voting on bond
issues. I don't know that that had so much to do with

13



contributions being received by the various people or parties,
as much as it had to do with the economy. I think that is what
caused a lot of the bond issues to go down. -

' You commented on voter confidence in, I believe, a
$900 million refinancing with no vote. What do you feel the
people think about that?

. MR. COE: I think that what you are seeing in the

- papers everyday now is the public saying, "I don't really trust
politicians." . There is a lack of credibility with the voters.
I think,e it is | important that government regain that
credibility. You know, I think the process you are going
through is‘going to be a key part ofjit. I mean, I am not
saying anYthing that everybody in this room doesn;t already
know. The voters today are not-- I think they are of a
similar mood. I remember as a commuter voting. no "~on
transportation bond issues, because I had been lied'to eight
years earlier; 1lied to in the sense of a wonderful train
pulling into Red Bank. It had shiny new cars, aﬁd we were told
how this was going to be there for us to commute on in a short
~period of time. That was'ell a pipe dream. It had no reality
whatsoever. ‘ ‘ _ ‘

So voters, I think, clearly are of a mood where they
would like the process cleansed.

SENATOR BUBBA: May I hear your comment about
refinancing $900 million without a vote? '

MR. COE: We just refinanced some Transportat1on Trust
Fund Authority bonds within the last two weeks. We did them
using Dillon Reed as a financial adviser. It was done with
competitive bidding. It had to be done fairly quickly, we
felt, because‘the matket was ripe for a significant interest
rate savings of $4 billion. It was done at very low cost. The
true 1nterest rate is 3. 63 percent for lo-year bonds, amortized
‘over 10 years
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The trend of the refinancin@s’ that were-- One was
rushed through by the . Kean administration. I have forgotten
the year, but it was rushéd through because the Federal
- government's arbitrage rules were about to change. In other
words, if you got it done by December 31, you could keep~a11‘of
the positive arbitrage associated with  that bond issue -- which
was.ehormous; by the way. It was the difference between what
the tax-exempt bonds cost and what the moneys could bé invested
in. That is why that was a "rushed through" bond sale.

Several refinancings have occurred SinCe then. I do
not have specific knowledge of any.

SENATOR BUBBA: = But still, I think what you are
saying, at least what I am hearing, is that there should be
competitive bidding. The voters should get involved. There
was a 1055 of voter confidence. However, when the marketplace
- demands, we have to act without the voters. | v |

. MR. COE: There should be competitive .bidding, unless
there is a strong presentationtthat for reasons unique to the
market at that moment in time, or unique to that particular
issuance -- for a really good, understandablé reason we can
understand, it should be negotiated. Otherwise, it should be a
competitive bid. , -

‘ SENATOR BUBBA: All right, thank you.

Does anyone else have anquuestions?

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, I have a few.

Bruce; thanks for coming out today and sharing with us
‘your insight into what needs to be done with the State Capital
Budgeting and Planning Commissiont |

With regard to enhancing its staff and the resources
. to do its job, when you were involved with the Commission,
“could you give me generally the number of staff and the
confidence level in the staff they had, so that going forward
we can take a look at what needs to be done-to érovide for what

appears: - to be an omission now?
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MR. COE: When I got there a younger man named Rich
Keevey, then W1th the State Budget Office, became the key staff
person w1th me, and Rich and I really kind of charted how to_
organize it, how to put it together, and how it ought to
operate. I think we were both very well-qualified to do that.
He then had an enormous knowledge of State budget matters, and
he also had a significant staff, of whom three or four worked
with him, as well as with me on capital budgeting and planning.
needs. I think we were well-qualified to do that.

The staff we had at the Commission at that time really
consisted of me, a Deputy Executive D1rector, who was
well-qualified, and twoe secretarles, who were very
well-qualified. We really had a very small staff, but at the
same time, it is not a huge job. I mean, it is an important
job and it takes knowledge, but ié is not one that requires a
huge staff. If you were to take it one step further, i still
don't think it would require a large staff. I think the seme
number of people' could take: care of all the things you are
talking about today. .

SENATOR INVERSO: With regard to the syndication of
bonds, I believe the syndicate epproach to lead manager is the
way it is done in the private sector. I don't see any reason
"why it would have to change here in the public‘arena. But what
does cause me concern is, there is no role for the State, is
there, in'determining who the other members of the syndicate
are? 1Is that true? . The manager generally pulls together the
syndicate and proceeds with the-- '

| MR. COE: On a negotiated deal, the manager will put
‘together fhe underwriting syndicate, but the issuer, namely the
State, has strong abilities to suggest whom they would like to
be comanagers, and whom they would 1like to patticipate as
underwriters in the group. The State can go out of its way to
do that, and has in the past.

16




SENATOR INVERSO: Does that change from issuance to
issuance, or -is that something that 1is consisténtly on the
table from the State's involvement in these? ' '

| MR. COE: Well, the competitive bid side is. not put
together at all by the State. That is merely a function of
firms. But, yes, it can change, and it has changed over the
years. The State obviously has to play monitor. It cannot
have stray issuers coming to market all in the same day. So it
has to kind of put together who is scheduled to sell bonds
when, so that they move orderly through Wall Street without
cohflicting,with each bther; ' _

At the same time, thé State has an enormous ability to
decide that they would like XYZ firm to be the lead manager,
but the foiiowing three other firms, for the following reasons,
to be comanagers; A Commission, or an advisory group such as
you are talking about, could similarly, if they were qualified,
come up with recommendations of that type.

SENATOR INVERSO: With regard to the refinancing, my
perspective is that I have no trouble when a 'refinancing
involves going from a high “to a low intereSt rate. The
difficulty I have, I think, is what Senator Bubba was alluding 
to; that is, when you have additional debt that you are isSuing
as part of that process. That troubled me, and I voted against
that. ' v .
But'high to low, you have to take advantage of that,
which is the question of expanding your debt mode without
having it go through the process of taxpayer approval, which is
what troubled me in this past refinancing in the State.

MR. COE: Are you speaking of the‘relativély recent
one, a couple of years ago, the‘$l.6 billion, or thereabouts?

o SENATOR INVERSO: No, I am talking about the one we
did last year, this past year -- this past year. , '

MR. COE: Yes, one of which we rolled in three years'

worth of debt service into the proceeds of the bond sale. |
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SENATOR INVERSO: = Yes. 1In essence, we funded it; we
funded it by ‘borrowing our debt service for the next three
years. | A ‘

MR. COE: Techniques that Moody's and Standard &
Poor's do not welcome, yes. I think refinancings, as well as
new issuances, should be réviewed by the Commission as well.

SENATOR BUBBA: Senator Cardinale?

SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. _

‘SENATOR  BUBBA: Senator - Cardinale, may I jus;z
interrupt jou for one moment? ' »

SENATOR CARDINALE: Surely.

SENATOR -BUBBA: Bruce, could we -- I am asking your
| permission, Senator Cardinale's, and the rest of this
Committee's permiséion—— If you say no, then we continue. But
we have a gentleman, Hyman Grossman, from Standard & Poor's,
who told our staff that he had to leave by 11:00. No one told
me, oOr eISe we would have rescheduled. Can you just hang in
for a minute-- v

| 'MR. COE: Yes.

SENATOR BUBBA: --and let HymanAspeak, because I think
what he has to say is probably fﬁportant. Then we will go back
to the questioning. Bruce, we don't like to leave you off the
hook so you can think about answers. We would rather have--

Hyman Grossman, can you come forward, please?
HYMAN C. G ROSGSMAR: . Thank you. I appreciate
it. I do have a long-standing commitment in Pennsylvania, and
I can't break it. | _ ' o )

We are pleased to be here this morning, Mr. Chaitman
and members of the Committee, concerning the State's overall
debt issuance process. We received a memo from you last week
concerning the overall scope of what you are intetested in, so
I will address that briefly. _

"You have already referred to the observation that the
Legislatu;e has no systematic profiie'for reviewind the State's
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overall debt situation, or planning for the State's capital
needs. . In addition, the - State Lejislature ‘has not been
aCtively involved in the overall process of debt management,
planning, and procedures, especially in getting issues of
Treasury and other State entities to the financial markets.
You feel the Legislature, at this juncture, has not met its
responsibilities for its ultimate oversight of State activities.

I think we can strengthen the Commission on Capital
Budgeting and Planning. This is a Commission that has been in
place for a number of years; frankly, since the administration
of Governor Byrne; That was the last time I am aware that we
got regular, annual reports and updates concerning thé
Commission's activities. In the 1last few years, we have not
lreceived those on a regular basis. - The impression out there is
that the Commission, as such, really, today anyway, isn't doing
that much work which is of any significance.

Clearly, the State needs to get an overall view of its
capital needs and finahcing those capital needs on a regular
basis. We think you can strengthen the Commission, -assuring
bipartisan, nonpartisan input, both from the executive branch
and the Legisiaturé, and strengthen it with staff people.; I
think you can pattern it along the 1lines of the Office of
Legislative Services, which I think is a vefy fine part of
State government and does a good job.

I remind you that in testimohy before the Joint Budget
Oversight: Committee last December 7, alluding to the. same

financing the Senate had alluded to -- that $900 million piece
-of the refunding-- Well, the State was going to do part of
capital needs through that refunding, without a vote of the
people, as you say. The Treasurer -- and I quote from the
transcript at that point -- said he had no special "capital
'appropriatibn efféctively in the- 1993 budget."” ‘He was

answering Senator Lynch's question at that time. He said, "We
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reaily,haven't had what i would call'a.capital program in about
 four yéars, of any measure, of any size to meet any.needs.f
~With the budget getting tighter and tighter, the
',budget.that»finally'was approved by the Legislature had less
"and less current revenues going to capital projects. That is
what I think the Tréasurer had in mind, saying, "We are out of
money for capital projects,'and we need to find some."

It is time, I think, to bring all debt having a burden

on general State appropriations under one umbrella. By that I
mean; not only the State Tréasuty that issues general
obligation bonds, but ybur lease revenue bonds ‘that are out
there in 1large measure: the State Building Authority; the
Sports Authority now that has ar:angements withb the State
Treasury by contract to have money in the annual budget to
support its debt directly; ‘the Tfansportation Trust Fund,
’which, while it is self-liquidating frdm dedicated revenues,
there is not enough money, as you saw in the last budget-- You
pulled about $300 millionv out of those resources to help
balance the '93-'94 budget. Soi that has to come into the
picture, too, as well as those Economic Recovery bonds that
were issued earlier in the year through the Economic
Development Authority.
‘ Only by bringing together annual debt service
requirements for these many debt 1issuing entities can you
develop an ~appropriate measure for debt capacity and
affordability. It is not only capacity that you ought to
measure; the legal capacity, but affordability. You need to
develop. a system for saying, "So much is affordable, and so
much is not." _

Maryland and Georgia are two states, I think, that you
can look to, which quickly come to mind when lookihg for better
oversight of all State-related entities. I know Maryland ddes
an annual report on affordability, which I think you éan look
to.
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v The other part of your discussion involves the debt
issuing mechanism. The Texas Bond Review Board)-which I think
. some of the pending legislation is pétterned after, gets into
the formal needs and approval process of all State-related debt
issuance, including - the reasonableness, I may say, of
professional fees. The Texas Bond Review Board has a say in
reasonableness in that area. _ ’

In New York, there is something called the "Public
Authorities Control Board," which oversees a debt issuance
calendar pfimarily, so that the State of New York 1is not
overwhelming the bond market in terms of supply at any point in
time. ' ‘ ‘ '

'Cléarly, the New Jefsey' Legislature and the Capital
Budgeting and Planning Commission can work effectively to
achieve the necessary oversight. ' ’

As I mentioned, in a 1988 héaring by the Assembly
Public Authorities Committee, chaired by  Assemblyman Pat
Schuber béck then-- I think these agencies ought to come to
the Legislature bn an annual basis and report what they have
done during the past year, and what they would like to do in
the coming year in terms-of‘projects, in terms of costs, in
terms of borrowing plans. That way the‘ Legislature,
representing the'peoplé,'can get involved in the process. _

In térms of the other aspect of what you are looking
at, campaign contributions, I think New Jersey can follow the
examplé of Florida of almost three years ago. An Executive
Order from Governor Chiles, then followed by 1legislation,
prohibited anyone doing business with any state agency from
making any political contributions to, or on behalf of any
statewide official. I think you can look to that. .

As you saw the other day, and it 1is 1in today's
"newspapers, the leading underwriters in the municipal industry
are now voluntarily agreeing not to do any more campaign
contributions. But I think that needs to be on the other side,
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the government  side, whichi ought to be prohibited from
soliciting. There are always two sides to that equation. I
think this alone would solve 95 percent of any recently
perceived problems out there.

Strengthening legislative oversight and making the
public aware of all the State's debt-like commitments will make
for better budgetary decisions having long-term financial
implications. - .

Mr. Chairman, I have,a,couple'of minutes to answer any
questions. | o
SENATOR BUBBA: Senator 1Inverso, and then Senator
‘Cardinale. '

SENATOR INVERSO: Mr. Grossman, thank you for coming
out. I know how busy you are, and I appreciate your input.

I find it incredible that you were given a response
that the repbrt of the Commissibn was either wunavailable,
incomplete, or not worth the bother. That's incredible. Your

agency, along with the other agencies, should have access to
Call information,- any infqrmétion that you need to make a
reasonable assessment of the State's financial picture. I
can't believe that. ‘

MR. GROSSMAN: We should get that.

_ SENATOR INVERSO: Your request was made to whom, Mr.
Grossman? | ‘

| MR. GROSSMAN: Well, in the Treasury. I can't
remember exactly who. - , '

SENATOR INVERSO: In the Treasurér's Office. Okay, I
will refer to the Treasury. Thank you. '

| SENATOR BUBBA: Senator Cardinale?

SENATOR CARDINALE: Could you explain to me -- T
really don't know an awful lot about bond sales -- why we havev
pool commissions; why a portion of the commissions are sét‘
aside and we have pool commissions? '
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MR. GROSSMAN: Frankly, I am not familiar with that
side of the market, Senator. You know, I am involved in
Vevaluating the credit that gets to the market. Ybu“re-talking
about the process that is involved befre you get to the market,
préparing the bond financing to reach the market. I am not
familiar with that aspect of it. | '

SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you.

SENATOR.BGBBA: Sénator Schluter?

SENATOR SCHLUTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

A brief question: Senator Bubba asked the previous
witness about the desirability of the State issuing bonds and
indebtédness that has not beén approved by public referendum,
as last year in the refinancing. I am not talking about the
Highway Trust Fund, which supposedly takes care of itself
internally. ' o '

. We have proposed constitutional amendments which would
change  our Constitution to prohibit any additional debt
incurred by the State through this bond refinancing, or
whatever, without public -- without the approval of the
voters. Would this, in your opinion, be good for our credit
rating, or would it not? o |

MR. GROSSMAN: My personal opinion- is that the more
you get the public involved in the debt issuing process the
better. I think people ought to have a voice in bond issues,
.- particularly those that impact the tax structure. If you are
dealing with a toll road situation, for example, that is going
to be supported by those who use the facility, then perhaps you
need not go to a public referendum 6n that. But there ought to
‘be public input in terms of hearings before 'you get to the
financing. : _
SENATOR SCHLUTER: I am not talking about the
Turnpike,fthe tolls, but Senator Inverso before referred to the
refinancing which involved, I think, $87 million of debt
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~service without any'hincome,A starting in 1996, for something
- like 13 years. - The public hasn't had a word to say about that.

' MR. GROSSMAN: Well, frankly, that was part of a--

Let's be open and candid about that whoie proceés.

' SENATOR SCHLUTER: Oh, sure. - |

‘MR. GROSSMAN: That was part of a budget-balancing
relief measure, as well as‘capitaltneeds, as well as . a portion
of it went to building up reserve funds -- the Rainy.Déy Fund,
and SO'forth. So the administration, you know, led that, but
the Joint Budget Oversight Committee approved.‘that whole
financing package. I don't want to get ihvolved'with'who was
there flrst or second, but that did involve the legislative
Commlttee respon51b1e for that.

SENATOR SCHLUTER: Thank you.

SENATOR BUBBA Mr. Grossman, I was about to say that
we didn't have time to 1et you speak, because, you know, I like
to adhere to a schedule. I am happy that we made time ‘for
you. I think your-- , o ‘

' MR. GROSSMAN: So am I. I appreciate the other people
- moving their scheduling. ‘ |
A SENATOR BUBBA:' --remarks are very ' germane. To
acknowledge publicly, to aliow the general 'public to have
insight into how we develop our bond rating, I think is
important. If this is reported tomorrow, and if people read
it-- I think if they do that, they will get a better sense of
what we should and should not be doing here.

" We have found in the past that-- You know, I smiled
when you talked about the Oversight Committee and how there
were'other people involved. Sometimes we in the Legislature --
and some of us did not vote for the refinancing issue—-. Some
of us in the Legislature sométimés think that we are getting
things past people, when it is people like you who come here
and let us know that it just doesn't get past anybody; that
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there are people who do recognize and watch from a finénciai
point of view, what we are doing.

MR. GROSSMAN: Frankly, on that point affecting the
State's bond rating -- if I may take 10 seconds -- we were not
very happy with that whole proposal ‘back"in December. And
frankly, if there wasn't a significant amount of money for
legitimate capital projects and building a Rainy Day Fund, and
so forth, if this went entirely, or substantially for budget
relief measures, the State's rating would have gone down
further at that point. o '

SENATOR BUBBA: You know, from time to time-- I can
recall this, and I know there are other legislators here who
have been around for a considerable length of time. There have
- been a number of issues that have come up, and we really do not
have the expertise to make solid judgments based on financial
footings. . '

It would be helpful if we could address Standard «
Poor's or the other rating groups and ask questions on how
something-—' '

"MR. GROSSMAN: You are welcome to do that.

SENATOR BUBBA: For example, I recall last year we
voted to allow the Sports Authority to-- We, in effect, I
gUess; underwrite now the Sports Authority bonding, whereas we
did not do that before. I was always uncomfortable with that,
but I didn't know the effect that would have on, number one,
our bond rating, and number two, our ability to borrow in the
future, you know, what that meant to us.

On that basis, we should have some way to develop that
information. I see you nodding your head, so maybe we can
address thqsé questions to you at some time in the future, if
these things occur. I appreciate your coming. '

Are there any other questions? (no response)

Thank you very much, and I hope you make your--
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MR. GROSSMAN: Staff is welcome to contact us on any

question.
| SENATOR BUBBA: Thank you. |

Bruce, could you‘ come back up, please? And Mr.
Trémayne, I want to pérsonally thank you for allowing that
discussion. Could you step . forward, pléase? Maybe you can
‘make your remarks, and then we can proceed with the questioning
of both of you, since both of you are addressing principally
the same realm. , , o '
WILLIAM H. TREMAYNE: Than you, Mr. Chairman.
" It is a pleasure to be here. | ' | -
_ Bruce indicated that the Governor was not satisfied’
with the capital process in 1973 and 1974. I think it was for
gbod reason, there was no process. There was_noreétablished
way- of determining what the structure ought to be, where we
v.Were going, what directions wekought_to take.
In 1968,'there were a number of bond issues which had
- followed an earlier Capital Needs Commission. It had issued
its report in 1968. A lot of bond issues were put up. I
forget the amount, but it was significant at that time. The
voters passed them and, with the exception of the Department of
Higher Education, most of the executive .departments got thé.
authority to go ahead, but'they'did no planning. One of the
reasons we had a lack of transportation facilities, as Bruce
was mentioning, was that no one-put a priority on spending the
money that the voters had approved. Inflation was moving on,
and by the time the moneys were allocated, a  lot less was
obtained than was anticipated when the bond issues were put
forward. | _
' The approximate cause was the failure in 1973 of a
particular bond issue. I think'there were several of them, but
~ one was for schools for handicapped"children. There was a'iot
of astonishment that such a bond issue would not readily pass.
What was very interesting about that bond issue was that there
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were no hearings. The bill for the bonds was put up by a
legislator who was very ' interested in the process; The
Department of Education had not participated in the process.
They had absolutely no planning or no way of determining how
the moneys were going to be spent. 1In that case, I would agree
with Bruce that the voters exercised good wisdom in not'passing
something that wasn't well-planned. 1 -

- At that time, I was President of the New Jersey
Taxpayers Association, which you may know now as the Public
Affairs Research Institute of New Jersey. In a meeting with
Governor Byrne and then Treasurer Leone, we were very critical
of the cépital planning process, which‘had been one of our high

priorities. Governor Byrne asked the Treasurer if our
observations of having no processrwere correct. He concurred.
. The following week -- I was at that time a junior officer with
?rudential -- the Chairman, Don MacNaughton, called me to his

office, and said, "I hear you have been talking to the
-Governor.” I allowed as much, and he said, "Well, he has asked
me to be Chairman‘éf the Governor's Commissibn to Evaluate the
Capital Needs of New Jersey. Are you ready to put up or shut
up?" I said; "What do you mean?" and he séid, "I will take it
if you head it as EXecufive Director," which is how I got
myself in that spot. B

But at any rate, we recommended, as did the 1968
Commission, a number of areas 'where éapitél funds were
required, but we made one very overriding observation; that is,
it is no good to develop these plans if you don't have a
process, 1if you don't have cohesion, if +you don't have
oversight. It was for that reason that I drafted the ptovision
for what is now the Capital Planning'and Budgeting Commission.
To me, that was the cornerstone of that report, that there
would never again be a temporary Commission; that we would have

one in place that would provide the oversight.
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It is my general observation -- I have 1not stayed
close to it -- that Mr. Grossman is correct that after a jump
start, a lot of it due to Bruce's leadership; less attention
has been paid to the Commission than should be. I was not
awa%e of the reports not having been given. I am not quite
sure of the'freguency with which the meetings are now held.
But it seems to me that the mechanism is in place to reenergize
and‘extend the charge of that Commission, to provide many of
the ends which you desire in the outline that the Chairman
described. _ , ,

It seems to me that it is not necessary to create av

new entity to accomplish some of theSe'things, but reélly to
reenergiZe and develop interest in the existing Commission. It
already has the representation of Majority and Minority members
from each body of the Legislature on it. It has the executive
department involved. I think that expanding it to be a larger
and more responsible entity would give it a greater ability to
do the analysis and not have two different, very small entities
with diverse obligations. So I would Suggest to you that you
consider, if you do create such an entity, making it a function
of the Capital Planning and Budgeting Commission.
' | The other question is how to address the issuance
process. I am not . particularly expert in that, but I would
suggest to you thaf one of the best ways in our democracy to
get the right answers is toVFhave early dissemination of
information, early notice. I would think that perhaps a
process by which the State and various authorities give early
notice to the Commission as to the process they are going to be
following in bond issues, with perhaps much greater disclosure
in EheICase of proposed negotiated issues, as compared to bid
’issues, would be a way to do that without building up an
overwhelming bureaucracy that is grinding numbers, rather than
doing analysis.
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It seems to me that if you have a reenergized
Commission, what you need is for it to have regular meetings
and to have the fight kind of information available to raise
questions when the flags are there. But I would agree with the
prior speakers that the complexities of it are such' that. I
don't think you couid'have one super agency going through every '
detail before a bond issue is approved. '

SENATOR BUBBA: Thank you, Mr. Tremayne.

Senator Cardinale, will you pick up the questioning?
Thank you for your patience befdre. ' ‘

SENATOR CARDINALE: I am interested in the subject of
the pool commissions. |

SENATOR SCHLUTER: Yes. , _

MR. TREMAYNEﬁ ‘I'm sorry, I cannot hear you, Senator.

SENATOR BUBBA: I'm sorry, I didn't hear you either.

SENATOR CARDINALE: I am interested in the subject of
the pool commissions; I am curious why this kind of a
structure exists, what purpose it serves. _ |

MR.  TREMAYNE: If I may, Senator, I am not a
specialist in that induStry. I never heard the wordsv "pool -
commissions" before, if it was raised at this meeting. '

"SENATOR CARDINALE: Well, I understand that pool
commissions, a',certain portion of the commissions -- 10
percent, I think, in some of the cases that have been before us.
-- are put aside, and then divided 6n some sort of arbitrary
basis, by whom we have not been able to really determine. But
- could we sell bonds if we outlawed pool commissions?

MR. TREMAYNE: I don't know. It certainly--

SENATOR BUBBA: Senator Cardinale, we are going to
have representatives from the industry itself. I think they
could better answer that question.

SENATOR CARDINALE: But Bruce has héd wide experience
in New Jersey, which he testified to. 1Is this pool commission
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arrangement sométhihg that was common in other dealings going
back in history, or do you know? 7 ' _

' ' MR. COE: I don't know. I would defer to the
. subsequent representétives.

|  SENATOR CARDINALE: Okay, then we will--

SENATOR BUBBA: I think he is talking about the
underwriting concession, 'whére there is a portion of the
underwriting <concession that is kept for the ~managing
underwriter and several of his friends, or  ‘the lead
“underwriters. I think that is,what‘you are referring to as a
"pool," a portion. : _ |

SENATOR CARDINALE: That is correct. That is what I
am-- '

' MR. COE: The management fée?

SENATOR BUBBA: Yes, yes. But let's ask that question
of the industry experts. | - ' '

Are there any other questions from any of the
Senators? Senator Schluter? a

SENATOR SCHLUTER: Thank you.

For both of you, and I think Bruce started in on this,

on the Capital Needs Commission, are there 1legislative
representatives now? (Mr. Coe nods affirmatively) How many?
Is there one from each House? _

MR. COE: I believe there are four, two from each
» party. A
' MR. TREMAYNE: Two from eachvparty from each House.
MR. COE: From each House, right.
MR. TREMAYNE: I'm sorry, one from each party from
each House. o '

"SENATOR SCHLUTER: = Do you believe ‘that should be
increased in any way to get legislative involvement, or are
four sufficient? | 4 '

MR. COE: The Commission has not been--

SENATOR SCHLUTER: How many members on the Commission?
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MR. COE: --for many yeérs, what it_onCe was.' It was

kind of new and everybody went to all the meetings. We met
frequently, and it was really clicking. Somehow it got lost,
or at ‘least it is diminished. I don't think. the number of

legislators is critical, I mean, whether it is four, six, or
~eight. I think their involvement,  attendance, and -
participétion are critical.

MR. TREMAYNE: If they are interested and if they show
up and participate, I think you can achieve the ends you
desire. If YOu had 15 and they didn't show up and didn't
participate, you would not get what you want. It is really a
question of are they interested, will they attend; and will
they conduct their meetings. | -

| SENATOR SCHLUTER: In your judgment, should they be .
serving on the Appropriations Committee or have some
connection? Would that be an advantage?

MR. TREMAYNE: It was our original recommendation in
- the Capital Needs Report that there be the Chairman and the
ranking Minority member of the Appropriations Committee. I

believe the legislation omitted that recommendation and left it
up to the Speaker and the President of the Senate to do it as
they chose. , , o | .
SENATOR SCHLUTER: But I take it from the testimony of
both of you that you would, rather than another agency or
entity -- you would favor revitaiizing' the Capital Needs
Commission to‘prbvide better bond profiles for the Legislature,
to give us more input on policy matters.
| MR. TREMAYNE: Absolutely. :
SENATOR SCHLUTER: My final Gquestion: Would the.
Capital Needs Commission also advise the Governor and the
Legislature with respect to the marketing of _bonds,‘ whether
they should be negotiated, whether they should be competitively
bid, or would there be any direction from the Committee on that
matter? Should there be? Would you recommend that there be?
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" MR. TREMAYNE: I would tend to say that the issuing
entity, because you may have authorities or othérs, ought to
‘give édequate—- There ought tb be some time period in which
they gave advance notice of their intention and the reasons why
they were pursuing the course they were, so that the Commission
‘would have ample opportunity to raise questions they mightb
~ have. But I would not put the machinery in their hands to
conduct it. | - ‘ .

SENATOR SCHLUTER: I have one final question, Mr.
Chairman, on a slightly different--
| ' MR. TREMAYNE: Bruce, do you-- |
» ‘MR. COE: The Commission, you recall, has four members
of the executive branch, -including the Attorney General and the
State Treasurer, so I would think that with the right
professional staff, plus the State Treasurer, you are going to
have all the profeSsional qualifications there to apprise the
Legislature, yes. o B -

SENATOR SCHLUTER: . I asked this question of Mr.
Grossman} Would each of you, individually, care to comment on
a- proposed change in our Constitution which would limitklthe
issuance of bonded indebtedness to any kind of a matter which
had been subject - which had to be subject to referendum of
the public, as it is proposed by a couple of amendments? I
don't mean with the Turnpike Authority; I don't mean with the
Highway Trust Fund. I mean in the bdnd refinancing which took
place last December, the fact that $900 millionk*went’ é— was -
issued, was committed for without any public vote. | _ '

MR. TREMAYNE: If I understand correctly, it was to
obtain a lower rate. It was not the issuance of new debt.

SENATOR BUBBA: No, I think you are wrong there, Mr.
Tremayne. I think there was new debt there. I think the new
debt was about $400 million. ‘ _

MR. TREMAYNE: All right. I would have said to the
extent that there is new debt, it should have voter approval.
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To the extent that it is just recycling existing debt, I would
not see a need for it.

SENATOR BUBBA: Thank you. Any other-- v

MR. COE: I think there was a loophole in the
legislation that permitted the refunding, which is Something
which really should never have taken place. Governors and
Legislatufes for years have been trying to gradually figure out
how to issue something that looks 1like 1long-term debﬁ, smells
like long-term -debt, but the voters do not vote on it. You
know, can we do;that through long-term leasing, through some
new Building Authority? For those of you who go back, courts
used to rule, "No, that is long-term debt, and you can't do it
that way." But then they switched. So we have now built up--
So that is abcontinuing desire of Governors and LegiSlatures[
to not want voters to vote on long—term debt.
_ SENATOR BUBBA: Ahd to get short-term expenses paid by
long-term debt. | - o

MR. COE: ' Right, but that refinancing was one that
should never have been legally permitted, in my-- I am not a.
lawyer, but I think that was wrong. '

' SENATOR SCHLUTER: So you would be in favor of

'revising our Constitution to prevent it? ' B

MR. COE: Well, if you want to revise the Constitution
to really get a long-term debt, you should really analyze it
just the way Moody's and Standard & Poor's do, and I defer to
them. 'I think they capitalize long-term leases into long-term
debt computations as well. 'So if you really want to purify it
so that youvwduld get the voters to vote on selling mortgages,
taking a mortgage on a house, then you should really purify the
whole thing, yes.

SENATOR BUBBA: All right. I am. going to end the
questioning now, with a thank you to Mr. Coe and Mr. Tremayne.

I am going . to ask Group 1 to come up to the
microphone. That would be: Gerald McBride, Chairman, -
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Municipal Securities Division of the Public Securities
Association; William Cobbs, Chairman, Public Resources AdviSbry
Group; William - O'Connell, Assistant Directér, National
Association‘of Securities Dealers, New York. Could I ask you,
please, to come up to the miqrophone together? :
WILLIAM COBBS: I don't have any relationship to
any of these peqple. I am with Public Resources, but I have
nothing to do with PSA or any of these people. ‘

SENATOR BUBBA: You don't even like them, right?
Okay, you can sit down. 7 »

MR. COBBS: No, I don't. They are securities dealérs
and we are independent. Don't think that we are affiliated.
‘I'm sorry, we stress our independence from the securities
dealers. ‘ ‘ '

SENATOR BUBBA : I think you have made your point.
Would you like to sit down? (witness complies)

WIUILIUILIAM O.'C'ONNEI‘.L:'Although.we are not
affiliated, I like Gerry. ‘ '

MR. COBBS: (speaking from audience) Oh, I 1like Mr.
McBride quite a lot. | o

SENATOR BUBBA: Can we begin with Mr. McBride? _
GERALD P. McBRIDE: Good morning, Mr. Chairman;
good morning, members of the Committee.

"I have a prepared statementpwhich I would like to go
through, which was at the request of Mr. Calléhan that we go
through . the explanation of what the process of the
broker/dealer community is -- what it does in reference to the
negotiated and competitive issues.

My namé is Gerry McBride. "I am Executive Vice
President of Prudential Securities,-Manager of the Tax-Exempt
Division, but I appear before you this morning as the Chairman
of the Municipal Securities Division of the PSA.

The PSA, or the Public Securities Association, is the
international trade -organization of banks and security firms
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that underwrite and trade municipal securities}»U.S; government
securities, and agencies, moftgage, and other asset-backed
securities and money-market instruments. PSA firms -- member
firms --= account for about 95 percent of the nation's municipal
securities activity. ’ _

As you are aware, municipal securities are one of»the
safest investment vehicles available to investors. Recent
- allegations related to' political 1influence 1in transactions,
however} particularly here in the State of New Jersey, may have
cast doubt upon the integrity of the market. My testimony this
morning will focuqun negotiated and competitive bénd sales, ‘as
was requested, and the role of political contributions made by
market. participants to State and 1local political candidates.
My written statement addresses these issues in much greater
detail than time allows here, and I ask that my written remarks
be included in the record of today's hearing, Mr. Chairman.

Municipal securities’ 'offerings are typically sold
‘through either a competitive or a negotiated bidding process.
The choice of either type of sale is dependent on a variéty of
factors, including: credit considérations, issue of
preference, and market conditions. Competitive,bond sales are
typically used for more traditional offerings of municipal
secdrities, such as general obligations. The issuer will
typically wdrk with a financial adviser to determine the
structuré and timing of'the'bond sale. The offering is then
advertised 1in financial publications in order to notify
municipal dealers of the terms of the offering,  including

inﬁotmation relating to structure, time, date, when'the bidding
will occur, and other details which are pertineht to the
offering.

Muhicipal dealers will arrange ‘at that time for
syndicates to bid on the issue} On the date of sale, the
syndicate bidding for the bonds will estimate the interest
rates necessary to sell -the bonds to investors, and will then
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submit bids to the issuer or its agents according to the
pafameters. The syndicate offefing to purchase-;the bonds at
~the lowest yield -- or highest price -- 1is named the winning
bidder, and upon approval by the issuer is awarded thé bonds.
The syndicate then offerS»the bonds to their customer accounts
at established reoffering yields. » '

Negotiated sales, on the .othér“ hand, are tYpically
used for bond offerings which entail complicated financiai'
planning and project ~management considerations, such - as
refunding or revenue bond issues, which are what were discussed
earlier. The issuer will distribute a Request for Propdsal'——
known as an RFP -- solicitation, which basicallyi asks
underwriters to submit their qualifications and cfedentials.
The issuer then reviews the RFP responses and selects a senior
manager and management team for the transaction. '

The senior manager works with the issuervin order to
structure the financing plan for the bond sale. The
underwriter prdvides a wide variety of services in conjunction
‘with_ the sale, including:  premarketing efforts, investor
relation meetings, credit agency presentations, interfacing
with the financial adviser, if there is a financial adviser,
and other related marketing services. The manager will also
advise the issuer on when the bonds should be offered for sale
in order to take advantage of optimal market interest rate
conditions. » | ‘ |

On the sale date, the senior manager on - the
transaction will price the deal and seek orders from interested
investors. After demand for the bonds is evaluated, the
manager may change the structure and/or size of the deal in
ordei to meet investor demand dictated by market parameters.
The manager then sets the final terms of the offering and
purchases the bonds from the issuer. The manager .also provides
~.a number of post sale services for the 1issuer, such as
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secondary market-making ,aétivities and advice for 1ong-term
capital projects. _ ' ' ‘ ‘

The "spread," which is one of the most misunderstood
aspects of the municipal bond underwriting business, refers to
the amount of money that the underwriting firms work for. The
gross underwriting spread is simbly the difference between‘the
offering price to the public by the underwriter and the
puréhase price’the‘underwriter pays to the issuer. This spread
ihcludes all expenséS' incurred by the dealer in bringing the
bonds to market, as well as any profits earned on the issue.

Average underwriting spreads in the nmnicipal market
" have declined substantially sihce the early '80s. Even though
new issuance of municipal securitiesv has increased steadily,
increased competition among underwriters has caused spreads to
remain subject to downward pressure. ‘ '

Gross spreads of both negotiated and competitive
issues have experienced declines since the early '80s. This
trend has been especially pronounced for negotiated issues. 1In
this category, gross spreads have fallen from $17.31 per $1000
in 1985 to $9.35 in 1992. That represents a 46 percent decline
in gross spreads. The spread for compétitive issues,
meanwhile, has dropped from $10.79 per $1000 in 1985 to $8.99
in 1992, a 16.6 percent drop. As with spreads on negotiated
issues, spreads on competitive issues have continued to narrow
through 1993. | o
’ The bottom line is that whether looking at competitive
or négotiated muniéipal issues, the grdss spread represents
less than 1 percent, a very reasonable rate for issuers of
municipal securities. .

It is important to note that negotiated sales are very
"competitive." As 1 previously noted, undérWriters compete .
vigorously for senior manager slots. PSA believes that the
elimination. of  negotiated sales as an alternative may
~ultimately increase financing costs for issuers.
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Considerable attention has also been focused in recent
months on the issue of political contributions to State and
local candidates, and the role such contributions play in the
deéisions regarding firms that arevselected.to-participate in.
municipal bond offerings. = There is a widespread  consehsus
among PSA's membership that the current practice, where in some
instances contributions 'essentially ‘represent a fee to enter
legitimate competitibn for business -- what has become known as
"pay to play" -- must end, and hopefully has ended with what
has happened in the last two weeks in the industry. o

We commend the Municipal Securities' Rule-Making Board
for its attempt, through its proposed Rule G-37, to address the
issue. Until a final regulatory policy with regard to
political = contributions is established, however, PSA has
reéommended to its members .a voluntary moratorium. Industry
resanSe‘ to PSA's recommendation has been quite positive.
Consequently, we call on groups representing participants in a
public finance process to recommend a similar moratorium to
their members. We also ask that the issuers install a
moratorium until the rules have been established.

That is the end of my comments, Mr. Chairman;

SENATOR BUBBA: Mr. McBride, you set me "back on my
heels initially with your opening remarks. For the record, do
you know me? '

MR. McBRIDE: No. |

| SENATOR BUBBA: And I do not know you. I also work
for Prudential Securities. I was just  employed by them
recently, and I do not want anydne to think that you are here
as a result of that. I never knew you worked for Prudential.

On that basis, I would rather excuse myself from
questioning this group, and I would ask my Vice-Chairman to
question the group. '

MR. McBRIDE: That's fine.
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SENATOR iNVERSO: You haven't earned a commission yet,
have you, Joe. '
- SENATOR BUBBA: No. : ; :
- SENATOR INVERSO: Well, in that case, you're unbiased.
Mr. O'Connell? - -
MR. O'CONNELL: Yes? . _
| SENATOR INVERSO:' Do you have any comments you care to

}maké at this point, or‘would you like us to proceed with the

questioning of Mr. McBride?
MR. O'CONNELL: Whichever way you prefef.
SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. Yes, Senator Cardinale?
SENATOR CARDINALE: Are you the appropriate person to
discuss this pool commission aspect of what has gone on in New

- Jersey? You are familiar with the pool--

MR. McBRIDE: I don't know if I am the appropriate
persona— o : ‘

SENATOR CARDINALE: You know something about it?
MR. McBRIDE: --but I am familiar with what you are
talking about, yes, sir. ‘ '

SENATOR CARDINALE: Okay. Is this a common practice
in the industry? Is this something that is standard and is
always done? |
| MR. McBRIDE: It is not a common practice in the
industry; it is not something that is always done. I think
there needs td be some more elaboration on the question you
asked, Senator, so that there can be some more-- :

SENATOR CARDINALE: All right. Here is my concern.

MR. McBRIDE: Right.. A

 SENATOR CARDINALE: The industry itself is taking
steps and, presumably, we will take steps to eliminate one
source of mischief, and that is the political contributions on
the way 'into doing these sales. I think that is very .
positive. But if we had these pools, it occurs to me that that
might be a second source of mischief; that a lead underwriter
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or manager might indeed be persuaded to have one or another
aspect of a set-aside of some of the>moneys that'thevaOuld
hormally receivé to be paid at the discretion of the Governor's
Office, of the Governor's Counsel, of soméone in State
government, thereby reopening the door for mischief. Albeit
that wé have both doors open now in New Jersey, can we sell our
bonds if we outlaw this process by which pool commissions are
available as part of the structure?

'~ MR. McBRIDE: I would like to answer that question in
two parts: One, yes, I think you could sell your bonds. ’Two; 
I think, again-- With all due respect, I think you have to get
some more understanding about the pooling of commissions for me
to be able to explain that -- to give you an accurate answef.
I think you may be referring to, is this part of the spread
that has been taken out and set aside for-- |

SENATOR CARDINALE: They take currently-- In one of
our issues, they took 10 percent out, and then they divided
it. This is what I mentioned earlier. | _

MR. McBRIDE: Ten percent of the spread, Senafor?

SENATOR CARDINALE: They took 10 percent of what I
would refer to as the commissions. - '

MR. McBRIDE: Okay, that is the spread.

SENATOR CARDINALE: 1In your patlance, you refer to it
as the spread.

MR. McBRIDE: Well, see, not all of the spread goes
" for cbmmissions._ That's why-- If you will allow, spread is
the term that is wused for all of the components that are.
involved between where you buy the bonds and where you sell the
‘bonds. Part of those components would be expenses to pay for
legal, to pay for printing, and to pay for all the regulatory
body assessments. Part of it might be for a management fee,
and the other part would be for what is known as "takedown, " .
which is the same in English, outside of Wall Street, and it
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means commissions. So that commissioh—— If the commission was
set aside, that is not a normal practice. ,

SENATOR CARDINALE: It is not a normal practice?

MR. McBRIDE: No.

SENATOR CARDINALE: The industry would probably be
very happy -- if I can devine that from what you say ——v1f we
outlawed this practice of set aside of commissions to be
divided in some fashion by the Governb:ﬁs Office at a later
date. - v

"MR. McBRIDE: Based on that--

SENATOR CARDINALE: Irrespective-- Here is my
concern: One of the articles I referred to in The Bergen
Record created quite an upset in my.constituency,Vbecause.there
was a company that was newly formed by an ex-Cabinet member
that was included 1in this .pool. It was formed with
capitalization of $5000, and it indeed appears to have done no
bond sales,,'However,‘it got more out of the pool than any of'
the‘other companies included in the pool, and no one seems to
know on what basis that was awarded. But there were no bond
sales. A $100,000 commission was paid to a company that had a
$5000 capitalizatipn, and apparently no previdus experience in
the industry. ‘ » | ’

Now, if I were to 1look at that-—' Many of my
‘constituents have looked at that, and they have said to me,
"That doesn't spell right." It also occurs to me that if we
have a practice like that in New Jersey, somewhere there is a
factor being added to the costs that are'being charged to the
taxpayers. to accommodate those increased costs for -- whatever:
you want to call this thing. There are people who refer toiit
by various names. I am»not going to use those names.

Now, I think I get the impression from you that you
believe the 1ndustry would be very happy if we outlawed that
practice. »

MR. McBRIDE: That is correct.
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SENATOR CARDINALE: I think you also said that it is

not a common practice in things that’are done in other states.
" MR. MCBRIDE: That is correct. | S

SENATOR CARDINALE: Are you familiar:With issues that
héve come up previously in New Jersey, let's say, 10 years ago?

MR. McBRIDE: Yes, I am.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Were there these kinds of pool
| commissions 10 years ago? o ' o

MR. McBRIDE: No, not that I know of.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Could you tell us when they first
became part of the process? -

’ MR. McBRIDE: Well, actually, I cannot tell . you
accurately when they first‘became part of the prOcesS, because
1 know exactly -what you are referring to, and I do not know
myself, as a member of the industry, how, in fact, that
compensation has been calculéted. '

Thére is nothing wrong -- nothing wrong at all -- with
having a designation rule within a takedown. Again, that is a
technical-- I am getting into technicalities, and I don't mean
to do that because I will 1lose you, and, that 1is not Amy
intention.- _ |

There is nothing wrongrwith doing that, as.ldng as it

is disclosed; as long as it is, "Shall we use the level playing

vground concept?”; as 1long és everyone knows that in order to
participate in the designétion policy, you have to have some
type of a relationship with the ultimate investor. You have to
supply some kind of a secondary mafket proWess, or you'have to'
have 'brought something to the table. There are too many
situations that have taken place where that does not exist.

Now, there are reasons why a pool, if you> will --
using your word -- has been allowed, and at times has been
perfectly okay because there has been extra work done, but it
has been’disclosed going in.
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SENATOR CARDINALE: But there is a relationship——'

MR. McBRIDE: There is a relationship. o

SENATOR CARDINALE: --is there not, between the work
that is done and the moneys that are paid—— ‘ o '

MR. McBRIDE: Hopefully. -

SENATOR CARDINALE: --to the pool designee?

MR. McBRIDE: Yes.

SENATOR CARDINALE: If there is a pool, that is the
common practice? ' A

~ MR. McBRIDE: Yes, sir.

SENATOR CARDINALE: You would consider it quite
uncommon that a designee that did no work got more than any
other members of the pool? _

MR. MCBRIDE: That's right. That would be uncommon.
It‘hasvbecomé more common in the industry recently, but it is
totally-- It is uncommon. ‘

SENATOR CARDINALE: I watched at a hearing before
another committee that was looking into some of the same issues
that we are -exploring, and I saw a representative of a major
Wall Street bonding company indicate that he had submitted a
bid, or an approximate éstimated bid of $200,000 for an issue.
He did not understand‘-— I got that meaning from what he said,
I don't think he used those words -- how Lazard Freres was paid
$2.5 million for the same work for which they had  bid,
~essentially, $200,000. A _

Is it common in the industry for such disparities to
exist; that a company would be paid 10 or 15 times as much as
another company, givén the fact that they are both--. I am sure
you could find some fly-by-nights somewhere that wbuld give you
- a lowball bid, and I think that is common in every industry. I
am not talking about those kinds of situations. I am talking
~about where, in fact, companies are of equal standing. Is
there that kind of disparity generally engaged in by State

government?
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~ MR. McBRIDE: No, Senator, there is not. In fact, the
individual you were speaking about is going to appear. He was
called here, and he is sitting behind me. - He said _that he
didn't want to sit at the dais with us because we represent the
broker/dealer community, and he is an independent financial
adviser -- Mr. Billy Cobbs. He will address that, I am sure,
- when he gets up here. But that is not common practice. 1In
fact, it is an anomaly that remains for someone else to
explain, not us. | | ' _

SENATOR CARDINALE: Have you ever heard of this
anywhere in the countfy ‘at any time in the past, in your
experience with bond sales? ' ' ‘

MR. McBRIDE: No, I have never heard of that with that
type of a spread differential. v

'SENATOR CARDINALE: Now, I heard the State Treasurer
say that there was a good'and logical reason for doing that.
That'good and-logical reason was thatILazard Freres -- this was
a specific instance -- had a very innovative approach to the
structure of the bond sales, and that after all, we save money
ultimately. '

Is it unusual in the‘refinancing of bond issues today
that a State government -- in refinancing an old bond issue --
would get a lower rate than on prior bond issues? 1Is that an
extraordinary thing that would account for 10 or 15 times the
normal commission? | |

MR. McBRIDE: Well, that is a very diffiéult question
to answer, because it 1is a very convoluted question. And
again, with all due respect, you're saying, is it--= -

SENATOR CARDINALE: Do you prefer me to make it
simpler? ‘ ‘ _ ‘

MR. McBRIDE: Yes, please.’ _

SENATOR < CARDINALE: Many of my constituents are
refinancing’home mortgages--

MR. McBRIDE: Right.
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SENATOR  CARDINALE: --and  they understand, in
analogous terms to bonding, that interest rates: are lower

today--

MR. McBRIDE: Correct.

' SENATOR CARDINALE: --than they were a féw'years ago.
Governments are in a similar condition. Governments borrowed

money, and they borrowed money all the time. There is nothing
wrong with that. They borrowed money at the then current
" market rates. Since the market rates are 1ower today, it is a
general advantage to government, where it can, where it has the
conditions in the 'bonds, to refinance those bonds at the
current rates, which are very low. ' |

MR. McBRIDE: Correct. ,

: SENATOR CARDINALE: Now, is it your experience that.
governments refinance bonds -- let me bréak the question into
two -- where, in fact, they would pay more interest?

MR. McBRIDE: No. I mean, I would see no reason why.
you would want to increase your debt service. There may be’a
reason, but I can't think of one.

SENATOR CARDINALE:‘ Is there, within the industry,
such a degree of differential in creativity in the structuring
of bond sales that a particular lead underwriter or manager
would be able to come up with such an innovative approach that
it would warrant 10 or 15 times the commission that another
reputable company in the field would,‘indeéd, be able to'offer?

- MR. McCBRIDE: Is it possible? It is absolutely
- possible, but highly improbable. '
' -SENATOR»CARDINALE: Thank you.

Are you familiar at all with the issue'I am talking
about[ and could you render an opinion as to whether this issue
would fall into the category of something that was so
innovative as to, in fact, call for that kind of a differential

in commission?
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‘MR. McBRIDE: I am familiar with the issue you are
speaking about, -but, no, I would not want to render an
opinion. It is not because I will back up, it is becausé I was
hot part - of the issue,’andvdo not really know the intricacies
of what was offered by the lead manager, nor the financial
adviser. - So qut~ou£ of due respect-- I don't know what they
brought to the téble.

_SENATOR CARDINALE: I respect that. I have no further‘
~ questions. A A ' '
SENATOR BUBBA:  Senator Schluter, any questions?

SENATOR SCHLUTER: No, thank you. N

SENATOR BUBBA: I think we will go to the next
speaker, Mr. O'Connell. ', ;

MR. O'CONNELL: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of
the Committee. My name is William O°‘'Connell. I am an

Assistant D1rector with the New York District Offlce of the .

National Association of Securities Dealers.

‘The NASD, as it is referred to, is a ‘membership
organizaﬁibn made up of over 5300 broker/dealers in the
securities community. » '

Specifically, I was asked to report on thé role of the

'NASD in municipal securities regulation. In contrast to the

over-the-counter equities markets, where the NASD both enacts
and enforces ruleS'ahd regulations, in the municipal securities
market the MSRB enacts the rules,'and the NASD enforces them.
This self-regulatory structufe has worked well for NASD members '
because of the close cooperation and working relationships
between the MSRB and the NASD. '

Specific duties that the NASD performs as part of its
municipal securities' responsibilities include: administration
of tests to qualify individuals as registered representatives
-or principals with municipal securities brokers and dealers;
inspectibn of the firms doing municipal seCurities business,
including the inspection by a NASD examiner who uncovered the
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New Jersey Turnpike bond problems; investigations of special
cause matters, includingvcuStOmer‘complaints and terminations
of registered persons; imposition of sanctions through the NASD
disciplinary prdcess; education of municipal dealers; NASD
staff participation in municipal industry forums; and
semiannual provision of enforcement statistics through the MSRB.

With tegard to the Field Inspection Program,
approximately 25 percent, or over 1400 of the 5300 NASD
members, conduct a municipal securities business. While the
size, volﬁme,‘and scope of municipal activity varies greatly
- among these members, each firm is ksubjéct to an on-site
examination kfor compliance with MSRB and SEC rules at least
once every two years. Many of these firms are examined on a
routine basis annually, more frequently if problems: or' cause
matters arise. ' . -

| Through the focusing of our examinatibn efforts, firms

identified by our district offices whose activities, product
‘line,‘ practices, past conduct, or disciplinary history are
deemed to require kcloser regulatory scrutiny, become top
examination and régulatory priorities. , : . ,

The NASD, in coordination with the MSRB staff, has
developed = a comprehensive examination report devoted
exclusively to municipal: securities, including related
inspection procedures. Among other areas, the NASD's municipal
examination report includes: distribution and 5yndicate
activities; sales practices, including fair pricing, markups,
adjusted  trading, and churning; uniform practices in
transactions between brokers and dealers; confirmation
disclosures; suitability of recommendations and transactions;
financial advisory services; customer complaints; and other
MSRB rules. ‘ - _

As a general statement, the NASD has found through its
field inspection, special cause, and other regulatory programs
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that there is a high level of compliancevby broker/dealers with
MSRB and SEC rules in their municipal securities activities.
o Given the size of the municipal securities market; the
diverse nature of the issues traded, and the increased
involvement of individual investors, problems do arise that
must be addressed through enforcement. initiatives. Where
serious or systemic rule violations haVe been found to exist,
the NASD, through its district Business Conduct Committees,’has
initiated formal disciplinary actions against members ‘and
- individuals with the issuance of a written statement of charges
in a formal complaint. Less serious violations have been
resolved by staff taking informal disciplinary actions such as
issuing cautionary letters or conducting compliance conferences.

| From 1982 until 1992, the NASD, in carrying out all of
its requlatory activities, conducted in excess of 100,000
routine( and cause investigations, resulting in about 7600
formal disciplinary actions, and a total of informal and formal
iactions of almost 40,000. Cases involving municipal securities
and (several words indiscernible) ocerate relating to sales
practice supervision, regiStration, and operational
requirements, and totaled less than 10 perCent of the overall
disciplinary actions taken by the NASD. |

~ On the whole, we believe the process -- we believe

good progress has been made in the improvement of the
regulation of the muhicipal securities markets. However, we
see three primary areas that need additional progress:
political contributions; secondary market disclosure by
issuers; and additionali transparency in these markets,
v especially for surveillanCe purposes.

In addition, the. MSRB has proposed several changes to
improve the municipal markets, which we support. First is the
interdealer transaction information pilot. The pilot program
to collect and publish on a next-day basis information on
transactions occurring in the interdealer market for municipal
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securities is a useful first step. Whilevthis program would
not supply neafly as much information as is available inbthe
equity markets, the availability of specific price information,
uncleared and compared interdéaler transactions with  the
~ improvement of automated regulatory reports that_>wou1d be
available from clear trades for surveillance purposes, will
strengthén NASD surveillance of the municipal marketplace, and
assist in our review for dompliance with MSRB rules, including
areas such as: ~sales practice, pricing, markups, and fair
dealing with customers. _

v Second is the political contribution rule. While ‘it
is difficult to promulgate rules in this area, we believe the
MSRB has made an important step in addressing the problem. We
hope this proposal is achieved, and believe that the NASD will
be able to incorporate it in our enfo:cemént program.

Further, the MSRB recently stated in its rule proposal
that even prior to this rule, payments given to issuers mustA
comply with the fair dealing principles in current MSRB rules.
NASD examiners have, therefore, been instructed to review this
- area in future member examinations, even before the new rule is
promulgated. '

Finaliy, there is the | continuing disclosure
information rules. The NASD staff has 1long supported the
concept of full public disclosure in the markets we regulate,
because we believe that the investing.public.should have access
to current information when making investment decisions. 1In
general, we suppoft greater secondary market disclosure for
munhicipal securities, particularly those that are actively
traded. |
” wé'welcome the concept.inttoduced by the MSRB which 1is
~in its earliest phase of deVelopment. We will pro#ide input to
the MSRB, as we have on other matters in the past, and on
substantial enforceability of any proposal that may develop.
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- In summary, we believe that the current scheme of
regulation of broker/dealers by the SEC, MSRB, and NASD for the
municipal securities markets works well. On the whole, our
examination program has evidenced general compliance by members
of the _MSRBV and relevant SEC 'rules. :Where infractions have
cccurred, the NASD has taken decisive disciplinary actions.
While ourbinvestigations confirm that Compliance is the norm in
- the municipal securities markets, we recognize that,problems do
arise and must be addressed. We plan to work-closeiy with the
vstaffs\of the MSRB énd SEC over'the months ahead to address
.solutiohs to the political contribution issce, to expand
secondary market transaction information, and to increase the
availability of current issuer information in the municipal
Securities markets for the benefit of the investing public.
I thank you for the opportunity to present our views
on this regulation. We would be happy to answer any questions
you may have. I

" SENATOR BUBBA: Just - define secondary market
disclosure. ‘I don't think I kncw_exactly what you mean there.

MR. O'CONNELL: Secondary market disclosure is--
Well, we have heard comments on it before. In a. number of

instances, municipal securities are issued and there is no
follow-up through the rating agencies of information going on
within the municipality. Secondary market ‘disclosure deals
with the secondary market of securities and what information is
available that may have affected the credit ratings of the
issuing authority, whether that be State or municipal.
| SENATOR BUBBA: Well, on an ongoing basis, S&P and
- Moody's rate the municipality or the State. They gather this
information by whatever means. I thought you were referring to
who buys the bonds after the initial offering. That is what I
view as a secondary market. | | _ - |
MR. O'CONNELL: That is the secondary market. It is
the purchase after the initial distribution of the seccrities.
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SENATOR BUBBA: Are you saying that there should be
disclosure as to who purchases the bonds in the secondéry
market? . ' -»
" ‘MR. O'CONNELL: No, not who purchases them, but what
changes have taken place within the financial condition of the
issuing agency.

SENATOR BUBBA: §So that people in the secondary market
are buying knowing more?

MR. ‘OfCONNELL: | Knowing considerably more, because
these are-- , '

SENATOR BUBBA: Well, doesn't the rating do that?
Suppose S&P moved the rating from A to BBB. I mean, the
‘secondary market would understand that that is nOt as good
security as it was when it was an A. Isn't that good enough?

MR. O'CONNELL: If you are looking on the Staté level,
you will have Moody's or S&P or any of the other rating
agencies giving it. However, looking on a smaller scale, that
is not necessarily the case.

| SENATOR~BUBBA: And nonrated issues?

MR.‘O‘CONNELL: Nonrated bonds being--

SENATOR BUBBA: I understand now. |

Are there any other questions?

SENATOR INVERSO: I had the same question in mind. I
© was going to ask: What specific type of disclosure do you feel
should be available for secondary market absorption? _

MR. O'CONNELL: Again, 1looking at it from a personal
point of view, because we aré not a rule-making authority fbr
municipals -- that-is the MSRB -- that would require some type
of é'sliding séale, depending on the size of the issuer. The
smaller municipél issuers do not have the financial

wherewithal. That would be the community firehouses, or
something of that nature. But as the size of the issuer
increases, or the financial ability-- 1If it is a bigger issue,

maybe over $100 million, it will require more of a disclosure
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of what 1is. taking placé ‘within that community than an issue
under $10 million. ‘ : ’
o SENATOR'INVERSO;' Who should provide that disclosure?

MR. O'CONNELL: In the opinion thdt I have heard so
far from MSRB, that would be required of the issuer. _ o

- SENATOR INVERSO: Of the issuer. This would be
disclosure above and beyond, séy; the annual audited financial
‘statements of the municipality or the issuer? It would be
ongoing financial disclosures? | 1  » S

MR. O'CONNELL: Again, depending on the size or the
changing conditions. If there is no foreseeability of change
in the financial condition of the issuer, mafbe it is not
needed quite as frequently, and maybe then a single annual
audit is sufficient. , '

SENATOR INVERSO: But who determines a perceived
changé, the réting agencies?

MR. O'CONNELL: Well, at this point, those are still
under the rule of proposals.. I assume that is still to be
determined, at this point, because it is looking at a proposal
really for the dealer community to stand behind. It does not
‘necessarily have any impact, except the impact to the issuers,
except _in the 1liquidity or ability of that particular
municipality to sell its bonds in the future.

SENATOR INVERSO: Sell its bonds in the future. And
yet we are looking at kind of a forwafd-looking situation here,
in terms of what this debt and any change of economic condition
to the issuing entity might have on the ability to meet its
debt service going forward. ,

o MR. O'CONNELL: That is correct, yes.

SENATOR INVERSO: That 1is basically what we are
talking about, and that is.something that we, too, are looking
at from the standpoint of the State's issues, whether the State
should incur more debt, and to what extent it can absorb the
incurrence of additional debt service going forward, apropos of
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what we discussed earlier today with the State Commission on
Capital Budgeting and Plahning. Perhaps that agency would do
that. . o . o
o MR:‘ O'CONNELL: If that agency were to make public
some of its findings or the reasons behind its determinétion of
why it should or should not issue bonds of a particular length
or sizé, it would provide considerably more information to the
inveSting bublic. - , |

SENATOR . INVERSO: I envision that information being
public. I said I was shocked that ,the’ reports were not
considered available or -complete this morning. This could be
part of the information that they would include in their
report, this kind of an assessment of the State's -- I don't
want to say "financial health" -- but particularly the State's
ability to fund its debt requirements goingvforward, with the
information available to it from other sources that we will ‘
have to, you know, cooperate with. ,

MR. O'CONNELL: One of the things that we were just
discussing here previously was, it also impacts the suitability
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission if they
are looking to make sure that the investor and the investment
are a match. Without the proper disclosure by municipalities
of current status, whatever that particular time period might
be of when you come out with a new statement, it is important.
to the dealer community to be able to establish whether an
~investment is suitable. Would you base it on rumors of where a
security may be heading, whether it is moving up, down, or
staying the same in its credit rating? , o

SENATOR BUBBA: The only caution that -- o;'suggestion
that I would make=- I can understand why you would want the
disclosure on the part of the issuer, but you havé to
understand that what\ we do here( we do for everyone in the
State of New Jersey. So that first aid squad, or the firehouse
that 1is funding a fire truck, or maybe their facility,
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whatever, they are not as familiar with disclosure rules as
someone else 1is. So while you may hold them responsible, you
are really holding the CPA firm or whoever is assisting them in

" that bond issue responsible, or, in fact, maYbe even the
underwriter. Someone who knows what he is doing has to be held
responsible. ' ‘ ’

MR. O'CONNELL: Absolutely. 1In a numbér of instances,
whether it be that first aid station or the f1rehouse, it is
quite poss1b1e ‘that without any major change in a local tax
- base, or something, you would not want to force the requlrement
of add1t10na1 d1sclosure because of the increased cost

SENATOR BUBBA: Yes, Mr. McBride?

- MR. McBRIDE: Mr. Chairman, it is not so much the
first aid station or the firehouse, because they are only the
recipient of the funds. That is not who we are looking to for
the disclosure. We are 1looking for the disclosure to the'
entity that 1ssued the bonds, not necessarily what the--

SENATOR BUBBA See, in New Jersey, fire distficts, in
my - - | |

MR. MCBRIDE: But that is a district; that is a
district. That is what we are looking for. We are not looking
for the individual house. We are looking for disclosure; we<
are 1looking for information that allows us to make a
determination as to whether or not there has been a material
change in the financial condition, so that therefore we can
abide by the SEC rules known as "Fair Dealing." We know if we
sell bonds to someone as a broker/dealer that it is SUitébie
- that those bonds fit that portfolio. . '

» SENATOR BUBBA: I express my appreciation to everyone,

because we are going longer than we thought But as you can

see, the discussion is germane to what we need to do here.
 SenatorACardina1e?

SENATOR CARDINALE: At the beginning of your

presentation, you mentioned investigation and some disciplinary
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proceedings that were,taken; It was not clear whether that was
the SEC or the NASD. | | |

MR. O'CONNELL: That is the NASD. We are subject to
SEC oversight of our examination program, but it is the NASD
that does the examinations and has the enforcement'ability to
take whatever disciplinary actions may be necessary at the
conclusion of the examination. ' _

SENATOR CARDINALE: How do those matters come to the
attention of the NASD that would trigger such an ekamination,
or are they automatic? : B

MR. O'CONNELL: Well, the examination program itself
for municipal dealers is a minimum of an on-site inspection
once eVery two years. In a number of instances, especially for
the bigger-dealers, it is much more frequent, at least once a v
year, and, in some cases, it occurs periodically throughout the
year. Those on-site examinations  follow procedures that have
beenvmodified a number of times in the past, but ‘are always
adjusted toward 1leading us toward a proper -examination, not
only of the financial condition of the broker selling  the
bonds, but also of any sales practice violations that may be
taking place.: _ — _ »

Those particular procedures are what we have used in
the past to find problems on our own. However, we do also have
a Customer Complaints Department that accepts calls from anyone
who wants to talk to us about what they perceive as a problem.
We also look toward the dismissal of sales representatives from
particular firms, and we will 1look into that if it was for
cause, or any other incident that may occur Ehat would bring it
to our attention that some type of improper sales activity is
taking place. . ‘

SENATOR CARDINALE: Would it be appropriate for this
Committee to refer to the NASD an investigation of an overall
bond issue by the State, for the reason that we seem to believe
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that there. was a disparate commission being paid, or a
disparate fee being paid, to any of the entities involved?

o MR. O'CONNELL: As a matter of fact, without going
into detail because I am not specifically involved with it, I
believe part of that investigation is taking place ‘already.
HoWever,rif you are looking for a specific referral to it,vwe
would be more than happy te accept that. ‘

SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you very much.

SENATOR BUBBA: If there are no further quest10ns~—

SENATOR CARDINALE: I have one other question which I
forgot to put to Mr. O Connell. In your experience -- either
of you -- has any state ever barred a particular dealer from
d01ng business in that state in the future, or for any period
of time in the future, because of practlces that were deemed to .

be suspect?

MR. O'CONNELL: Well, Gerry seems to have one
specifically, but from our point of view -- the NASD -- it is
‘not the state that has barred people. It is the

self-regulatory organization. When someone is barred from the
‘industry, or is suspended from the industry, whether it be an
individual or a firm, or the firm and its individuais,
whatever, the NASD has taken that action in the past. Without
membership within the NASD, you cannot continue to do a
securities business without violating Federal law.
| SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you very much.
MR. O'CONNELL: You're welcome. '
SENATOR BUBBA: I thank you both.
MR. McBRIDE: Thank you.
’SENATOR BUBBA: Next we are going to call up William
Cobbs, Chairman, Public Resources Advisory Group.
Before Mr. Cobbs speaks, there is a gentleman by the
" name of Steve Hochman, Assistant Director, State Ratings,
Moody's Investors Service, who has submitted testimony to us.
He could not be here, but I think it would be worthwhile to
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read two paragraphs which I feel are germane. I'would‘like to
do that right now.

" "Debt 1limits provide important guidance to a state in
preparing its capital program and debt issuance plan. For a
limit to be effective, it should be comprehensive in coverage,
including all tax-supported debt, and it should impose
reasonable budgetary discipline to limit debt to an affordable
level. But the limit should also not be so restrictive that it
invites the kind of ‘'backdoor' financings that now characterize
some states' debt structures. ‘

"Debt management must be meaningful in establishing
reaSonable‘ limits to the issuance of debt while pro#iding’ a
‘flexible means to finance the state's capital needs. The 50
states>provide a spectrum of approaches to debt issuance and
management, and the structure and amount of debt must address
the particular needs of each state. In this way, proper debt
management'can help achieve annual budget balance and long-term
structural balance, key ingredients for a high quality credit."”

Those comments are from :Steven Hochman, Assistant
Director, State Ratings, Moody's Investors Service.

Mr. Cobbs? .

MR. COBBS: Thank you, sir. _

I am William Cobbs, Chairman of the Public ‘Resources
Advisory Group. We are independent financial advisers.

- SENATOR BUBBA: Could you please bring the microphone
closer to you, sir? , ' :

MR. COBBS: (witness complies) I'm sorry.

We are independent financial advisers to State and
local governments and public authorities. We are independent,
and that is why I didn't feel comfortable being on a panel, or
being in testimony with dealers. ‘ ’ '

For. the last three years, we have been the largest
financial adviser, especially to states. We repreSent: the
State. of New York, California, Virginia, Maryland -- we are
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having our first issue for Massachusetts as we Speak -- New
'Hampshire, Nevada -- about 10 states. '

_ I do not have any w:ittenvremarks. When I spoke to
Mr. Callahan of your staff, he said you wanted to have a
discussion on debt management. I will be glad - to answer
questions, or I can comment on what has been said before by
these other folks. o | | ;

' SENATOR BUBBA: Well, we prefei you making some sort
of a statement, you know, and then if anyone has questions}
fine. If not-- _ N ' ,

'MR. COBBS: Then I will address what these other
people have said. S o
Basically, I endorse what the two rating agehcies have
said, and what Mr. Raphael of Fitch is going to say, since I
happened to see his testimony -- his statement. |
In the letter that has been sent on the proposals, we
feel debt management is a crucial area. We think you should
focus on affordability. As one financial analyst says, "That
Qoes to the heart of the rating process." Indeed, you‘ may
consider establishing policies, so you do not get intblthe type
of situation where you had the advance refunding, which Fitch
has said represents, in effect, déficiE financing, where you
defer a debt service. If you had policies that came out of the
affordability study, you would avoid deferring that. This is
certainly not consistent with the high—grade_borrowing like New
Jersey has traditionally béen,'even to the AA+ level, much less
the AAA. - A
o In this connection, we would endorse what Mr. Grossman
said, that you should look at the Maryland example. I have a
copy of the Maryland "Debt Affordability Study" I would like to
leave here. They have a Debt Affordability CommisSion. - They
make an advisory report to the legislature. The legislature
does not have to adhere to it. They do. It is generally
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credited with having helped Maryland keep its AAA ratings,
because they did have high debt ratios. I really do think this
is the best example you could follow. ‘ '

I would, however, like to add one thing: Debt has
really not been New Jersey's problem. If you 1look at New
Jersey's debt ratio -- I would use Moody's for the median --

although New Jersey's ratios have gone up slightly over the
last 10 or 15 years, they are still really not out of 1line with

the median. Debt to personal income for New Jersey 1is 3
percent now, and the state leading is 2.2. The debt burden,
that is, debt to personal property -- the property tax base --

is 1.2 versus 0.9 for the median. Indeed, that ratio, as well
as the debt to personal income, has actually improved somewhat
since 1977 because the financial resources in New Jersey have
gone up more than the debt. ‘

The real problem in New Jersey, frankly, has been--

SENATOR BUBBA: Excuse me. Before you put those
‘numbers away-- ‘ '

MR. COBBS: Sir?

SENATOR BUBBA: Before you put those numbers away, I
think you just said that-- Tell wus again the ratio with
property taxes to-- ,

MR. COBBS: The full value of the property tax base
and personal inceme-— Those are two important measures that
financial analysts look at. ','

SENATOR BUBBA: All right. Personal income, we're

where?

MR. COBBS: Second in the country

SENATOR BUBBA: Second in the country w1th respect to--

MR. COBBS: Personal income -- per capita personal
income. ‘ '

SENATOR BUBBA: All right. |

MR. COBBS: I don't know where your property tax base
is. I am sure it is not as high as California, because they

are so much bigger.
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SENATOR BUBBA: Well, you--

, SENATOR BUBBA: But, I mean, per capita-- I do not
know that one. ' ' ‘ ' |
SENATOR BUBBA: --said the mean is 0.9. ,
MR. COBBS: I said, "the ratio." The ratio is 0.9,

and New Jersey is 1.2. ‘ ‘
" SENATOR BUBBA: All right, so what do you mean by the
ratio? , | _ :
MR. COBBS: I am saying you are right at the median.
SENATOR BUBBA: _Thé median is 0.97
MR. COBBS: Yés, sir.
SENATOR BUBBA: And we are at 1.27
MR. COBBS: Yes, 1.2.
| SENATOR BUBBA: So ‘that, to me, is what, 30 percent
highér than the median. | | ' ' |
MR. COBBS:A Well, there are people who are much higher
than that, sir. I don't'_really—- If you look at all the
rating write-ups by Fitch, Moody's, and Standard & Poor's, each
one,bf them characterize your debt as moderate.
SENATOR BUBBA: Well, those people can say it, because
they don't pay it. Go ahead. ‘ ’
_ MR. COBBS: Debt is not an-- There are some states,
like Oklahoma, that have low debt, and others like Connecticut
and Massachusetts that have high debt. So I say, I don't think
the financial pressuré on New Jerseyvcomes from the debt side.
It comes from the operating budget side and engaging in these
nonrecutring things 1like refundings, selling the highways,
thesé sorts of things. Nonrecurriﬁg issues are what put the
pressure on New Jersey's ratings. It is knot the debt
management. You actually have pretty good debt management.
The one thing that has been noticeable about your debt
- management lately is that‘you used to sell most of your debt
through the general  obligation, about threé-quarters of it,
which the rating agencies prefer. Now you sell less than 60
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pefcent. As a result, you do not pick up all that, even though
youf debt service burden in your budget is low -- under 4
percent. That does not include leases, as other'people have
mentioned. When you do ydur debt studies, you need to go to
net tax-supported debt, the way Moody's and Fitch do. That is
also what'Maryland has done. That throws out a much bigger
net, and that gets all your debt. YouAjust‘can‘t look at GO
debt. You have to 1look at everything that is supported by

taxes. _ _ : _

' SENATOR INVERSO: I would like to inject a question
here  with regard to debt management: Statistics,
unfortunately, are after the fact. Do you think there is an

effective modél,'or an approach that could be used to try to
_project, to try to look beyond just the current budget cycle,
so that those statistics and ratios don't get us away from the
norm significantly? That is the concern I have.

I understand that government-- See, government 1is
very myopic. - It is like the 12-month budget-- You have to
come up with a balanced budget. You can have a balanced

budget, but you can have deficit financing from the debt
activities. , _ v

MR. COBBS: Yes, sir. I do think-- Maryland was the
one that pioneered in this. You should know that that really
came from the 1legislature there. A friend of mine was a
legislative budget officer back in the mid-'70s, and he started
that. But that was kind of a formulistic approach. They would
only issue-- They would only retire some existing debt, and
they would have new debt equal to about 75 percent, 80 percent
retirements, which automatically drives, then, the ratios.

We did a refinement for the Controller of the City of
New York, which I would also like to 1leave for you, which
precisely addresses your question. We went on the basis that
just not needs can drive the capital budget. You also have to
look at resourcés; that is, things like personal income, the
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property tax base, population, tax revenues. Maryland has
addpted our  refinement. | They do exactly now what we started
doing for the State‘of New York about 10 years ago. Here is
the last one we did for New York. It was in 1992. Like
Maryland, they now do it internally, and they do project"ions
out for five years. You need a capital budgét to do this, but
ydu can get projections, the best of the blue-chip indicators,

which is about 50 well-recognized economies -- DRI, Wharton,
WEA, I guess they are called now -- and use that as the basis
for your economic p;ojections. Then 1look at your debt over

time to see where your ratios come out.

| You have kind of two measures: how you do over time,
and then how you do next to the Moody's median. You can do
that, yes, sir. ' ' |

SENATOR INVERSO: So» it is not just an exercise -in
number crunching and crystal balling. You think it 1is ‘an
effective_tool that can be used to monitor debt-- ‘

MR. COBBS: That is the question. New York does not
use this, and they have very high debt ratios. Maryiand does
use this. = They adhere to it. So it is a 1little bit 1like in
"The Tempest,"” where the character says,v"i can call serpents
from the deep.” The question is, will they come? So anybody
can do Ehese numbers. It is a quéstion of adhering to them.

’ So when this report from Maryland goes .to the
legislature, the legislature adheres to it. As a result, they
have kept their AAA, and now New York State has the second
1owest_ratings of any state, bécéuse they have had this wild
"proliferafion of debt. V

SENATOR INVERSO: Great. Thank you.

SENATOR BUBBA: Senator Cardinale?

SENATOR CARDINALE: Mr. Cobbs, I do not want to ask
you to fehésh all of the testimony you gave to the other
committee. However, I am aware of that testimony, where you
- indicated - you would have done what Lazard Freres did for
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$200,000 or so, and offered that to the State Treasurer. I
subsequently heard the State Treasurer testify thét there was
some innovative characteristic to the procedures that were
presented by Lazard Freres, and that that warranted the extra
moneys they were paid on the order of magnitude of 10 or 15
times what you had bid. ’ ' '
Now, I would like to give you an opportunity here,

having heard that testimony by the State Treasurer--
. _ MR. COBBS: I did not hear it. I d'id not hear his
testimony. , |
SENATOR CARDINALE: You didn't hear it?
MR. COBBS: No, sir.
SENATOR CARDINALE: I characterized 1it. I have given
it 'very briefly. What would be your comment with respect to
the work .that was actually prepared by' Lazard Freres? Were
there any extraordinary innovative approaches that resulted in
a benefit to the State of Néﬁ Jersey which would warrant a $2.5
million payment? ' : B

' MR. COBBS: I don't know enough about what Lazard

Freres-- I did not know it was a brand-new approach. As I
said at the time-- I really did not understand that was a
purpose of my being here today, to go back into this. I was

told by Mr. Callahan it was to talk about debt management
practices. | ' ' : |
,The'reason I agreed to'testify originally was that we
were surprised by the size of their compensation. We were told
it was $50,000, and we said, “"Well, we cannot do it for
$50,000. It would be more like"-- I think we said $300,000 --
$200;000 to $300,000 probably. As an'example for that, we did
a start-up toll road in Orange County, California. We worked
several years on that, and we made about $700,000.
SENATOR CARDINALE: Who told you $50,000?
" MR. COBBS: The people we interviewed with the
Turnpike Authorify. They have subseqﬁently said they do not

63



recall that. We have nothing in writihg,v as I said under
oath. ‘That is what my partner, David Rush, told me he said,
that we couldn't do it for $50,000; it would be more like
$300,000, or something. | - '

' We have done several innovative things. Indeed, we
Adid a note sale similar to the one that New Jersey did. We
thought we did a good innovation, but we didn't get $2.1
‘million from California for that innovation, and it saved thgm'
quite a lot of money. _ ,

SENATOR CARDINALE: Just from your experience in the
industry, is innovation generally-- .

MR. COBBS: I'm sorry? ]

SENATOR CARDINALE: Just from'your.general,experience
invthevindustry,'does innovation generally warrant the payment
of 10 or 15 times what someone else has bid, or 5 times what
someone else has bid? |

MR. COBBS: Well, that has not been our experience in
the public sector. We did a crossover refunding for the State
of New York, and we came up with-- Only one'of the existing
firms could match ours, and only four of the existing firms
could even do it. And we didn't get a lot of compensation for
that. It was just pért of a job. _ | ‘
o SENATOR CARDINALE: Thank you very much.

SENATOR BUBBA: Give us a percentage, in your
experience, what the total underwritihg concession would be oh,
let's say, a million dollars. What percentage-- ‘

' MR. COBBS: This was financial advisory.

SENATOR BUBBA: Excuse me?

MR. COBBS: This was financial advisory, father than
underwriting. ,

SENATOR BUBBA: Oh, this was financial édvisory,.
" okay. Thank you. ' | ’

‘ MR. COBBS: Again, as I said in my testimony, we were
surprised at the size, because even though wé have been the
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largest financial advisory firm for three sfraight yeérs now,
our annual revenues aren't a'whole lét bigger than what they
were paid for that transaction. We would have been very happy
with that compensation. ' '

SENATOR BUBBA: Thank you very much.

SENATOR CARDINALE: Mr. Cobbs, I would have been, . too.

MR; COBBS: May 1 say just one more  thing about what
Mr. Grossman said on contributiqns? (no response)

We agree with what Mr. McBride séid, that everybody
should adopt these. We have adopted a resolution where we do
‘not do contributions, and we discourage individuals. We talked
about it for a year. I wish we had done it sooner, but
frankly, it is the kind of a thing where*everybody gets in the
boat at the same time so it doesn't tip over. |

I think that is what is happening now. I think it is
a welcome advance. Florida, as I indicated in my testimony, is
a very good place to look, but it is also true -- which
somebody' élse said -- that you folks have to-- People who
receive contributions have to do the séme,thing.‘ I recommend
Kathleen Brown, the State Treasurer of California. She will
not accept any contributions from anyone inA the "Red Book,"
which is the guide of-- It includes dealers, financial
‘.advisers, bondvlaWYers,'and»everything. We hope'that Kathleen
Brown's policy can be adopted.
’ SENATOR. BUBBA: In New Jeréey -- in case yon don't
know how it works -- everybody gives money to the President.

MR. COBBS: Is there anything else?

SENATOR BUBBA: No. Thank you very much for your
testimony. , _

| May we have Robert Rich, Richard Raphael, and Steven
Elias? Do you fellows like each other? Will you sit at the
same table? (laughter) There is not enough room for three?
All right. There ate two microphones, so let's bring a éhair

up. Thank you.
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First of all, let me thank you for being patient with
us. You are about an hour and 15 minutes behind, or you were
an hour and 15 minutes behind, and you had to wait for us.

, Because you are ’fitst on the schedule, Robert Rich,
would you like to opén?' ' ) . '
ROBERT A. R I C H: Thank you. Good afternoon, Mr.
Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Robert Rich. I
" was born and raised in New Jersey, and currently reside 1in
Milltown in Middlesex County. I am a Vice President in the
Public'Finance Department at J.P. Moigan Securities. |

By way of béckground, J.P. Morgan' is a diversified
global financial services institution with three principal
subsidiaries: J.P. Morgan Sécufities, Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company -- the nation's fourth largest bank -- and J.P. Morgan
Investment Management. The firm is involved in securities
underwiiting, investment advisory, 1lending, and other credit
products and in purchasing securities for its own account. Our
insfitution'has served as a manager on sevefal'tranSactions for
the New Jersey Healthcare Facilities Finance Authority;
provided' $200 million in 1loans to New Jersey hospitals, and
established a $400 million standby note purchase agreement for
the State's $1 billion tax and revenue anticipation note
financing. Our firm also won the recent competitive offering
by the New Jersey Highway Authority.

New>Jersey‘remains one of the highest rated states in
the Northeast, the region which.experienced probably the worst
of the national recession. Despite the severity of the
‘recession, New Jersey's credit standing is among the elite of
the states. At Aal from Moody's, there are only eight states
rated higher, and at AA+ frpm S&P, only five states are rated
more highly, and six states on par. Moody's Investors Service
ranks New Jersey's tax—supported‘debt 14th .among states as a
percent of persohal income, and 11lth on a per capita basis and,
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as was stated earlier, has always referred to New Jersey's debt
burden.as "moderate." , ,
As»Iiunderstand the proposal summary I was given, the
Legislature wishes: to pfovide the Commission - on 'Capital
Budgeting and Planning with the additional ‘mandate to assess
the Staté's debt position based upon prescribed criteria, and
to recommend a limit on new bond authorizations. This limit,
presumably, is only a recommendation and could be overridden by
the Legislature. o
Examining this need  for  additional  bonding
authorization in the context of some of the criteria described
in the proposal, such as debt levels of comparable statés, New
Jersey's capital.needs, the ability of the State to support its

- debt burden, and the fiscal position of the State, can be

“important in maintaining the State's credit rating. The -
process can also balance the burden of this debt on the
taxpayer. The review process, however, - would fall SOmewhat
short in that the Commission would not decide whether debt
already authorized should be issued in light of the criteria
which has been examined.
Also, ‘changes which may have occurred during the
.~ fiscal year that warrant an increase or reduction in the amount
of debt to be sold by the State seem to be outside the
descriptioh of what the Commission's charge might be. Will the
Commission have the ability to review and assess debt issuance
plans during the fiscal year and make a recommendation éS'tO
whether or not that debt should be issued? Will authorities,
_agencies[ or others that issue tax-supported debt come under
the Commission's oversight role, and what about refunding
issues? ' f o |
| The State of Texas has established the . Texas Bond
Review Board, which is empowered to authorize or disapprove the
‘'sale of bonds by all Texas state authorities and agencies. The
Bond Review Board is comprised of the Governor, Lieutenant
Governor -- who 1is also the Senate President -- the State
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-Comptfol;er, State Treasurer, and the Speaker of the House.
All of these are elected officials. All bonds»issoed by state
agencies and authorities, with the exception of those
constitutionally mandated, must be approved by the Texas Bond
~ Review Board; This review process_can take an average of two
weeks. | ' ’

Whether the Comm1551on functions under the proposed
changes or add1t10na1 powers you are planning to give it, the -
time frame in which it makes its decisions can be important. A
significant delay in the issuance of bonds due to the
examination process may result in some lost“opportunitieS‘ in
the market. ‘ |

With respect to a new authority to reduce State debt,
the time consideration seems to be more a factor for an entity
like this, which is proving sort of -- what I call ﬁlive»
deals.” Making the review process as streamlined as possible
should be an important con31derat10n ‘
| One question I have about thlS new entity is whether
or not the construct of the Capital Budgeting and Plann1ng
Commission  doesn't lend itself to  undertaking the
responsibilities_of this new entity? VThe.Commissionkdoes have
representation from the executive and legislative branches and
public members. Perhaps the role of the Commission could be
further broadened to include the powers of this new entity.

Could an Office of the Attorney General be established
which could determine if the proposed sales conform to
applicable 1laws and regulatlons, rather than a new entity or
even the Commission?

Some states have enacted appeals processes for firms
wh1ch believe they have not been treated fairly by the
selection process, to which the firms may avail themselves.
But it is my doubt that they actually do, becauSe’they fear
they may- be worse off in the next financing. The appeals
process also seems to be reactive, rather than proactive.
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~ A mechanism which oversees the procedures used in the
selection of underwriters, counsel, and financial advisers
would provide to these firms a proactive mechanism to ensure a
fair hearing. The underwriting ' community  and, more
importantly, the publié'may be more confident in the selection
process if there are articulated standards and oversight to
ensure that those standards are upheld.
_ ~ All of us in the municipal industry would like to see
the reputation ~of the industry restored. - Municipal
professionals working with officials throughout this nation
have made major contributions not only to the financing of this
country's infrastructure, but to the fiscal health of its
states and local governments. The infrastructure needs are
A.substantial throughout the nation, and a strong and credible
municipal market remains the most cost-effective way to finance
" those needs. ' |
That concludes.myrremarks. Thank you. .
SENATOR BUBBA: Thank you, Mr. Rich.
Before nur next'speaker—- ~Gerry -- Senator Cardinale,
do. you want to make a resolution prior to the next speaker?
SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes. While we have as many
members of the Committee here as we still do, and before people
begin to drift off, I would make a motion, Mr. Chairman, that
we refer the matter of the Lazard Freres' $2.1 million, or $2.5
million commission, in the case where Mr. Cobbs' group had
offered to do it for between $200,000 and $300,000, to the
NASD, which we have ‘learned today will invéstigate such
matters; that they investigate it to the extent that they are
capable of investigating it; and that they let us know what the
results of that investigation are. We  respectfully irequést
that they let us know what the results of that investigation
are. '
Prior to knowing that, I had intended to become a
| sponsor of legislation that would have barred Lazard Freres
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from doing business in the State of New Jersey for a period of
years, but I think thati since we know that there is an
investiQatory agehcy that can éonduct an investigation and give
us ‘some expert opinion, and appears Willing to do so, that
prior to the introduction of such legislation, I think it is
reasonébie to ask the NASD to investigate the matter for us.

I would make that in the form of a motion, Mr.
Chairman. _ _
’ " SENATOR BUBBA: I will entertain the motion.

SENATOR SCHLUTER: Second.
SENATOR BUBBA: Second.
SENATOR INVERSO: A Cdmment?
SENATOR BUBBA: Comment? |
SENATOR INVERSO: Yes. I am glad to hear that you
have takeh this approach, as opposed to the initial approach.
I think it would have been, perhaps, a bigger chore for us --
at least from my standpoint -- to vote to bar a firm like
Lazard Freres, or any other firm, just on the basis of the data
that is available to us, which is primarily data gleaned from
newspapers and from some testimbny today from Mr. Cobbs. I
have not been privy to the other testimony, but I do think the
disparity in the fee certainly raises doubt and the specter of’
~concern in my mind, and I would support the motion.
SENATOR BUBBA: Would you take the vote, please?
MR. CAPALBO (Committee Aide): Senator Schluter?
SENATOR SCHLUTER: Yes. | |
MR. CAPALBO: Senator Cardinale?
SENATOR CARDINALE: Yes.
MR. CAPALBO: Senator Inverso?
SENATOR INVERSO: Yes. ’
MR. CAPALBO: Senator Bubba?
SENATOR BUBBA: Yes. ' ,
"First of all, are there any questions of Mr. Rich?
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SENATOR INVERSO: Not a question, but I do have a
comment. vi thought your presentation was'very‘good. It wés on
target, as far as I was cbncerned, with regard to ‘what I
envisioned in terms of the restructuring and reformation, and
the. additional responsibilities I would 1like to see the
Commission obtain. _
| . I do think we have in place a structure with the
Commission that can be wused for not only capitdl needs
assessment and decisions in that regard, but in the debt
management area. I do appreciate, I do -- I am a CPA, and We
work with time 1lines all the time -- the importance.
Particularly in the area of 'funding, the response and
turnaround time has to be as short and as brief as possible.
That is the emphasis we are going to have to place on whatever
criteria we develop, because a ‘board or a commission we are
presuming to support to. do so, would have to'cbmply with the
criteria.

Thank you. o
‘ SENATOR BUBBA: Yes, Senator-- I made you a Senator,
Mr. Raphael. ‘
RICHARD RAPHAE L: That was a first. I appreciate
it. f '

-SENATOR BUBBA: I don't know, you may not.
. SENATOR INVERSO: Right, exactly. |

MR. RAPHAEL: Actually, the first for me was the
Student Centér at Drew UniverSity, and I am a resident now of
Maplewood, New Jersey. I am Rich Raphael, from Fitch Investors
Service. _ ,

A lot of mention has been made of Moody's ahd Standard
& Poor's. Fitch is another bond rating agency. Actually, it
has been around a very 1long time, I believe since 1913.
However, in the last three years, it has been recapitalized,
rejuvinated, and it has brought a 1lot of people in from all
~ over, including Clare Cohen, who is head of the Municipal
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Department, and also is the lead analyst in all state ratings.
Unfbrtuhately, she was not able to make it here today, and she
'sends her regrets. I am Managing Director of the Tax-Supported
Group for Local Units, and I work very closely with Clare. I
will proceed from there. ' ' '

Thank you very much for inviting Fitch to comment on
debt management and other related matters. Fitch considers
debt management, an implementation of appropriate controls, as
an important component of credit worthiness. ~ Long-range.
_capital planning is a desirable goal and an essential part of
good debt policy. An equally desirable goal is establishing
policy limits as to the affordability of tax-supported debt
relative to resources. . -

' Any 11m1ts set forth should be rea11st1c It should
be flexible enough to allow for unexpected occurrences, but not
~too loose as to be meaningless. Conversely, the limits should
not be too tight as to be too restrictive, 1leading to
circumvention, or doing indirectly what cannot be done
dirgétly. The limits should apply broadly to all forms of debt
supported 'by State taxation. This would include general
obligation‘bonds, and also State lease and contract financing.
This would include debt issued through the EDA, the Building
Authority, and other State authdritiés where debt repayment
derives from State tax revenues, and not specific hser baéed
enterprisé operations. Such enterprlse debt need not fall
under such affordab1l1ty calculations.

We recommend a range when setting debt limits, or at
least estab11sh1ng targets and upper limits. ‘New Jersey debt
ratios are considered very moderate at about 740 per capita,
and under-3 perCentAis expressed as a percentage of personal
income. I agree with Mr. Cobbs' statement, and others, that
the‘debt’is moderate and has not been the issue in terms of the
rating actions.  Expressed as a percehtage of personal
income-- State debt as a percentage of personal incomé
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.generally ranges on an average from 2 percent to 6 percent. By
comparison, Massachusetts and Connecticut are about 8 percent
and 9 percent, respectively. New York State 1is about 6
percent; California is a low 2.6 percent; and North Carolina
very low at less than 1 percent.

Debt Service, that is, the annual payment of principal
and interest measured " against general State revenues, is
another indicator used{ There are certainly other indicators
as well. whiChever'you>use, though,-it is preferable that the
limit take the form of a policy, and not as a statutory or a
constitutional 1limit, since it would be difficult to change if
they were no longer appropriate and circumstances changed over
time. , | _

Debt affordabilityrcah be an effective means of debt
management and control and hés been successfully ‘adopted in

such states as:  Maryland, Virginia, New Hampshire, and
Vermont. As mentioned, it does not encompass debt péyable for
nontaxed resources. - Some oversight, howe?er, | can be
advantageous 'in the scheduling and coordination of

nontax-supported debt to avoid competition in the marketplace‘
between various state borrowers. Some states have created
oversight boards to take a more active role in tax-supported
. debt issuance, such as in Texas, as mentioned, and Florida. In:
these states, tax-supported debt is incurred and payable from
specific departments. Therefore, ovérsight boards take on an
important centralization role.

In summary, methods and‘level of debt management vary
in each state. I have discussed the affordability approach and
have mentioned oversight boards and long-range capital plénning
-- multiyear dapital plans, which is very common'oh the local
level particularly." Legislative control 1is also exercised
through the bauthorization process by which agencies and
departments are giyen the authority to undertake capital
projects and enter into contractual types of financings. And
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"of course, the voters exercise ultimate control of general
obligation debt issuance. | | ‘

The methods you use to manage debt issuance should fit
your gbals and needs. From our standpoint, we look to see that
the policies and practices are cohesive and effective.

I will be giad.to'entertain any questions.

SENATOR BUBBA: Thank you.

Let us hear from Steven Elias. o
STEVEN ELIA S: Thank you for inviting me here; I do
have a prepared statement. | o _

My name is Steven Elias. I am President and CEO ' of
Municipal and Government Securities Corporation of New Jersey.
Our firm is a member of the NASD, as well as the New Jersey
Bureau of Securities. We have been located in Freehold, New'
Jersey since we opened in 1986. _ |

I have been in the municipal bond business as a
salesman, tradér,‘ and in the bperations area for over 20‘
years. While I Kknow our name is not nearly as well-known
throughout the industry as many of the other distinguished
firms'ih,attendance, we nonetheless have strong opinions about
the issuance of new bonds in New Jersey, as well as in
municipalities. o

First of all, it 1is our opinion that any attempt by
most smaller firms to solicit legitimate retail orders on new
issues is just ‘about a waste of tirﬁe. What is a 1legitimate
retail order?‘ Well, let me tell you what I believe it is not.
It is not an order by a hedge fund or trading account that
intends to do nothing more than play the market and sell the
securities right back on or before settlement date. It is not,
and ‘should never be, an order that does not get filled because
the underwriters want to hold the securities. for a market
move. A retail order, whether it be for five bonds or one
million bonds, should be considered first as a going-away order.
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Now, I realize that there are many institutional
accounts -- bond funds, pension funds, etc. -- that are very
legitimate accounts to which the underwriter should give
priority treatment when allotting these new issues. We realize
that these accounts are very large and helpbto properly bring
deals to market. On the other hand, if so-called hedge funds
and trading accounts get allotted lérge‘amounts of securities,
these are not going away, but coming right back into the market.

4 Many times we have seen a new issue that has been
oversubscribed and no more bonds were available, suddenly
reappear up in price. Amazing! I don't have an objection .to
any firm buying a portion of a deal for'inventory, but not at
the expense of an unfilled ;etail order.

With this in mind, I make the following suggdestions:

1) The name of any account that buys more than
250,000 of any securityvshould be made available to the State
Committee. This should be provided by every firm in the
underwriting. | . _'

'2) The amount of bonds purchased for'inventory by all
members - of the'kunderwriting should also be known to this
Committee. .
' Now, I know this recommendation is very radical, but-
it certainly would help to know why certain orders continually
go unfilled. '

On another matter, I strongly recommend that the book
entry system of issuance 6f_£ax—exempt bonds be discontinued in
New Jersey. This would avoid unneceséary monthly bfokerage
fees that many firms charge to maintain the accounts, as well
as late payments on interest to the customer that many times
have to wait for -the brokerage firm to receive the money. Of
coursé, we should also take under advisement that the market
has seen registered bonds outtrade book entry bbnds, thus a low
interest rate could be credited to the municipality bringing
this issue to market. | v

Thank you very much.
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'SENATOR INVERSO: May I ask a question of Mr. Elias?

SENATOR BUBBA: Surely. ’

SENATOR INVERSO: Why do you think--

MR. ELIAS: I'm sorry? ’ S

SENATOR INVERSO: I would like to ask you a gquestion.
This may be my lack of familiarity with the industry, but why
do you think your two proposalsbare so radical?

'MR. ELIAS: I'm SOrry, I do have a problem hearing.

. SENATOR INVERSO: Why do you think your two proposals
are so radical? - ' ' '
o MR. ELIAS: Well, I know how the industry kind of
looks wupon perhaps letting peopie know what accounts are
purchasing securities. I would consider them relatively
normal, but I vthink. the industry might consider them to be
rather radical.

My»problem has been, and has been ever since we opened
our firm in 1986, that any attempt to get involved in ahy new
issue has just been a waste of time, because our small orders
of 10, 20, and 30 bonds are never able to get filled until the
bonds are up in price. | »

SENATOR INVERSO: But your number one suggestion would
imply that if-- I can't afford $250,000, but Senator Bubba
can. If he bought $250,000, 'his name would be revealed by the
manager of the syndicate? . .

MR. ELIAS: Yes. The reason behind this is--

SENATOR INVERSO: Now, I guess there is a question of
privacy there? A .

MR. ELIAS: No, the reason behind this 1is  very
simple. If you are continually seeing XYZ Company putchasing,
or getting alldcated" a million bondé by one of the -
underwriters, 1lo and 'behold those bonds come back int; the
market on or before settlement date because the market ‘has

s

gy s . . \]
moved up. Now, these securities many times are either never
paid for or get delivered to a bank versus payment and . come
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right on back to the brokerage firm, where they have total
. control of the securities. ' o ‘

Now, a lot of Ehis type of dealing probably nevef gets
to this level, but the fact of the matter is, it is continually
happening. Consequently, the retail ordet is not gettihg
filled at the original price, and we are seeing the trading
accounts-- You know, we are talking about how compensation is
taking place, or overcompensation, or additional vcompensation
is being made to some of the underwriters. Well, here is an
area where the compensation is certainly beingv increased,
because they have total control of the securities. Perhaps the
day after the deal comes out the bonds ‘are up -a point in
price. Now, a point is a tremendous amount of money on these
deals. '

SENATOR BUBBA: Mr. "Elias, I have to interrupt you
here for a moment. -

I am going to turn this testimony over to the NASD --
yoﬂr testimony to the NASD -- and also any other regulatory.
bureau, because it is my understanding that no underwriter can
take bonds into inventory prior to retail orders being filled.
That is my understanding. Now, if that is happening, then you
ought to let the proper authoritiés know. That is number one.

| Secondly, you might have a point with respect to an
account that purchases "X" number of bohds}~ I don't thihk that
number is 250. Thete are certain regulations in the commodity
industry with respect to numbers of contracts. There are
certain limitations in the option industry with a certéih
number of contracts, so one or another person doesn't corner
the market. ' -
_ This isn't quite the same case that you are talking
about. However, I think what you're saying is that 1large
purchasers receive precedence over small purchasers. Generally

5 speaking in the industry, I think that is the case, and for
@ . .

77



good reason. However, maybe Ehat should ‘be looked into, but I
don't think it is within the realm of this Committee to look
into that. | |

MR. ELIAS: I don't think that is really the point I
was ‘trying to make. Without appearing to be stubborn on this,
my point is primarily geared towards the securities that are
really not purchased by a legitimate account. I am talking
about-- J '

SENATOR BUBBA: That is what I am interested in. It
is my underStanding that in an 'underwriting there is always
full disclosure; that the allocation in an underwriting  is
always disclosed. There is a pecking order of allocatiqn.
Now,'if you are saying that that pecking order of allocation
has been subverted by the bonds being held in one or another
hands, even for a short period of time to do whatever, I think
.what you are saying is that the bonds are being held for market
‘purposes for a period of time to make money off an increase, or
what have you. o ' .

' If that is occurring, Mr. Elias, I think that is in
absolute direct violation of Federal regulation. On that
basis, if you have information about those occurrences, I think
the NASD needs to know, or the MSRB, or whatever agency would
investigate that. ‘

Mr. Capalbo, I would ask that his testimony be given
over .to the Securities and Exchange'CommiSSion, so that they
might investigate those procedures. I don't think it is this
Committee's responsibility to investigate that. I would like
to, but I don't think it is. ,
| MR. ELIAS: I think where it may perhapsvbé involved
in this Committee -- and again, it is just a matter of the
different areas we have discussed, or heard discussedvtoééy -
whether it be in the matter of additional compensation-- Where
'did this firm which had $5000 in capital suddenly start to make
all this money? Well, it could very well be in these types--

78




SENATOR BUBBA: . Are you referring to the Salema case?
MR. ELIAS: That is correct. ,
SENATOR BUBBA:  All right. Well, that is under

investigation right now. I don't know if this Committee can
add to that. ’ | ' ’
Suffice it to say this: 1If something occurred there,

it will be dealt with and adjudicated by the proper means. But
I don't think the only guilty party in the history of this

‘State has been-- If Salema is guilty, I don't think he is the
only one that has ever-- N

| MR. ELIAS: That is correct. _ . -

SENATOR BUBBA: I want to be careful about how I say
this, because I am noE prejudging the Salema case, because I
know nothing about it. There have been occasions where other
people have received directed business--

MR. ELIAS: Understood..

SENATOR BUBBA: --of one or anotherrsbrt.

MR. ELIAS: Sure. ‘ '

SENATOR BUBBA: And I certainly don't think it is
exclusively this administration  or the previous
adminiétration. I think this has been going on for a 1long
time, and this is what we are addressing here.

Are there any other questions? (no response)

Thank you very'much for your testimony, and thank you
for being patient with us. ' o

Now, 1in deference to the pécking order of this
Committee, we will hear from Senator Smith, who has been very
patient with us, has sat through this whole meeting, and is on
our schedule. Senator Smith? ‘ _

SENATOR BRADFORD S. S MITH: Thank you.
| “HEARING REPORTER: Mr. Chairman?

SENATOR BUBBA: Yes?

HEARING REPORTER: Could you ask the Senator to hold
off for a-moment,‘please? (Senator Smith complies; pause for
setting up of additional microphone)
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. SENATOR BUBBA: While we are waiting, Senator Smith, I
want to place on the record that I met a fraternity friend of
yours, Walt Garner, yesterday.' He told me that he was in YOﬁr
college class. We worked together at -the telephone company
years ago. _ o - ,
SENATOR SMITH: Walter was, in fact, a pledge brother
of mine, if you know what that is like.

Mr. Chairman, thank you for having me here this
morning. - I made thé'mistake of coming a little earlier than I
was scheduled, but it is a mistake I am glad I made because I
found the testimony this morning to be extremely interesting,
and I am glad I had the opportuhity' to sit through it and
listen to it. .

I have proposed a piece of legislation which really--

It 'doesh't deal directly with fees or 'how bond business is
given out, but it deals directly with disclosure to the
taxpayers. As a matter of fact, yod could probably term the
bill the "Taxpayers' Debt Disclosure Act," if you wanted to put
a label on it. , '
. For yéars -- and I don't remember-- Someone testified
earlier today that back in the '70s all these bond issuesIWere
continually being defeated. I don't}remember that far back,
quite frankly. In my memory, it seems like just about every
bond issue that went on the ballot was pasSed, because the way
it was presented, it was always preSented in a very poéitive
fashion, and it simply Said what the amount of debt was
proposed to be for thev'particular' isSue, ‘"whether it was $30
million or $300 million. B

When I have gone into the voting booth to vote on
these bond issues, .I have often asked myself, "Gee, I wonder
what this is really going to»costvus. ‘You know, it says $30
million, or it says $300 million, but what is the cost'really
going to be?" So I started some discussions with OLS about
~having a more cbmplete disclosure on these ballot questions, so
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Statement of:
Hyman C. Grossman, Managing Director,
Standard & Pdor’s'Rating Group

N
A WL _
To: New Jersey State G})vernment Committee

October 19, 1993

We are pleased to be here this morning as part of your deliberations: concerning the state’s

overall debt issuance process. You have laid out the problem and background as follows:

The legislature has no sysfématic proﬁle for reviewing the state’s overall debt profile nor
planning for the state’s capita1 needs. In addition, the stzité legislature has not actively
~ participated in the overall process of debt management, planhing and procedures espeéially in
getting debt issues of treasury and other state entities to the financial markets. “In this resf&t,
the legislature has not met its respc;nsibilities to the people in it’s ultimate oversight

responsibilities. |

Strengthening The Commission On Capital Budgeting And Planning
You have on paper, at least the framework, for an effective oversight mechanism - that
is New Jersey’s Commission on Capital Budgeting and Planning. The Commission can be

strengthened by éssuring joint executive legislative‘representation with the majority and minority
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legislative leadership and a profess'ional staff. In some aspecte, its organization might be
patterned after the Office of Legislative Services. The commission currently is stattttorily'
responsible for reviewing the re(iuests for capital expenditures of the various state egeneies.
After the review process is completed, the commission prepares a state cépital improvement
plan, listing projects that are recommended to be financed as well‘ as their respectiire funding

sources. -

When asking t'or a copy of the Commission"s' last report in recent years, we have been told
: that it was either unavaxlable, mcomplete, or not worth. the bother. In testxmony before the Joint
Budget 0versrght Comrmttee last December 7, concerning the Treasury s planned large general
obligation refunding package, Treasurer Crane said (p.24 of transcript) - * We have no capital
appropriation effectively in the 93 budget, Senator. We really haven’t had what I wotlld call
a capitnl program in about four years of nny .measure, of any size to meet a,ny needs.”

Responding to Senator Lynch.

It is time to bring all debt having a burden on general state appropnauons under one
umbrella Measunng debt affordabxhty and capaclty needs to include not only direct state
| general obligation bonds but leases, the Transportation Trust Fund, Sports and Exhibition
| Authority, Economic Recovery Bonds and the many other entities whose debt and or operations,
have an impact on the state's own budget. Only by bﬁnging together annual debt semce
requirements for these rnany debt issuing entities, can yt)u develop‘an eppropﬁate measure for
debt capacity and affordability. Maryland and Georgia are two st_ates that quickly co_me to mind

when looking for better oversight of all state related entities; The Texas Bond Review Board
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is a formal entity that vneeds to approve all state related debt issuénce, including reasonableness |
for professional fees. The Public Authorities Cor,_ltrolb Board in New York State oversees a debt “
issuance calendar to avoid overloading the financial markets with supply, but has had little

 effectiveness in reviewing affordability.

Clearly, the New Jersey legislature and the Capital Budgeting and Planning Commission

can work effectively to achieve the necessary oversight.

Other Recent Events-Campaign Contributions

New Jersey can follow Florida’s example of almost three years ago. Governor Chiles by
executive order and then legislation, prohibited anyone doing business with any state agency
" from making any political contributions to or in behalf of any state-wide official. This alone

would solve 95% of any fecently perceived problems.
Strengthening legislative oversight and making the public aware of all of the state’s debt-
like commitments wﬂl make foi better budgetary decisionS having ldng-term financial

implications.

I'll do my best to answer any questions at this point.
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Thank you and good morning. My name is Gerry McBride. I
appear before you this morning in my capacity as Chairman 6f the
Public Securities Association (PSA) MunicipalFSecurities'
Division. I am also Executive Vice President,.Tax Exempﬁ‘
Division of Prudential Securities Incorporated. PSA is the
international trade Qrganizatidn of banks and securities firms
that underwrite and trade muhicipal securities, U.S. Government
_and agency securities, mortgage-backed securities and money -
‘market instruments. PSA’s member firms account for about 95

percent of the nation’s municipal securities activity.

The municipal securities market is the most important
'»capital fihancing mechanism available to state and local
.governments. Every day, states and localities issue millions of.
dollars of bonds — $235 billion total in 1992 — to finance abwide
=variety’of'public investment. Bondé are issued to build roads
and bridges, water and sewer systems, schools and other public
'buildings, airports,‘colleges and universities and public and
.non-profit hospitals, among many 6ther uses. The safety and
efficiency of the ﬁunicipal bond market help to enSure that
public borrowers are able to finance debt at the lowest poéSible

cost.

Municipal securities are one of the safest investment
vehicles'available to investors. Historical default rates among
municipal issuers are second lowest only to securities issued by

the U.S. government. However, recent allegations related to
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political influence in the market may cast doubt upon the safety
and‘aoundnéss of municipal sécurities as investments. PSA is
concérned that such a loss of confidence among investors, even if
unfounded, could lead to a significant loss of market liqnidity
and efficiency and ultimatelyvto higher financing costs for state
and-local'government borrowérs whc benefit from thé market.
Focnsing this Committee's attention On'municipal régulatory
issuas‘through this hearing wiil~help maintain public confidence

in such a vital market. We'are pleased to participate.

My testimony this morning will focus on roles of
underwriters and other participants in the market, competitive
and negotiated sales, the role of political contributions made by
mafket,participants to state and local‘elected‘officials and the

role' of such contributions in awarding business to firms.

_Pa:ﬁicipants in thé Financing Process

Like most industries, the municipal bond industry enlists
the various skills of many participants. Distinct parts are
played in the market by brokers, bankers, salesmen, traders,
underwriters, lawyers, financial advisors, accountants, state'and
local,goﬁernmental'treasurers and directors of finance, and
institutional and individual investors. But all are employed to
one end: to raise'money and to SQpport a secondary markét for

debt securities of state and local governmental units.
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" The starting point for anyvmunicipal secnrity is, of course,
the issuer. Municipal secufities‘are issued pursuant to expfess
~ state and local laws authorizing their issuance. -Moreover, each
new issue usually requires the approval of the legislative body
of the issuer. 1In the case of.genéral obligation bonds, approval
by voter referendum is often required. With the advent of many
kinds of revenue bonds, state and local governments have |

‘established many new governmental units to issue bonds.

Bond Counsel

Essentially every municipal security iésued is accompanied
by an opinion of bond counsel. That opinion add:esses the main
legal issues: that the bonds constitute legal, valid, and
‘binding Obligations of the issuer and thatvinterest on the bonds

is exempt from federal income taxation under applicable tax laws.

Financial Advisors

State and local governments may often seek the advice of a
financial advisor or other professional experts.~ Financial
advisors perform a variety of tasks} analyze the financing needs
of the community, structure an issue, help choose an underwriter
or organize a competitive sale, deal with the rating agencies,

and advise on other matters of importance.
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| Ass_mm_n_t;a
| The accountants conduct é professibnal examination and
verification of an iSSuer‘s financial statemehts for the pufpose
of rendering an opinion as to their fairness, éonsistency, and
coﬁformity with accounting principles.
'Engiﬁggring-ggnsglggngg

Engineering consultants perform feasibility studies on state
and local projects to ensure that the.projecté are capable of

beihg accomplished.

Rating Agencies
Beéause of the large nﬁmbef of different issues in the

"'mafketplace, bond ratings (or debt‘ratihgs) oftén play a greater
role in the municipal securities market than in the corporate |
market. The two dominant agencies in the ratings fieid are
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor's
Corporation. The agencies assign a rating to the issue which
_reflects the likelihood that the issuer will be able and willing
to support future debt service payments.
Bond I r

‘5The bond insurers analyze municipal'credits tovdetermine
‘their insurability. This involves evaluation of financial
reports, demographics, legal issues and feasibility studies.
Insured issues automatically‘:eceive one or more Triple-A rating,

thereby reducing the issuer's borrowing costs over the life of
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the issue. éond insurance helps bond issuers gain markét access,
éspecially if they are small or infreguent borrowers. VThé
muniCipal bond marketplace is dominated by individual investors
who value knowing that principal and interest payments will

,always be made in full.

nderwri

The enormous task of underwriting, marketing, and trading'.
municipai securities is undeftaken by the dealer departments of
commercial banks énd securities firms. A typical undefWriting
department employs one or more individuals whose'fuil-time
responsibilityvis tb'work on competitive and negqtiated‘
underwritings. These individuals are'primarily responsible for
setting prices and yields on‘the new issues their firm
underwrites each week. Underwriters work closely with traders
and salesmen to determine the marketability and appropriate
yields for anviésue. Traders maintain the secondary market for .
securities by actively buying bonds and'selling them to other
dealers and investoré in the secondary market. Dealer firms
frequently employ a large staff of salespeople‘who‘are
responsible fbr making direct cohtact with investors. They often
sit at the trading desks with the underWriters and traders and
attempt to arrange sales of securities duriﬁg the ﬁnderwriting of

a new issue.
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Thé senidr manager is the underwriter that serves as the
lead underwriter for an account. The senior managef generally
negotﬁates the'intérest_rate ahdipurchasé-price in a negotiated
transaction or serves as the genefator of.the‘consensus for the
interest rate and purchase price to be bid in a cbmpetitive
bidding situation.r The senior managef signs the contracts on
behalf of‘the account and generally recéives either a feé or

- slightly larger spread for its services in this capacity.

Investors

Three classes of .investors dominate’thevmunicipal"
marketplace} (1) retail, consisting of individualé acting
directly or through the agency of trust companies and investmeﬁt
counsel;.(Z) retail proxiés, that is, bond funds consisting of
managed closed-end funds, opeh-end funds,vand unit investment
-,Itruéts; and (3)'institﬁtidnal, partiéularly commercial banks and |
Iproperty and casualty insurance companies. The principal
,charactetistic of all'buyers of municipal bonds is that théy are
in a sufficiently high tax bracket that they can benefit from the

tax exemption.

Negotiated and Competitive Bid Process
Mﬁniéipal securities offerings are tYpically sold through
either a competitive or negotiated bidding process. The choice

of either type of sale is dependent on a variety of factors
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including credit considerations, issuer preference, and market

.conditions..

mpetiti Sales

Competitive bond sales are typically used for more
traditional offerings of municipal securities. The issuer will
typically work with a financial‘advisor to determine the
structufe and timing of the bond sale. The offering is then
‘advertised in financial publicaﬁions in order to notify muniéipal
dealers of the'terms'of_the offéring including information |
relating to structure, the time and date on which~bidding will

occur, and other details which are pertinent to the offering.

Municipal dealers will line up syndicates to bid on the
bonds. On the date of sale thevsyhdicates bidding for the bonds
will estimate the interest rates necessary to seil the bonds-to
investors and will then submit bids to the issuer or iﬁs agent.
The syndicate offering to purchase the bonds‘at the lowest yield
(or highest price) is named the winning bidder and upoén approval
by the issuer is awarded the bonds. The syndiéate then offers
the bonds to their customer accounts at established reoffering

yields.

ia Sal
Negotiated sales are‘typically used for bOnd offerings which
entail complicated financial planning and projeCt'management

considerations, such as refunding or revenue bond issues. The
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issuer will distribute a "Request for Pfoposal" (RFP)
solicitation which basically asks underwriters to submit their
qualifications and credentials. The issuer then reviewslthe RFP

responses and selects a senior manager team for the transaction.

. The senior mahager works with the issuer in order to
structure‘the financing plan for the bond sale. Tﬁe underwriter
provides a wide variety of'services'in conjunétion with the sale
incluaing pre-marketing efforts, investor_relation meetings,
'cfedit agency presentations, and other related marketing
services. The manager will also advise the-issﬁer on whenvthe
‘bonds should be offered for sale in order to take advantage of

optimal market interest rate conditioﬁs.

On the sale date the senior manager on the transaction will
price'the deal andAseek orders frqm interested investors.A After
demand for the bonds is evaluated the manager may change the
structure and/or‘size of ﬁhe deal in ordéf to meet investor
demand. The manager then sets the final termé df the offering
and pﬁrchases the bonds from the issuer. The manager also
provides a number of post sale services fér_thé issuer such as
’secondary market—méking activities and advice for lbng—term

capital projects.
Gross Underwriting Spreads

The "spread" is one of the most misunderstood aspects of the

municipal bond underwriting business. The gross underwriting
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spread is simply the dlfference between the offering prlce to the
publlc by the underwrlter and the purchase price the underwrlter
pays to the_issuer.. This spread includes all expenses incurred
by the dealer in bringing the bonds to market,'as well as any

profits earned on the deal.!l

Average‘underwriting'spreads in the municipal narket have
declined substantially since the early 1980's. Even thoughvnew
issuance of_munieipal securities'has increased steadily,
bincreased competition among‘underwfiters has caused spreads to
- remain subject to downward pressure. In 1985, the average gross
spread for all long-term municipal issues was $16.61 per $1,000
par value.‘ By 1992, gross spreads had fallen to $9.32 per
$1,000, a 43;8% reduction, The decline continued into 1993.
Gross spreads for all long-term municipals averaged $8.62 1in the

first half of 1993, a decline of 7.5% from the 1992 level.

1 components of the Spread

The gross spread has several components the management fee, underwriters'
risk, takedown and expense. These are explained below.

Management fee - This fee compensates managers for their work in structuring
negotiated issues. It is split among the entire management group based upon
percentages determined by the issuer. The senior manager that runs the book
typically receives a substantial portion of this fee. A
Underwriters' risk - This component compensates managers for market-related
risk involved in underwriting the issue and the use of the firms' capital. It
is split among the underwriters according to the percentage of part1c1pat10n
in the financing.

Takedown - This represents compensation for the cost of selling the securities
and increases with longer maturities. Takedown is apportloned on a per-bond
basis to any firm that actually sells bonds.

Expense - This is basically reimbursement of out- of-pocket expenses, such as
underwriters' counsel travel, syndicate expenses, DTC charges, dealer fees,
communication expenses and postage, etc. :
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Gross spreads of both negotiated and competitive issues have
eXpefienced declines since the early 1980's. This trend hés been
espeéially prohéuncedbfor'negotiatéd iésues,v In this category,
gross spreads have fallen frOm $l7.31 per $1,000Ain 1985 to $9.35
in 1992, a decliﬁe of 46%. The spfead for competitive issues,

" ‘meanwhile, had’erpped'from’le.79 per $1,000 in‘lQSSAto $8.99 in

1992, a 16.6% drop.

As with spreads on negotiated issues, spreads on competitive
issues have continued to narrow during the first half of 1993.
They averaged $8.64 per $1,000 in the first half of 1993 versus

" $8.99 in 1992.

The bottom line is that whether looking at competitive or
negotiated municipal issues; thevgross spread represents less
than one percent, a very reasonable rate for issuers of municipal

securities.

‘It is important to note that negotiated sales are very
"competitive"., As I previously nbted, uhderwritérs compete
Vigbroﬁsly fbr senior manager slots. PSA believes that the
elimination of negotiated sales as an élternative may ultimately

increase financing costs for issuers.
Political Contributions

Recent developments in the municipal market have focused

considerable attention on the role of political campaign
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contributions hade by securities firms, finanéial advisor? firms,
bond counsel firms, consulting firms, and other professionals
engaged in the municipal finance business to elected officials'
who can influence the awarding of service'éontracts related to

bond offerings.

. The problem of political contributions éhd perceptions about
the influence that contributions have on the decisions of public
officials go far beyond the municipal bond market. American
voters expect and deserve to hear the views and pdsitions of
candidates for public officé in order to make informed decisions,
and in the Ameriéan electoral system, the responsibility for
disseminating candidates’ positions falls to the éandidates
themselves. As elected officials, you know well that ruﬁning a
political campaign has become an extremely expensive undertaking,
one that, for most people, requires outside sources of funding.
In addition, all‘individuals, regardless of whether they work in
the municipal finance industry, have a civic right to influence
the politiéalvprocess and support céndidates of their choice by.

contributing to political ¢ampaigns.

After numerous meetings and discussions'with my colleagues
from across thé country,'it is clear to me that municipal
secu;ities dealers would like to see an end to political
contributions to publicrofficials as a factor, actual or
-apparent, -in the selection of underwriters, the maintenance of

business relationships or any other influence with respect to
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obtaining eecurities businese from public entities. The curreﬁt
prac:ice,‘where in some'jurisdictidns, contributions essentially
represene a fee to enter iﬁtehse and legitimate competitien for
busiﬁess — what has become known ae “pay to play” — must stop.
Mosejdealersvfreely admit‘that‘they make contributions to state-
and local'officiais'principally because their competition does
the same. Many dealers would welcome an outright ban on
contributions tolofficials that can influence the bond‘financiﬁg

process.

In general, political contributions made'by potential bond
underwriters, financial adviSOrs, bond counsel, engineers and
ethers do not serve as the basis for the final decision of an
iseuer as to which firms participate in an offering. Members of
Congress similarly aceept political contributions from
individuals and organizations with interests in the legislation
on which they work. However, contributions to Members of
Congress do not serve as the basis for their voting decisions on
particular legislation, in spite of general public perception.
‘Most state and local officials are generally concerned with one
primary and overriding goal in issuing debt: to secufe the lowest

cost pf borrowing for their tax- and rate-payers.

Nevertheless, the mere appearance of impropriety can have
devastating effects on public confidence in the municipal market.
For this reason, last‘July PSA proposed that issuers be required

to disclose political campaign contributions they receive from
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privépe—sector pérticipan;s‘in the municipal finaﬁce procesé. To
ensure ready access and minimiZe additional costs on any market .
participants, including issuers, PSA recommended that these
disclosures be filed with a centraiized repository capable of

‘disseminating the information in a useful format to the public.-

RecipientS'of political éontributions are best suited to
maké these disclosures because'énly they can be assured of
possessing all the relevant information. These disclosures
should cover contributions made by all underwriters and other
participants (1.e., financial advisors, attorneys, engineers,
accountants aﬁd}others) competing in the selection process for
roles in municipal securities offerings to any public official.
having influence ih that process. Everyone that does business
with a public entity should be covered..‘In addition to
contributions from corporate entities and partnerships,
contributions from>employée political action committees and from
officers, partners and employees of organizations competing in é

-municipal securities offering should be included.? Aall

‘We do not believe such information should be included in primary market
disclosure documents — official statements — because the disclosure PSA seeks
should encompass market participants who are not participating in any specific
bond offering (those who competed but did not secure positions related to the
underwriting, for example). 1In any case, information related to political
contributions is principally of interest to taxpayers and the public at large,
not merely to investors. PSA would not object, however, to a requirement that
reference be made in official statements to where information regarding
political contrlbutlons can be obtained, such as at a specified central
repository. . ‘ :

31t is understood that in many states this will require elected officials to
obtain more information about the employer, business sector and professional
‘responsibilities of campaign contributors than is currently requlred by state
law. While all states and the District of Columbia already require that
recipients of election campaign contributions for state office report these
contributions through filings with designated state officials, less than a
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participants should also be requiied to disclose potential
conflicts of interest. It is likely that thé appropriate
regnlatory and enforcement agencies would require legislative
authority to requirefsuch disclosure. PSA would strongly support

such‘legislation.

The‘Municipal Securitiés-Rulemaking Board (MSRB) recently
issusd for public comment draft rule G-37 related to political
contributions made by mnnicipal underwriting firms to state and"
local officials. This week, PSA submitted formal comment to the
MSRB on that'rule; A copy of our comment letter is availabie for
your review. In our letter,_We point out what in our opinion are
serious problems thst,would make it extremely difficult for
dealeis to‘interpret and comply with the MSRB’s proposal. PSA'’'s
members agree with the general principle espoused by the MSRB
that political contributions made solely for the purpose of
Vsécuring or retaining business with a state or local issuer are
improper‘and should not be.permitted. However, complying with .

the proposed rule would prove onerous.

First, we are concerned that by banning only contributions
made to solicit or retain busineSS, the rule would result in.
vconsiderable'confusion?as to which contributions were permitted

and which were not. 1In addition, the rule would require dealers

third require that occupation and business of the contributor be included in
the filing. Federal Election Commission, Campaign Finance 92, current through
December 1991.
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to prove that certain contributions were madé for reasons other
than to solicit underwriting business, an onerous burden of
proof. It would also esséntially prohibit municipal finance
firms and their employees from contributing to certain political
campaigns for civic or other non-business reasons if the
candidate in Question could conceiVably influenéé'decisions on a
bond offering where the firm does business. Such a prohibi:ion‘
would raise serious questions regarding the ability of municipal
bond professionals to exercisevtheir civic rights to support
political candidates and éould be challenged‘on éonstitutional

grounds.

In order to address problems'with the interprétation,
compliance and. enforcement of the proposed rule, PSA recommended
‘in its commenté to the MSRB that for the purpose of thebrule,
totél annual contributions below some de minimis amount, on the
order of $100 to $250 per candidate per year, be deemed too small
to influence the decisions of state and local officials. ‘Such
contributions WOuld be permitted regardless of the relationship
between a firm or its employees and a candidate. Donors would
not be required to demonstrate that such contributions were not
made to secure or retain business. In addition, in order to
prevent firms from skirting the spirit of the rule by “bundling”
~several contributions to é single candidate, a separate, annual,
per-candidate limit wbuld be established to be applied to all |

contributions from a firm and its municipal finance employees.
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In. its comménts to the MSRB, PSA'suggested that the MSRB
redefine to whom limitations and reporting rules should apply.
PSA believes that limitations and reporting requifements should
apply only to mﬁnicipai_finance peressionalS'engaged in the
'solicitation and‘conduét of municipal finance business and theif
direét supervisors, up to and including the CEOs of firms.
However, using other employeés of firms‘as conduits for political
contfibutions’intended to influence municipal finance decisions
should be explicitly prohibited. ?inally, we"recomménded'that
whatever limitations are finally imposéd on“muhicipal dealers
also be épplied to other private—seétor partiéipants who are

engaged in the municipal finance business.

We are also concerned about the potential exposurevof firms
to liébility as a reéult of the lack of clarity in the proposed
rule. In light of the August 1993 MSRB release, political
contributions made today, before the issue is resolved, could be
found to be in violation of existing MSRB rules, and such rules
couid be enforced by the NASD, banking regulators or the SEC.
Therefore, PSA has recommended'to.its members that, in order to
mitigate the risk of such liability;vuntil a clear and final
regulatofy policy with regard to'political contributions is
decided, each firm institute a moratorium on all political
cqntributions by municipal finance professionals and theif
supefvisors to.state and local officials or to‘candidates'for

such offices in jurisdictions where they currently do or expect
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to do municipal finance business, and refrain from directing

other employees to donate to such officials or candidates.

Finally, és statedﬂabove, we are also concerned ;hét,
_because the MSRB’s jurisdiction does not extend to bond counsel,
‘financial advisors, consulting endgineers, acc0untant5'and‘others
thét,participate in bond offerings, the contribution 1imitations
and disclosure provided under the proposal would be incomplete
and misleading. The non-dealer partiéipants in the municipal
finance industry all compete for business awardedxby state and
local officials. These non-dealers aléo pa;ticipate actively'in_
‘the politicél process at the state and local level. PSA belieyes
that new political contribution limitatiohs'and disclosure
requirements applicable_to dealers should apply to all other
participants in a municipal bond iésue. The only parties in a
position to provide such comprehénsive disclosure of politicél
contributions are the recipients of such contributions‘
themSeives. "For this reason, PSA recommends that state and local
candidates and incumbents who can potentially influence the award
of municipal finance business be required to disclose political
contributions received from all participants in the mgnicipal
finande process. If legislation is deémed necesséry tb implemeht
such a requirement, wé urge Congress to consider and pass such a

bill promptly.



(o
",

We believe that the municipal securities market continues to

- play an important role ih raising the necessary capital forvétate
and local governments across the nation. The market is efficient
and' continues to function wéll. Restrictions on the use of
negotiatéd sales may ultimately result in increasihg, rather than
decreasiné, the_coét of financing for'iSSuers ofvmunicipal

securities.

Promuigation of the regulationS’recommehded,here may in
itself serve to mcderate‘excesses in political campaign
coﬁtributions. It is in the'interests bf issuers and hembefs.of
the muniéipal finance cdmmunity td preéerve publié confidence in
the municipal sécurities market. PSA believes that promulgation
of ;hese regulations will accomplishAthisigoal, and we look
forward to working with this Committee, Congress, the SEC, bond
issuers and others in that regard..:Thank yvou for the opportunity

to present our views.
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Statement of Steven H. Hoghman
- Assistant Director of State Ratings, Moody's Investors Service

presented to the State Senate Govsrnient Committes,
- New Jersey State Leglslature ‘

October 19, 1993

Mr. Chairman and members of the committes, | would|like to thank you for
inviting ma 1o offer testimony on the Issuance of bondg by the state. Because of
a prior commitment, | am unable to do so in person, byt | am offering these
written comments in response to your invitation.

| am the Asslstant Director of State Ratings for Moody's Investors Service. The
~ State Ratings Group Is responsible for conducting the fesearch in suppon of
ratmgs asslgned to state government obngatlons .

The 1980s was the decade of debt. The federal goverhment, private
corporations, and Indlviduals incurred huge amounts of new debt to finance
deficit spending, leveraged buyouts, and consumer spending. According to the
Federal Reserve Board of New York, the debt of housgholds, businesses, and

- the federal government grew by fivefold or more from {880 through 1892. This
huge bulldup of debt Is viewed by many as a burden that even In today's low
Interast rate environment is Inhibiting growth and econpmic recovery.

Through this perlod, state debt also grew, atthough much more modestly. As the
economic recession of the late 1980s and 18808 reduded state revenue growth,
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some states turned to debt as a way to address spen
minimizing their Impact on taxes and new revenus so

Some states bonded out deficits, and some dacrease
component of their capital spending plans, substitutin
states turned to public authoritles to finance and admi
previously were state general fund and state agency

.....
RO

ing pressures whlle
rces.

the pay-as-you-go
debt financing. Some -
Ister programs that
sponglibliities. Some

turned to back-bonding and asset sales and refinanclngs to generate short term
cash and avold the need for draconlan spending cuts pr unpopular tax '
Increases. Some states did more than one of these iH{ings, and at least one

state has done all of these things, and more.

Nonetheless, overall, states have been remarkably re

ponsible and conservative

In their use of debt. During the period from 1882 to 1§83, Moody's median ratio

of state debt to personal Income actually declined fro
that state debt obligations relative to their wealth and
disproportionately during this parlod of rapld debt bulk#
~ government, private corporations, and households. Irﬁ

corresponding ratlo, which was 3.0% In 1884, was st 3
~ other states, New Jersey's ratio had dropped in the 1
- the early 1990s).

. The creation of debt management and atfordabllity cor
-and the discussion and establishment of debt limitatior
a sansltivity to proper use of debt for public sector cap
most parnt, have managed their debt prudently and con
abuse

‘States malintaln a very high and respected status amo
gsuers of all types. The rating distribution for states |

£

2.5% t0 2.2%, showing

'esources did not grow

up by the federal

New Jersey, the ’
3.0% In 1883. (As in most

Os before rising again In

hmittees In some states

8 In others, have created
tal needs. States, for the

sarvatively and avolded

g government debt

exiremely positive: 33 of

the 41 states that Issue general obligation bonds are clrrently rated Aa or better.
‘This pattem Is reflective of the scope of economlc resqurces available to states
and thelr soverelgnty over tax structures. However, It {s also Indicative of the
quality and professionalism of state budgeting and delfit managers and the

effor_ts that are made to balance capital needs with the

Rethinking borrowing practices to better plan and cont
debt is an Important priority in light of the many claims
resources. Over the last five years, most of the states
experlenced severe economic and financlal strain. Du

prudent use of debt.

ol the Issuance of state
gainst limited state -
in the nation have

fing this period many

states elther strengthened existing debt affordabllity plans (Maryland Delaware) :

or established new ones (Texas, Virginla).

While Moody's Investors Service recognizes that makls
state debt Is an Important policy initiative, It I8 the *resy

) plans to better manage
te® of debt management -
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- long term balance and ﬂscal stabliity -- that remain no primary determinants of
a good credit rating. |

Hallngs, as most of you know, are arrived at through the analysis of four factors;
the economy, financlal operations, administrative or gbvernmental factors, and

- debt, the subject of today's sesslon. In reviewing deb}, ‘we at Moody's look to-
several guldeposts which we complle and publish,

First, we add up a state's net tax-supported debt," wHich Includes all debt
obligations met from tax and other genaral revenue squrces, regardless of who
the Issuer Is. Self-supporting debt from enterprige act|vities, sinking funds and
debt supported by other entities Is excluded from this Letermlnatlon But specilal

tax debt issued, for example, for hlghway purposes, lsase debt and similar
commitments |g counted.

Tax-supported debt is then evaluated In terms of lis stfucture, maturity, pledged
sources of repayment, and any unusual features which need further study. We
also attempt to measure the burden which the debt puls on the state's resources
by considering debt per capita, debt as a percent of parsonal Income, and a new
measure, debt service as a percent of annual budgete revenues. In order to

assess the relative burden, we calculate medians of tl & measures for the 60
.states _

The latest measure we have daveloped seeks to gaug the stress debt servlce
Imposes on a state's revenues. A debt service ratio bglow 2% of revenuses |s
low, the mid-range Is between 2% and 5%, and levels pver 5% are high, with the
upper limit currently measured at 11%. Collectively, these measures gauge the
ability of a state's economic resources as well as budgstary resources to support
its debt when placed In the context of other states' eff ns.

In reviewing these measures, Moody's does not rely o fixed, rigid rules. Rather,
these ratlos are considered In an overall assessment of what most states find

affordable, glven other expenditure priorities and the nped to maintain budget
balanca

In our discusslons with states on debt management, w considar the overall
budget position and think of atfordabllity not just in terms of debt service
obligation, but also In the context of the larger cperating requirements which may
be aesoolated with caphtal pro]ects

Improving ths linkage between capltal borrowing and It attendant operatlng
requirements Is an Important area. Long after the bongs Issued for facliitles
such as prisons are paid, operating and meaintenance rpquirements will continue.
Careful planning to ensure that faclitles and program Iyitlatives can be sustained

by avallable resources Is pan of good debt and financigl management.
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-Debt limits provide Important guidance to a state In pfeparing Its capltal program
“and debt Issuance plan. For a limit to be affective it ghould be comprehensive in
‘coverage, Including all tax-supported debt, and k sholid impose reasonable
budgetary disclpline to limit debt to an affordable leve]. But the limit should algso
not be 80 restrictive that it invites the kind of "back-dopr® financings that now
characterlze some states' debt structures. |

Debt management must be meaningful In establishing reasonable limits to the
~Issuance of debt while providing a floxible means to fihance the state's capital

- needs. The fifty states provide a spectrum of approaghes to debt Issuance and
management, and the structure and amount of debt must address the paricular
needs of each state. In this way, propar debt managdment can help achleve
annual budget balance and long-term structural balante, key ingredients for a
high quality credit. - _ .

sooeENDeee
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Chapter 43, Laws of Marylend, 1978 (currently State Finance and
Procurement Article, Section 8-104, et seg.), created a Capital Debt
. Affordability Committee. This Committee is required to submit to the
Governcr and the General Assembly an estimate of the maximum amourt of new
general obligation debt that prudently may be authorized. Pursuant to
Chapter 93, Laws of Maryland 1989, relating to higher education debt, the
Committee is also submitting an estimate of the amount of new bonds for
academic facilities that prudently may be authorized. -

We are pleased to present to you for your consideration our annual
. report, with recommendations relating to the fiscal 1995 capital program.

(_/Louis L. Goldstein O J /ﬁighthl tary
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Capital Debt Affordability Committee, established by
Chapter 43 of the Laws of Maryland 1978, is required to review
‘annually the size and condition of the State debt and to submit
to the Governor and the General Assembly an estimate of the
maximum amount of new general obligation debt that prudently may
- be authorized for the next fiscal year. Pursuant to Chapter 93,
Laws of Maryland 1989, relating to higher education debt, the
Committee is also required to submit an estimate of the amount of
new bonds for academic fac111t1es that prudently may be :
authorized.

During its 1993 meetings, the Committee addressed a number
of other related issues in addition to developing its primary
recommendation with respect to general obligation authorizations
and authorizations for higher education academic facilities. The
Committee conducted its usual affordability risk analysis -- the
risk that subsequent events might absorb the projected unused
debt capacity. The Committee also discussed the possibility of
including the Baltimore City Community College in their charge.

Consistent with the affordability risk analysis, the
Committee recommends a $380 million limit for new general
obligation debt authorizations by the 1994 General Assembly to
support the fiscal 1995 capital program (page 32). This $380
‘million recommended level reflects a revised personal income
base. The Committee's projections for the following five years
continue to reflect the 3% annual increase adopted last year, an
inflation rate of 2% plus 1% real growth. Actual and revised
personal income data have provided a higher base than was
anticipated last year. The recommended $380 million level
represents a 3% increase over the $370 million that had been
originally contemplated as last year's recommendatlon before that

recommendatlon was reduced.

_ This year, unllke last year, the affordability capacity

provides a modest margin for contingencies. The Committee
formally’evaluated the risk of piercing the affordability
criteria if various components of tax supported debt were
expanded.

The four basic risk components were analyzed and four
~conclusions reached. It was concluded that (a) while the
Committee believes the current projections of personal income
adequately discount the effect of economic condltlons, there
still remains some risk that growth in personal income may not
achieve even the modest growth rates assumed; (b) although
changes in standards of outside entities, such as rating
agencies, regarding the components of tax supported debt could
have a major impact on measured affordability, such changes are

i



apt to occur with sufficient lead time for the Committee to -
‘adjust the program of authorizations; (c) no real risk exists _
resulting from changes within the general obligation capital plan
unless specific action is taken either by the Committee or the
General Assembly to alter the program of authorizations; and (4)
while changes in the issuance plans for other new or altered
components of tax supported debt have generally presented the
greatest risk to the eventual affordability of a specific.five
year program, the only known change at this time is one with a
positive effect on affordability (the possibility of refundlng
addltlonal series of County Transportation Bonds).

Last year, potent1a1 changes in the issuance plans of other
components of tax supported debt included the structure of the
County Transportation Bond program, a convention center bond
program, and the cost of a new football stadium. A new program
was authorized for county transportation projects, and a
combination of general obligation and revenue bonds was
authorized for the convention center; both have been incorporated
into the base analysis. The Stadium Authorlty is committed to
funding the football stadium without .any increase in
authorizations for revenue bonds; that potential change,
therefore, was not considered an affordability risk.

The Committee reviewed and analyzed higher education debt to
derive its recommendation of new bonds for academic debt in
keeping with the charge enacted in 1989. The proposed capital
financing programs of the three systems result in a debt burden
level well below the established threshold and generally below
last year's level. The Committee reached the same conclusion as
last year, that there is no basis to deviate from the academic
debt programs proposed by each of the systems as long as those
programs result in prudent levels of debt. The committee
recommends a limit of $40 million of new bonds for academic
facilities that prudently may be authorized in the aggregate for
the next fiscal year. This amount represents financing of
academic facilities by the University of Maryland (page 53).

The Commlttee considered the issue of including the
Baltimore City Community College in its statutory charge.  While
the Committee's broad scope embraces any unit of State
government, the Committee believes that the community college
" should not be excluded from specific mention. Because BCCC does
not have the authority to issue bonds for academic facilities,
BCCC would not be included in the Committee's higher education
recommendation, but the Committee recommends that the Baltimore
- City Community College be added to the specific listing of higher
education institutions suhject to review by the Committee
(page 54). ~

ii
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- I. INTRODUCTION

A. Background

The creation of the Capital Debt Affordability Committee was
an outgrowth of two events: the dramatic increase in outstanding
debt during the mid-1970's and the release of the Department of
Fiscal Services' two year study on the State's debt picture,
titled "An Analysis and Evaluation of the State of Maryland's
A Long—Term Debt: 1958 - 1988." .

In response to this study and the rising level of State
debt, the 1978 session of the General Assembly enacted the
current State Finance and Procurement Article, Section 8-104, et
seg., which created the Committee as a unit of the Executive :
Department. The members currently are the Treasurer (Chair), the
Comptroller, the Secretaries of the departments of Budget and
Fiscal Planning and Transportation, and one person appointed by
the Governor. The Committee is required to review the size and
~condition of the State debt on a continuing basis and to submit
to the Governor, by September 10 of each year, an estimate of the

total amount of new general obligation debt that prudently may be

authorized for the next fiscal year. Although the Committee's
estimates are advisory only, the Governor is required to give due
consideration to the Committee's findings in determining the
‘total authorizations of new State debt and in preparing a
preliminary allocation for the next fiscal year. The Committee
'is reguired to consider: : :

- The amount of general obligation debt that will be

outstanding and authorized but unissued during the next .

fiscal year;

-  The capital program and the capital 1mprovemen* and
' school constructlon needs during the next five fiscal
years;

L - Pro;ected debt service requlrements for the next ten
. years;

- » Criteria establlshed or used by recognized bond rating
agencies in Judglng the quality of State bond issues;

- Other factorS’relevant to the ability of the State to
meet its projected debt se¥vice requirements for the
next five years or relevant to the marketability of -
State bonds; and

- The effect of new authorlzatlons on each of the factors
enumerated above.
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In addition to these tasks, the Committee has generally
reviewed, and made recommendations concerning, other types of
publlc debt issued by State or State-created authorltles or
agenc1es. .

In keeping with a narrow interpretation of its statutory
charge, the Committee's efforts through 1986 focused mainly on
" bringing the State's general obligation debt in line with certain
parameters. In 1987, however, the Committee began to adopt a
more comprehensive view of State debt that included all tax
supported debt in addition to general obligation debt.

, The main basis for adopting this broader view was that the
rating agencies and investment community take a more
comprehensive view of a state's debt when analyzing that state's
'obligations. Many discussions with rating analysts over several
years in conjunction with the reviews associated with the sav1ngs
and loan program and concerning stadia and infrastructure
financing all indicated that rating analysts were interested in
all tax supported debt. Summaries of rating agency reports
indicate that the measure of debt used is "net tax supported
debt" - the sum of general obligation debt, consolidated and
county transportation debt (net of sinking funds), capltal lease
commitments, and bond anticipation notes.

A second reason for adopting a more comprehensive view of
debt was that other forms of long-term commitments were becoming
more common. Lease, particularly lease purchase, obligations
were at least more visible, if not more widely used. The bonds
to be issued by the Maryland Stadium Authority for the Baltimore
stadia were to be supported by lease arrangements; the State had
consolidated a significant amount of equipment lease obligations;
and the Motor Vehicle Administration was using the capital lease
method for expanding or relocating its service center network.
Although these leases do not represent debt in the constitutional
sense, any default on these leases would be viewed by the market
in the same light as a default on State bonds.

) This broader view was ultimately codified and included in
the Committee's statutory charge by Chapter 241 Laws of
" Marvland, 1989.

The 1989 General Assembly further expanded the Committee‘s
charge as part of legislation relating to higher education debt -
(Chapter 93, Laws of Maryland, 1989). As enacted, the statute
directs the Committee to review on a continuing basis the size
and condition of any debt of the University of Maryland System, :
Morgan State University, and St. Mary's College of Maryland; take
any debt issued for academic facilities into account as part of
- the Committee's affordability analysis with respect to the
estimate of new authorizations of general obligation debt; and,
finally, to submit to the Governor and the General Assembly an

5
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estimate of the amount of new bonds for academic facilities -
that prudently may be authorized in the aggregate for the
next fiscal year by the Unlver51ty of Maryland System, Morgan
‘State University, and St. Mary's College of Maryland.

B. 1992 Reqommendatigns and Subseguent Events

The following lists the recommendations of the 1992 Capital
Debt Affordability Committee and subsequent events related to
those recommendations.

o The Committee recommended that new authorizations of general
obligation debt should be limited to $350 million.

: ....The 1993 General Assembly authorized $370 million of new

general obligation debt, which includes $20 million for the

_ Convention Center. 1In addition to the $370 million, $30 million

"in general obligation bond funding for the Convention Center was

authorized with an effective date of June 1, 1995. See II.E.

‘Maryland Stadium Authority for a discussion of the Convention
Center funding and V. Other Issues for a dlscu551on of the effect

- of the delayed authorlzatlon. :

o The Committee recommended that new authorizations for academic
facilities at the three university systems should be limited to
an aggregate of $40 million. :

....The 1993 General Assembly authorized new academlc

- facility bonds to be issued by the University of Maryland System
in the amount of $24.455 million for a variety of capital
projects, the largest of which was $4.127 million for a new
campus maintenance facility at the University of Maryland
Baltimore County. No academic bonds or projects were authorlzed
for the other two un1vers1ty systems. _

Ke) The Committee recommended that the State's liability for
future issues of County Transportation Bonds should be eliminated
and an alternative be prov1ded that embodles ‘the key aspects of
the program.

...Legislation was enacted that establishes a financing
program to enable the counties to finance the cost of
transportation facilities without the issuance of State or
Department of Transportation debt. See V. Other Issues for a
more
detailed dlscuss1on of the County Transportatlon Bond program.

o In addltlon to authorlzlng bonds to finance academic
facilities in the amount of $24.5 million, Chapter 372 increased
the maximum allowable net amount of debt outstanding for the

~ University of Maryland System from $542.7 million to $605.6

-3
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million. The maximums for Morgan State University and St. Mary's
‘College of Maryland remain unchanged (at $28 million and $15
million, respectively).

o Legislation enacted last year authorized the General Assembly
to establish in the State budget each year the maximum allowable
Consolidated Transportation Bonds outstanding for each next
fiscal year (limited to an overall maximum aggregate of $1.2
billion). The fiscal 1994 budget contains language limiting to
$1.025 billion the amount outstanding at June 30, 1994. See V.
Other Issues for a discussion of language in the Joint Chairmen's
Report relating to the amount of consolidated bonds issued.
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II. TAX SUPPORTED DEBT - TRENDS AND OUTLOOK

‘The State of Maryland has issued in recent years five types
of tax supported debt: (1) general obligation debt, which
pledges the full faith and credit of the State; (2) bonds and
notes issued by the Department of Transportation and backed by
the operating revenues and pledged taxes of the Department; (3)
Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) issued in support of the savings
and loan program; (4) capital leases; and (5) revenue bonds :
issued by the Maryland Stadlum Authority secured by a lease with
the State. . _

Al General Obligation Bonds

_ *Structure. General okligation bonds are authorized and
issued to provide funds for general construction of, and cap1tal
improvements to, State-owned facilities, including instltutlons
of higher education; grants to local educational authorities for
construction of, and capital improvements tc, public schools; and
financial assistance in the form of both repayable loans and
grants to local gcvernments and the private sector for special
capital projects where a State interest or need has bkeen
demonstrated. Financial assistance to local governmenrts and the
private sector is provided for capital projects related to water
~qguality 1mprovemerts, jails and detention facilities, community
colleges, economic development, nursing home constructior,
community health facilities, historic preservation, p*lvate
- higher educaticn, and other communlty projects.

Trends in Cutstandine General Obligation Dekt. Both Grarh 1
and the fb¢10u¢‘v ter_c¢ Qepict the substantial growth between
1966 and 197¢ in the Steate's gencral okiigation debt. During the
1971-1978 perlod,.the growth 1in general obligatior dek:
accelerated principally as a result of the large authorizations
for State Public School Construction Loans (SPSCL) maZe during
‘the 1971-1975 sessions of the General Assembly after the State
assumecd in 1271 an expanded role in financing the construction of
new elementary and secondary schools. Between 1978 and 1987 the
level of authorizations and issuances, particularly
authorizations and issuances of SPSCL bonds, fell substantially;
and, consequently, the level of outstanding debt grew modestly
and then declined. Since 1987, the level of new authorizations
and issuances has increased 51gn1f1cantly, redemptions have
dropped dramatically and, as a result, the level of outstanding
general obligation debt has stopped decllnlng and resumed
growing.
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(thbusands)

Average Annual . Average Annual
Fiscal General Obligation Debt SPSCL Debt
Period Authorized - Issued Authorized Issued
1966-1970 $180,905 - - $80,104 $ -0- . '$ -0-
1971-1978 316,540 - 270,747 | 152,250 122,374
1979-1987 '211,509 18},006 42,033 1 57,172
1988-1993 321,103 266 047 : - 59, 800’ 61,927

As deplcted in Graph 2, adJusted general obllgatlon debt
service grew annually from a level of $24 million in fiscal 1966
to $408 million in fiscal 1986 and then declined to $324 million
in fiscal 1993. Adjusted general obligation debt service
represents the burden on the general fund and State property tax
for debt service. Adjusted debt service is total principal and
interest payments on general obligation bonds with two o
adjustments, both of which are related to the fundlng of 1oca1
public schools. First, general obligation debt service is
reduced by the amount of debt service on "repayable" loans that
is recovered by the State from the local subdivisions on the
loans, principally loans to local governments for the
construction of local schools under the General Public School
Construction Program (GPSCL). (Typically, this repayment is made
in advance of the payment due date of the related debt service.)
Second, general obligation debt service is increased by the
amount of non-State local schocl debt service that was assumed by
the State in 1971 with the advent of the new school construction

program

Also depicted in Graph 2 is the dramatically increasing
‘reliance on general funds to support general obligation debt
service from 1971 to 1986. After increasing to $270.9 millicn in
fiscal 1986, the general fund requirement has fallen to a low of
$116.5 million in fiscal 1993. While State property taxes are
constitutionally pledged to the payment of debt service, it has
been the State policy for many years to maintain a stable
property tax rate and rely on general funds, appropriated either
to the Annuity Bond Fund or to the Aid to Education program of
the State Department of Education, to provide the majority of
funding for general obligation debt service. In fiscal 1966,
property tax revenues provided the funding for 89% of the general
obligation debt service; by fiscal 1986, property taxes provided
only 27%. By fiscal 1993, the share of property taxes had
increased to 64% as the property taxes continued to grow while
the debt service required dropped 20%.
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The growth in debt service (Graph 2) reflects both the
increase in debt outstanding through 1978 (Graph 1) and dramatic

- increases in interest rates in the early eighties. Graph 3 .

depicts the average interest rates paid on State general
obligation debt (derived by dividing interest paid in a fiscal
year by the average debt outstanding durlng that year) and the
average rates of interest incurred on new issues during each
fiscal year. The average interest rate paid on outstanding debt
ranges from a low of 2.75% in fiscal 1966 to a high of 7.26% in

- fiscal 1987. The average of interest rates on all new issues
during a year ranged from a low of 3.25% in 1966 to a high of
10.27% in 1982; most recently, it was 5.24% in fiscal 1993 -- the
lowest since 1979.

Capital Program Structure The State's annual capital
program includes projects funded from State general funds, State.
general obllgatlon bonds, certain special and federal funds
appropriated in the State's annual operating budget, and bonds
"and other financing obligations issued by State agencies .
including the Department cf Transportation and higher education
systems.-

The general obligation bond-financed portion of the capital
program consists cof an annual Maryland Consolidated Carital Bond
Loan (MCCBL) and other initiatives. The MCCBL is a consolidation
of projects formerly authorized by the general construction loans
and various Administration-sponsored bond bills. The general
construction loan projects are typically State-owned. The
Administration-sponsored bond bills typically authorize capital
grants and loans for locally-owned projects.

Genersl cobligation bond funds have traditionally beern
supplemented with Stzte general fund capital appropriatioris
authorized in the annual operating budget. The use of operating
funas te firance capital projects can reduce debt icssuance éas
well as expand capital programs. The use of operating budget ,
funds, moreover, enables the State to avoid unnecessary expenses
or burdensome prohibitions associated with compliance with
restrictive federali statutes. For example, the Tax Reform Act of
1986 imposes certain constraints that either limit the degree of
tax eXemption or restrict arbitrage earnings for bonds issued to
~establish insurance reserves, subsidize industrial development,
or provide the eguity contribution to a revolving fund such as
the Maryland Water Quality Financing Fund.

Although the State's policy may be to pfovide’additional
capital funding in the operating budget, the financial reality is

that in certain years the operating budget does not have the
‘flexibility to fund a significant share of the capital program.

13

¢ax



XgEN

12.0 %

0.0

Average Interest Rates
~on General Obligation Debt

-
b
_—
-
_—
b—
—_—

i967 1969 11971 1973 975
| | | '  Fiscal Year

€ HIv3D

i977 {979 981 1983 1986 {987 1989 i99i 1993



For example, for fiscal year 1990, the general fund capital
appropriation (PAYGO) was $212 million; for fiscal year 1994,
the PAYGO appropriation was slightly more than $26 million
virtually all of which was associated with programs where tax
‘exempt bond financing is difficult.

. The operating budget also traditionally includes capital
programs funded with (i) a broad range of dedicated taxes and
bonds such as the transportation program, (ii) individual
dedicated revenue sources such as Program Open Space, (iii) and
specific federal grants such as armory and mass tran51t
construction.

State-Owned Facilities. Requests for improvements to State-
owned facilities to be financed with either general obligation
bonds or general funds are expected to total $1.5 billion over
the next five years. Correctional fac111t1es, higher education
projects, and State office progects comprise the bulk of these
requests.

Agency regquests for State -owned construction pro:ects are
dlstrlbuted as follows: ;
(millions)

Agency ~ FY 95 FY 96 FY 97 FY 98 FY 99  Total

Balt. City Comm. College $19.9 $ 3.4 ¢ 0.3 $ 15.3 $ 6.7 $ 45.6

Education B 0.1 0.0 1.0 0.0 13.0 14.1
Environment (Asbestos) . 2.8 4.3 4.3 2.8 2.8 17.0
General Services 62.7 41.3 47.4 53.0 58.4 262.8
Health & Mental Hygiene 15.1 18.4 5.3 7.0 2.1 - 47.9
Housing & Comm. Develop. 10.1 . 5.0 3.2 2.5 2.1 - 22.9
Indiv's w/ Dlsabllltles 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 12.5
Judiciary : 16.0 15.6 19.8 8.3 11.1 - 70.8
Juvenile Serv1ces 1.3 34.8 11.2 4.8 11.4 63.5
Military Department 12.2 4.9 5.9 0.3 0.4 - 23.7
Morgan State University 23.8 43.4 91.2 62.7 6.9 228.0
Natural Resources 4.5 4.0 4.9 4.1 5.4 22.9
Md. Environmental Serv. 3.2 3.6 5.6 2.3 2.0 .7
Public Broadcasting 1.1 0.2 2.0 0.0 0.0 .3
Public Safety & Cor. Serv. 65.9 48.6 27.2 15.0 7.3 164.0
MSA 0.0 30.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 .0
St. Mary's College of Md. 0.5 10.5 0.5 0.0 0.0 .5
Univ. of Md. System 98.6 109.3 121.0 114.5 114.7 558.1
Veterans Commission ' 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 .5

Total ' $346.8 $384.0 $369.3 $306 7 $240.5 $1647 1

Capital Grants and Loans. There are many different
Administration-sponsored capital grant and loan programs through
which the State agencies provide financial assistance to non-
State entities. Grants and loans are made to local governments,
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private non-profit institutions, and private organizations and
individuals for various purposes including economic development,
environmental control, and housing and community facilities.

Prior to the 1990 session of the General Assembly, most
capital grants and loans for projects not owned by the State were
authorized by separate bond bills. In 1990, most of the
Administration-sponsored capital grant and loan programs were
consolidated into the MCCBL; however, State capital grants for
‘local jails and private higher education facilities continued to
be authorized by separate bond bills. In 1992, even the capital
grants for local jails and private higher education facilities
were consolidated into the MCCBL. .

There has been an increase in the capital grants and loans
‘authorized in recent years. Future funding is expected to
increase most rapidly for environmental programs, community
colleges, and jails. The increase in environmental programs 1is
the result of major initiatives to continue improving Chesapeake
Bay water guality. The significant increase in the demand for
Community College projects stems from a combination of rising
enrollments and aging facilities. The $127.% million of local
jail projects reflects a statutory mandate for the State to
assist local governments in building. fac111t1es for prlsoners
with sentences of 12 months or less.

Requests for bond-funded capital grants and loans are
expected to exceed $1.3 billion in the next five years, an
~average of almost $269 million per year. In addition, funds will
be needed in the operating budget to finance the purchase of the
Peabody art collection and many programs of the departments of
Economic and Employment Development, the Environment, and. Hou51ng
and Community Development. Many of these programs were
‘previously funded with general obligation bonds; current federal
regulations governing tax exempt financing; however, limit the
State's ability to issue tax exempt bonds for such programs.
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Ant1c1pated gggggggg for non State-owned Admlnlstratlon-sponsored

programs are as follows:

Aglng
Elderly Citizen Centers
Economic and Empl. Dev.

Nat'l Infor. Tech. Ctr.
Silver Spring Redevel.

Energy
- Energy Conversation

Environment

Hazardous Substance Control

Water Supply
Water Quality

‘Health & Mental Hygiene

Community Mental Health Facil. 3.2

Adult Day Care

Housing & Comm. Develop.
Md. Historical Trust
Partnership Rental Hsng.

Juvenile Services

Juvenile Residential Facil.

Local Schools
Public School Construction

Miscellaneous

U. Md. Medical System
Public Community Colleges
~ Private Higher Education
Local Jails

Baltimore Zoo

Hopkins Oncology Center

Totai

School Construction. The Governor's Task Force on School
Construction, after rev1ew1ng the existing needs, program

(millions)
FY 95 FY 96 FY 97 Fy 98 Fy 99 Total
$1.0 $ 1.0 $1.0 $1.0 $1.0 $5.0
4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0
7.0 3.0 1.0 0.0 0.0  11.0
0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 1.0
5.3 5.0 5.6 5.6 5.6  27.1
4.2 4.7 5.2 5.2 5.2 24.5
16.9  18.5 20.0 21.5 23.0  99.9
3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 16.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 5.0
0.5 0.5 0.5 = 0.5 0.5 2.5
7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0  35.0
1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 6.0
200.0 160.6 159.1 131.8 110.6 762.1
15.0 . 15.0 10.0 10.0 10.0  60.0
10.8  14.0 20.0 20.0 20.0  84.8
5.5 5.5 6.0 6.0 6.0  29.0
17.6  15.0 20.0 35.0 40.0 127.6
.8 5.9 3.2 3.3 6.0  19.2
6.0 6.0 6.0 0.0 0.0  18.C
$308.5 $268.6 $271.5 $253.8 $241.8 $1344.2

changes, and projected increases in enrollment, recommended an
increase in the level of funding for public school construction
of at least $85 million in fiscal 1995 and phased in to reach
$100 million annually over the next five years.
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Other Initiatives. Funding requests are also submitted each year
by members of the General Assembly to provide financial support
for local programs or projects of Statewide interest. These bond
requests include capital grants to lccal ‘governments and private
non-profit sponsors to support constructlon for local publlc and
private fac111t1es.

While it is difficult to predict the amount of legislative
initiatives that will be requested in any given year, it is fair
to estimate that the requests will average approximately $100
mllllon annually, or $500 mllllon over. the next five years.

Summary of Capltal Program Fiscal Yecars 1995 1999 The
total capital requests are estimated at $3.5 billion for the next
five years. The Department of Budget and Fiscal Planning
anticipates recommending a five-year capital improvement program
including $2.0 billion in general obligation bonds. The total
‘capital program will depend on the amount of general funds and
other non-general obligation sources available for capital
funding. . The level of general funds avaiiable to sunplement the-
bornd- funaed program will be largely dependene on the State's
f‘nanelal condition. v

(millions) v A
o FY 1995-1999
FY 1995-1999 " Anticipated Capital
_Reguests Programs
General Construction
Projects : $1,647 $ 943
Administration :
v Capital Programs 1,344 954
Legislative Initiatives : 500 75
Total $3,491 $1,972
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B. Transportation Bonds

Consolidated Transportation Bonds are limited obligations

. issued by the Department of Transportation, the principal of
-which must be paid within 15 years from the date of issue, for

highway and other transportation projects. Prior to July 1,
1992, the gross outstanding aggregate principal amount of.
Consolldated Transportatlon Bonds was limited by statute to $950
million. Debt service on Consolidated Transportation Bonds is
payable from the Department's shares of the motor vehicle fuel
tax, the motor vehicle titling tax, all mandatory motor vehicle
registration fees, and a portion of the corporate income tax,
plus all Departmental operating revenues and receipts. The
holders of such bonds are not entitled to look to other sources
for payment. .

The Department has covenanted with the holders of
outstanding Consolidated Transportation Bonds not to issue
additional bonds unless the excess of revenues (credited to the
Transportation Trust Fund) over expenses (of.departmental
operations) invthe preceding fiscal year, which is available for
debt servrce, is equal to at least twice the maximum amocunt of
debt service for any future fiscal year (including debt service
on the additional bonds to be issued) and total proceeds from
taxes pledged to debt service for the past fiscal year egqual at
least tw1ce such maximum debt service.

Existing County Transportation Bonds are also 15 year
limited obligations of the Department of Transportaticn issued on’
behalf of the counties and Baltimore City for local
transportation projectes; the debt service on the county bonds is
recovers? from the local units by the State throuagh deduction
from anounes ctherwise duz them from Stzte-collected shared
highwe uzer revenues. Debt service cr Ccunty Transportation
Bonds is secured by rcvenues distributed by law to the
subdivisions from Transportation Trust Fund sources. These-
sources include shares of the corporate income tax, titling tax,

motor fuel texes, and vehicle registration fees.

Both Consolidated and County Transportation Bonds issued
before June 1, 1989, utilized sinking funds with respect to the
payment of debt service. In the case of Consolidated
Transportation Bonds, at the time of issue, debt service due on
that issue in the current calendar year and in the following
calendar year was placed in the sinking fund. Thereafter, on
each January 1, an amount equal to the debt service due for the
following calendar year is placed in the fund. For County
Transportation Bonds, the practice was identical, with the
exception that debt service reserved is on a fiscal year basis.
In measuring debt outstanding, most credit analysts reduce gross
debt outstanding by the amounts in sinking funds and by the
amounts of defeased bonds, if any.
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As a result of State legislation enacted in 1989, advance
funding of future debt service requirements is no longer
mandatory with respect to consolidated and county bonds issued
after June 1, 1989. As a matter of policy, however, the
Department continued the practice of advance funding of future
debt service on County Transportatlon Bonds.

Graph 4 deplCtS outstandlng Consolidated and County
Transportation Bonds (after being reduced by the amounts in the
two sinking funds) for the historical period fiscal years 1979
through 1993 and the Department's current projections for fiscal
years 1994 through 1999. During the ten years from fiscal 1979
to fiscdl 1988, departmental revenues were of a magnitude such
that new consolidated bond issues of only $245 million, excluding
short term notes, were needed to augment operating revenues to
fund the transportation capital program. This modest level of
issuance reflects, among other factors, the impact on customary
- transportation revenues of several gas tax increases
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{from 9 cents per gallon in fiscal 1982, to 13.5 cents in fiscal
1984 and to 18.5 cents per gallon effectlve June 1, 1987) and of
permanent allocations to the Transportation Trust Fund of a
portion of corporate income tax receipts and the balance of the
'tltllng tax.  In the most recent years, the level of new
.issuances has accelerated to $100 million in 1987, $260 million
~in 1990, and $310 million in 1991; however, the statutory cap of
- $950 mllllon in outstanding bonds llmlted new issuances in 1992
to $120 million.

At its 1992 session, the General Assembly enacted
legislation that increased motor vehicle and motor fuel taxes,’
raised the limit on outstanding Consolidated Transportation Bonds
from $950 million to $1.2 billion, and specified that a limit of
less than $1.2 billion could be imposed for the next fiscal year
in 'the annual State operating budget. The General Assembly, in
fact, did insert language in the 1993 budget that limited the
- level of outstanding bonds in fiscal 1993 to $960 million which
served to l1limit new issues in fiscal 1993 to $75 million. The
fiscal 1994 budget incorporates a limit in the level of
outstanding bonds to $1.025 billion at June 30, 1994.

The Department will issue $40 million in Consolidated
Transpcrtation Bonds in September, 1993 (along with approximately
$204 million in refunding Consolidated Transportation Ponés), and
~does not expect to issue additional consolidated bonds during
fiscal 1994, resulting in bonds outstanding of $975.7 million at
June 30, 199%4. During the five year period 1995 =19°2¢, the
Department expects to issue an additional $360 million which will
result in bonds cutstanding of $945 million at the end =f the

prricd. Tone Department's rlan of bond financing and revenues is
sufiicient ¢t provide finzicing for *h: Vehinls 1ssiont
insgo-tiny Trorzram (VEIPY.

~ - Sl

. The Department did nct issue County Transportatisrt Dends
curing fiscal 1993. Legislation was eracted by the 1932 General
Assembly thzt provides a new non-State tax supported {cuncy.
Transportaticn Bond program; future issuances of County
Transportation Bonds are anticipated to be under this new program
and will not, therefore, constitute State tax supported debt
Additionally, the Department plans to issue refunding County
Transportation Bonds under the new program which will serve to
eliminate four existing series of County Transportation Bonds
from State tax supported debt. Graph 4 reflects the effect of
the new program; a discussion cf the new program and its impact
is in Sectlon V.C. of this report.
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C. Bond Anticipation Notes

In response to the savings and loan crisis in May, 1985, the
General Assembly authorized $100 million in general obligation
bonds that could be used, among other purposes, to facilitate
mergers or to make capital investments in State chartered savings
and loan associations when such investment would assure that the
association would receive federal insurance. Chapter 452, Laws
of 1990, cancelled the authorization..

Three-year Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) were issued to
associations in connection with pending insurance applications.
In exchange for the BANs, the State received Net Worth
‘Certificates representing an equity share in the participating
‘associations. The dividend rate on the Net Worth Certificates
was in all cases 1 1/2% higher than the interest rate on the
BANs. ‘The following table summarizes activity with the BANs that
were issued in exchange for Net Worth Certificates.

(in thdusands)

Outstanding : Outstanding

Beginning of End of
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Issues Redemptions Fiscal Year

1986 ‘ s $26,410 $11,250 $15,160
1987 15,160 - 746 : © 15,906
‘1988 15,906 - 7,758 8,148
1989 8,148 _ , 7,402 , 746
1990 : 746 ' , 746
1991
1992

Two additional BAN's were issued in connection with the
savings and loan program. One for $46.7 million, subseguently
cancelled, was issued to the Maryland Deposit Insurance Fund in
connection with the purchase of deposits; one for $15 million,
subsequently redeemed, was issued as security for a short-term
kank loan to facilitate a distribution to depositors.

Since the bond authorization has been cancelled and since
all insured deposits have been paid, there will be no additional
BAN's issued under thls program.

D. Lease and Conditional Purchase Financings

The State's capital funding program over the past several
years has included the use of capital lease financings in which
the State earns an equity interest in the leased property and
gains title to such property at the end of the leasing period.
Such capital leases are considered debt of the State by financial
analysts and under generally accepted accounting principles.
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For financial statements to reflect generally accepted
accounting principles, leases that are in essence a vehicle for
financing assets must be “capitalized" - i.e., reflected on the
balance sheet. To the extent that meaningful financial reporting
requires this, rating agencies and credit evaluators will :
incorporate leases of this nature into thelr overall calculatlon
of the State's debt burden.

Under generally accepted accounting principles, if a lease
financing meets one or more of the following four criteria at its
“inception, the lease shall be classified as a capital lease by '
the lessee: '

- . The lease transfers ownershlp.of the property to thev
~  lessee (user) by the end of the lease term. .

- The lease allows the lessee (user) to purchase the
property at a bargain price.

- The term of the lease is 75% or more of the estimated
useful economic life of the property.

- The oresent value of the lease payments 1s 906 or more
of the fair value of the property.

I1f State leases meet any of these four criteria, the State's
audited financial statements will reflect the capitalization of
those leases, and the State will be judged by knowledgeable
reviewers as having incurred dekt. The additional State
liakbility and debt service recultlng from financing leases
currently is not large relative to the State's gensral obligation
debt ‘1liability and dekt service. : '

Cd‘:*lté.. !
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ndcr current piractice, capites inzase
sta processing and telecommunicaticns
eguipnent, are or periods less than five ye;r_. Real
prcoperty capilel ; , on the other hand, have tended to bo

. longer term -- in the range of 20 to 30 years -- and ha’c been
used to.acguire & wids variety of facilities such as regional
motor vehicle service centers, a highway support center, an
upgraded env1ronmentel facility for a state prison and multi-
service centers. _
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~ The following table summarizes tax supported capital lease -
financings for the fiscal years 1984 through 1992 and estimated
amounts for fiscal 1993.

Tax Supported Capital Leases

. (thousands)
, Present Value of Minimum
Fiscal Year Lease Payments

1984 o - $ --

1985 ; -

1986 : --

1987 ' 12,062

1988 47,580

1989 v 45,026
1990 v ’ 43,602

1991 : 73,257

1992 ' 101,968

1993 - : L 111,918

~ The future use of capital leases for acquiring real property
is not well defined. On the one hand, there are no programs to
develop State facilities under a capital lease either by private
investors or local governments. On the other hand, there
continue to be proposals put forth under which the State would
acquire real property through a capital lease arrangement. Since
the Committee's last report, the State acquired a new District
Court facility in Towson through a capital lease with the
Baltimore County Revenue Authority.

For purposes of this report, it is assumed that $10 million
annually in real property projects will be financed by capital
leases. It is further assumed that these projects are not
-projects for which general obligation bonds are authorized;

" hence, there will be no offset in the amount of general

obligation bonds issued or outstanding. It is also believed that
- future capital leases for equipment will be reasonably constant
over time, averaging about $15 million a year.

E. Maryland Stadium Authority

The Maryland Stadium Authority was created in 1986 for the
purpose of proposing a site for one or more new professional '
sports facilities in Maryland and financing and directing the
- acquisition and construction of such facilities. The Authority
is authorized to issue revenue bonds, subject to prior approval
of the Board of Public Works. The 1987 General Assembly placed
an aggregate limit of $235 million on the issuance of such bonds,
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of which $200 million may be issued as tax exempt securities
prior to January 1, 1991, under a transitional provision of the
Tax Reform Act of 1986.

- On May 10, 1989, the Authority issued $60.8 million in
taxable lease revenue notes for the acquisition and preparation
of the property site of new sports facilities. The Authority
also entered into a lease arrangement with the State whereby the
State will lease the facilities from the Authority. The ‘
Authority’s note and subsequent bond issues are secured by the
lease with the State, and the State’s rental payments to the
Authority approximate the debt service on the authority’s notes
and bonds. The State will sublease the facilities back to the
Authority and the Authority’s rental payments to the State _
approximate the Authority’s net income. At the conclusion of the
lease term, title to the facilities will transfer to the State.

' On October 25, 1989, the Authority issued $137.5 million of
tax exempt lease revsnue bonds to finance the construction of a
baseball stadium; a portion of the proceeds was used to defease
$43.4 million of the first issue due in December of 1989 and
December of 1590.

Funds for the lease of the baseball stadium are provided by
(1) two to four annual sports lotteries; (2) an annual payment of
$1 million from Raltimore City; (3) interest earnings on the
Facilities Fund and on any debt service reserve fund; and (4) net
operating revenues of the Authority.

For purposes cf this report, it is assumed that the Stadium
Authority will issue an amount of additional debt that will fully
utilize the maximu~ ceb:t outstanding allowed in order to finance

ZootT T 1is currently anticipated that the

0

(D

a Iootbzll stacdiur.
National Football League will select the expansion cities in the
fall of 1992, and that the Stadium Authority will issue bonds for
the foctball stadium in the summer of 1994 (fiscal 1995). It is

" also assumed that the bonds issued will be taxable, since the
transiticnal provision permitting the issuance of tax exempt
bonds fcr the project has expired.

The 1993 General Assembly enacted legislation that provides
for the expansion of the Baltimore Convention Center by the
Maryland Stadium Authority to be funded with $105 million in
State funds and $50 million from the City of Baltimore. The
State funding consists of two State general obligation loans -
one for $20 million (the Baltimore Convention Center loan of
1993) and one for $30 million (the Baltimore Convention Center
loan of 1995) - and up to $55 million of revenue bonds to be
issued by the Stadium Authority. The section authorizing the
Baltimore Convention Center loan of 1995 has an effective date of
June 1, 1995. The legislation also stipulates that bonds issued
by the Stadium Authority for either sports or convention :
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facilities constitutes State tax supported debt, which is L
consistent with the approach taken by the Committee. The general
cbligation portion has been incorporated into the assumed
issuance stream of general obligation bonds in the base analysis;
the issuance of the revenue bonds has been included in the
Stadium Authority component of the base analysis, See V. Other
Issues for a discussion of the treatment of the delayed effective
date of the $30 million Convention Center Loan of 1995.
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IIT. AFFORDABILITY ANALYSIS

The objective of an affordability analysis is to draw a
proper balance between two basic considerations: the State's
capital needs and its ability and/or willingness to repay the
debt issued to finance those capital needs.

vA.” ThefConcept of Affordability

The ultimate test of affordability is the willingness and
ability of the State to pay the resulting debt burden when due.
Apart from revenue sources which are dedicated by law, the
allocation of future resources between debt repayment and other
program needs is a matter of judgement. The whole issue of
affordability is, therefore, a judgmental one, dependent upon
complex considerations such as perceived needs, the relationship
between debt authorization and debt issuance, available and
potential funding mechanisms, overall budgetary priorities, and
revenues.

The Commlttee belleves that the crux of the concept of
affordablllty is not merely whether or not the State can pay the
‘debt service; rather affordability implies the ability to manage
debt over time to achieve certain goals. Maryland has a long
tradition of effectively managlng its finances and debt. The
challenge of debt management is to provide sufficient funds to
meet growing capital needs within the framework of the State's
debt capacity, thereby maintaining the triple-A credit rating.

B. Historv of Affordability Criteria

Based upon an analysis of available material (including the
responses to a questionnaire sent to a number of experts on
Maryland's finances in 1979 and subsequently updated in 1984),
the following affordability criteria were developed and employed
in the 1979 and subsequent reports:

- That outstanding debt be reduced toward a target leve;
of 3.2% of State personal income as rapidly as
practlcal

- That adjusted debt service be reduced toward a target

level of 8% of State general fund and property tax
revenues as rapidly as practical; and

- That new authorizations be kept in the range of
redemptions of existing debt over the near term.
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These criteria were adopted by the Commlttee solely for the
analysis of general obligation debt. The Committee had
considered its major task to be primarily the analysis of general
obligation debt in keeping with- ;he tenor of the statute '
establishing the Committee.

. Criteria 1 and 2 represented traditional measures and
criterion 3 reflected a discretionary policy position that the
State should “get out of debt." Given the Committee's view that
the first two criteria were goals to be achieved over time, the

final criterion became controlling over the short term.

In 1987, while retaining the first and second criteria for
~evaluating the expanded definition of debt and debt service, the
'~ Committee concluded that the third criterion was no longer an
applicable guideline. The basis for its conclusion was
threefold. First, there were leglslatlve and executive )
commitments to prov1de an increase in the level of bonded debt to
finance needed transportation projects and the new stadia.
Second, the high ratings of the State's general obligation and
. transportation bonds indicated that the existing level of debt
and the planned increase were acceptable to the rating agencies.
Third, adherence to the criterion tied yearly authorizations to
events of 15 years before, thereby producing highly variable bond
authorizations which are inconsistent with either good debt
management or a stable capltal program.

In41988, a detailed survey of credlt analysts was undertaken
to obtain their views on the Committee's comprehensive approach
to reviewing debt and to the criteria the Committee had been
using for 10 years. The survey affirmed the Committee's decision
to take an expanded view of debt; in addition, criteria 1 and 2
were almost universally approved.

C. 1993 Affordability Recommendation

. The Committee recommends a $380 million limit for new
general obligation debt authorizations enacted by the 1994
General Assembly for the flscal 1995 capital program.

In its 1988 reports, the COmmittee proposed a six-year
program of new authorizations based on a view that the State
clearly needed more capital investment. The program recognized a
combination of factors that increased pressure on the capital
budget (growth in State clients and populations, aging
infrastructure, and retreat by the federal government as a
provider of capital) and also reflected the growth in tax
supported debt capacity that could accommodate increased: levels
of new authorlzatlons.
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In its 1992 report, while reaffirming its beliefs in the
theories underlying its prior recommendations, the Committee
recognized that the five year program originally recommended in
1988 should be adjusted. The 1992 recommendation acknowledged
the persistent recession that had depressed the levels of
personal income and the structural changes in Maryland's economy
- that would deter any near term resumption of the State's previous
pattern of rapid growth in personal income. The 1992 program
also recognized that, although there had been no abatement in the
population growth and demand for services, cost 1nf1atlon had
been lower than originally projected.

In 1992, therefore, the Committee recommended that the level
- of new authorizations for fiscal 1994 be $350 million - the same
as the level for fiscal 1993 rather than $370 million as had been
envisioned in prior years' reports - and that the annual increase
be reduced from 5% to 3% - retaining the 1% increase in real
purchasing power but reducing the inflation rate to 2%.

The Committee's new program continues to retain the annual
increase of 3% adopted last year. Actual and revised personal
income data, however, have provided a higher base than was
anticipated last year and indicate that the downward revisions to
personal income adopted last year may have been a bit
precipitous. As a result, the Committee's recommendation for new
authorizations for fiscal 1995 is $380 million. This represents
a 3% increase over the $370 million that had been originally
contemplated as the recommendation for flscal 1994 before that .
recommendation was reduced.

D. Comparison of Recdmmeﬁdation and Criteria

To analyze the relationship of the Committee's
"recommendation for general obligation debt to the affordability
crlterla, each component of tax supported debt and debt serv1ce
is projected.

The assumptions for the growth in non-general obligation
components of tax supported debt and debt service are as
described in Part II. The Department of Transportation ,
consolidated debt is expected to rise moderately and then decline
over the next five years as reported in Section II.D.; the
Department's county transportation debt will, of course, decline
because an alternate program will be utilized. The Maryland
Stadium Authority's issuance of debt is as projected in Section
-II.F. No new BANS will be issued over the forecast period, since
the authorization has been cancelled. It is assumed that
approximately $10 million in new capital leases for real property
and $15 million in new capital leases for equipment will be
executed in each year.
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With respect to general obligation debt 1t is necessary to
project the pattern of issuance of both new and current
authorizations. Newly authorized bonds are not 1mmed1ate1y ’
issued; in fact, less than half of the bonds authorized in a year
. are typically issUed within the next two fiscal years.
Consequently, the impact of a limit on any year's debt '
authorizations translates slowly into issuances and affects the
outstanding level of debt with a substantial lag. Appendix B-1
converts the recommended levels of new general obligation bond
authorizations into a projected level of annual issuances and
assumes all authorized debt, with the exception of $8 million
authorized in 1969 for Program Open Space, will be issued.
Certainly, some projects currently authorized to be financed by
bonds may be abandoned or completed for a lesser amount than
authorized; however, it is assumed that any such unnecessary
authorization will be re-appropriated into new projects. v
"Although some authorizations may ultimately be cancelled rather
than re-appropriated, such cancellations are expected to be -
immaterial to the analysis. « :

Current authorizations represent the bulk of the near term
need for bond issuances; in fact, the main determinate of near
term issuances is the current level of spending. In 1993,
capital projects spending was $305 million including operating
budget expenditures for Program Open Space and PAYGO. Bond sales
in fiscal 1993, however, totaled only $260.410 million (not
including $147 million issued to refund $130.475 million of
outstanding general obligation bonds), because of delays as a
-result of budgetary problems. Bond sales in fiscal 1994,
therefore, will include an additional $40 million to make up for
‘the slippage in fiscal 1993 as well as an additional $20 million
for the Convention Center, for a projected total of $380 million.

Adjusted general obligation debt service is as displayed in
Appendix B-4 and assumes a pattern of future interest rates
similar to that projected by the DRI_forecasting service.

» Based on the Committee's projections, outstanding tax
supported debt rises steadily over the near term reflecting
growth of approximately $160 million per year in the level of
general obligation bonds, very moderate growth in the level of
transportation bonds, and the construction of the football

-stadium at Camden Yards and the Convention Center (Table 1).
Continuing the trend begun in 1990, the growth in debt
outstanding through 1995 is sllghtlybgreater than the growth in
personal income; consequently, the ratio of debt outstanding to
personal income rises from 2.66% in 1990 to 3.10% in 1995. After

- 1995, the growth in personal income is greater than the growth in

debt. As a result, the key ratio drops modestly throughout the

remainder of the forecast period to 2.86% in fiscal 1999. This
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Fisca
Year

1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994

1995

1996
1997
1998
1999

1989
1990

1991
1992

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999

State Tax Supported Debt Outstanding as a Percent of Personal Income

1 General
Obligation Consolidated
~ (a) (b)

2,005,160 241,838
1,986,906 482,691
2,038,437 713,671
2,178,199 874,770
2,279,405 919,899
2,476,470 - 947,170
2,609,253 996,477
2,112,118 1,045,345
2,931,140 1,044,955
3,098,165 1,018,060
3,294,023 945,230

2.03% 0.24%
1.89% 0.46%
1.88% 0.71%
1.92% 0.71%
1.93% o 0.78%
1.99% 0.76%
1.98% 0.76%
1.99% 0.75%
- 1.99% 0.71%
2.00% 0.66%
2.01% 0.58%

STATE TAX SUPPORTED DEBT OUTSTANDI“G
COMPONENTS AND.RELATIONSHIP TO PERSONAL INCOME

County

Department of Transportation (c)

Total

Capital
Leases

Stadium

Authority

State Tax Supported Debt Outstanding
($ in thousands)

133,266
133,727
135,841
127,926
111,541
63,904
55,506
46,541
37,733
32,802
27, 395

375,104
616,418
909,512
1,002,696
1,031,440
1,011,074
1,051,983
1,091,886
1,082,688
1,050,862
972,625

45,026

43,602

13,251
101,968
111,918
133,145
136,047
136,113
136,162
136,538
140,535

60,845
155,000
155,000
154,880
153,160
206,325
290,000
287,895
285,013
280,932
276,549

(Affordability criteria standard = 3.2% )

0.13%

0.13%

0.13%
0.11%
0.09%
0.05%
0.04%
0.03%
0.03%
0.02%
0.02%

0.38%
0.59%
0.84%
0.88%
0.87%
0.81%
0.80%
0.78%
0.74%
0.68%

'0.59%

(a) Reflects presumed new authorizations as follows: .
For Fiscal Year 1995

{b) Assumes debt service on minibonds is paid at maturity and no

General Assembly Session:

1994
1995
1996
1997

1998
1999

(c) Net of sinking funds or debt service reserve funds.

(d) A

gsumptions: (millions)
G.0. issues (incl Conven Cntr)
DOT issues (Consoli new money)
Stadium Authority issues
Capital lLeases - Equipment

-~ Real Property

1994
$380

1995 -

$350
100
86
15

10

1996
$390
115

15
10

0.05%
0.04%
0.07%
0.09%
0.09%

0.11%

0.10%
0.10%
0.09%
0.09%
0.09%

1996
1997
-1998

1999
2000

1997
$400
10

15
10

0.15%
0.14%
0.14%
0.13%
0.17%
- 0.22%
0.21%
0.19%

0.18%

0.17%

$380 million

390
400
415

430
445

1998
$420

55

15

.10

1999

$435
20

15
10

Trn -

BAN's

0.00%

Total
Tax Supported
" Debt

2,487,081
2,801,926
3,176,206
3,437,743

©3,575,92)

3,827,014
4,087,283
4,288,609
4,435,003
4,566,497
1,683,732

2.51%
2.66%
2.93%
3.03%
3.03%
J.07%
J.10%
3.08%
J.02%
2.94%
"2.86%

minibond put options are exercised.

11:57 AN

1989
1990

1991

1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999

1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
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is in contrast to last year, when the ratio of debt outstanding
to personal income was extremely close to the affordability
criterion of 3.2% for a major portion of the forecast period.

With respect to the other affordability criterion, the ratio
of debt service to revenues, the pattern is distinctly different
(Table 2). This ratio, which is a proxy for the burden of the
debt on the operating budget, drops to a low of 5.65% in fiscal
1994, rises to 6.72% by 1997, and then drops to 6.27% at the end
of the forecast period. As in the past, the ratio remains
significantly below the affordability criterion of 8.0%.

The Committee's total program is expected to result in a
pattern of debt issuances, debt outstanding, and debt service
payments that are within the affordability standards. The State
is no longer in the same posture as it was in the early years of
the Committee when the Committee was recommending a policy that
would bring debt and debt service within affordability limits
over time; rather the State meets the accepted affordability
‘'standards and the goal is to maintain those standards with a
margin for contingencies. The margin for contingencies, while
not excessive, is considerably more comfortable than last year.

E. Comparison of Recommendatlon and Capital Program

The Committee's projections of tax supported debt fully
incorporate the most current capital program proposed by the
Department of Transportation. The Committee's projections of tax
supported debt also incorporate issuance of all $235 million
available to the Maryland Stadium Authority for the construction
of sports stadia as well as the issuance of bonds for the
expansion of the Convention Center. In addition, the Committee's
recommendation of general obligation authorizations provides for
full funding of the planned general obligation capital program.

The general obligation capital program funding requirements
as presented in Section II.A are $2.0 billion for fiscal years
1995 through 1999; for the same period, the Committee proposes
$2.0 billion in new general obligation bond authorizations. 1In
terms of expected level of requests for capital funding by State
agencies and legislative sponsors, the Committee's plan would
provide bonds sufficient to finance 57% of the total requests.
The Committee recognizes that the affordable amount may fall
short if new capital demands occur, either as new programs emerge
or as the federal government continues to reduce its support for
state and local programs.

There are basically only two options for meeting the capital
needs normally funded by general obligation bonds while staying
within debt affordability limits. The State can commit a level
of funds in the operating budget sufficient to fund unmet general
obligation capital needs. Such a commitment is difficult with

37

63X



38




6¢

Fiscal
Year

1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1991
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999

1989
1990

11991

1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997

1998

1999
(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)

STATE TAX SUPPORTED DEDBT SERVICE
COMPONENTS AND RELATIONSHIP TO REVENUES

v . Total
General Department of Transportation Capital - Stadium ~ Tax Supported
Obligation Consolidated County Total Leases Authority BAN's Debt Service:
(a) (b) (b)
State Tax Supported Debt Service
($ in thousands)

399,441 35,195 : 35,195 8,423 - : ‘ 443,059 1989
399,175 : 48,842 48,842 8,544 11,113 v 467,674 1990
393,598 64,261 64,261 9,149 11,984 478,992 1991
350,192 80,211 80,211 14,110 12,104 456,617 1992
324,050 117,645 (c) 117,645 20,400 13,650 v 475,745 1993
329,929 79,545 _ 79,545 23,074 13,648 446,196 1994
375,252 104,825 104,825 27,375 20,915 . 528,367 1995
386,651 129,056 129,056 30,438 24,056 570,201 - 1996
399,684 148,428 : 148,428 30,621 24,684 603,417 19917
413,070 158,489 158,489 25,497 25,635 622,691 1998

407,857 150,838 150,838 30,079 25,725 614,499 1999

State Tax Supported Debt Service as a Percent of Revenues
(Affordability criteria standard = 8% )

7.15% 3.72% 3.72% 0.15% 6.78% 1989

6.80% 5.16% 5.16% 0.15% 100.00% (d) ’ - 6.85% - 1990
6.35% 7.19% 7.19% 0.15% 100.00% ' 6.74% 1991
5.50% 8.62% 8.62% 0.22% 100.00% 6.25% 1992
4.86% 11.07% 11.07% - 0.31% 100.00% : 6.15% 1993
4.86% - 7.32% 71.32% 0.34% 100.00% 5.65% 1994
5.31% ©9.21% 9.21% 0.39% - 100.00% ’ ©6.42% 1995
5.24% 11.01% 11.01% 0.39% 100.00% 6.65% - 1996
5.16% 12.25% 12.25% .0.40% 100.00% o 6.72% 1997
5.09% ' 12.77% 12.77% 0.31% 100.00% _ 6.64% 1998
4 0

.80% 11.83% ‘ 11.83% .35% 100.00% : - 6.27% 1999

Assumes debt service on minibonds is paid at maturity and no minibond put options are exercised.

Repayments from counties and from savings and loan 1nst1tut10ns equal or exceed debt service
regquirements.

Includes $30 million early redemptions of Series 1979 and 1980.

Transfers from the Stadium Facilities Fund to the Stadium Authority are assumed to be just suff1c1ent
when coupled with the Authority's own-source revenues, to meet debt service requirements.
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the current pressure exerted on the operating budget by formula
growth in aid to local government programs, entitlements, and
slowly growing revenues. Alternatively, the State can shift
priorities among the components of tax supported debt, thereby
allowing for a greater level of new general obllgatlon

v authorlzatlons.

F. Affordablllty Risk Analy51s

Background - In its 1989 report, the Committee observed that
the previous year's general obligation bond authorization plan,
deemed barely affordable in its 1988 analysis, was not only
"affordable" one year later but provided a significant margin for
expansion. This improvement was almost entirely the result of
new, table 2 higher personal income numbers. Also in the same
report, the Committee observed that capital needs changed from
year to year. Hence, a capital program undertaken within the
Committee's recommended limit with respect to new authorizations
might need to be cut back if a new program is - authorized that was
not factored into the Committee's analysis.

“As a result of the experience in 1988-89, the Committee has
included in its 1990 and subsequent reports an affordability risk
analysis -- the analysis of the risk that a particular five year:
general obligation bond authorization plan, if followed over
time, leads to a breach of the Committee's affordability limits,
even though the plan was deemed affordable at the time it was
proposed. The concept of affordability risk arose because the
Committee was faced with what appeared to be substantial unused
affordability capacity. Again this year as in the Committee's
recent reports, the Committee's five year general obligation debt
to personal income is at or below the 3.2% affordablllty 11m1t in
each year of the forecast period.

Components of Risk. There appear to be four basic risk
components in making a judgement about the ultimate affordability
of a five year general obllgatlon program of authorizations:

changes in personal income; ‘

changes in the definition of tax supported debt;
changes within the general obligation bond program; and
changes in the bond issuance plans of other, 1nclud1ng
new, components of tax supported debt.

Changes in Personal Income. Over the past decade, there has been
substantial change in personal income estimates. These changes
result from (1) after-the-fact measurement changes by the federal
statisticians and (2) revised projections by the Committee. The
_former risk is clearly beyond the Committee's control. Although
the federal estimates of personal income for a year may change by

41

VLY 4



material amounts in the first two years after the close of the
year, subsequent adjustments generally have been small. Through
~the 1988 report, the Committee's projections of the six year
growth in personal income, on the whole, had been conservative
and, therefore, subseguent reports tended to portray an increase
in affordable capacity.

: "While the depth of the most recent recession was not
reflected in the Committee's projections in their 1989-1991
reports, its effect appears to have been somewhat overstated in
last year's projections of personal income. The forecasts of
Maryland personal income in last year's report were considerably .
below the levels projected in the report of the year before and
reflected a loss of almost two year's growth in personal income.
This year the projected levels of personal income are higher than
. those projected last year, primarily because of increases to the
base combined with slightly increased projections of growth. ;
Personal income for 1992, which was projected at $116.1 billion
in the 1991 report and reduced to $109.3 billion in last year's .
report, is actually $113.5 billion. Growth from 1992 to 1998 was
‘projected last year to average 5.1% per year; current projections
are that personal income will grow at an annual rate of 5.35%
over that period. This upward revision of projected personal
income is reflected in the improved ratio. Table 1 indicates
that the ratio of debt outstanding to personal income at June 30,
1995, and June 30, 1998, is projected to be 3.10% and 2.86%,
respectively. If last year's estimates of personal income were:
used, the ratios would be 3.25% and 3.10%, respectively.

Clearly, there remains risk associated with reductions in
anticipated levels of personal income particularly in an
uncertain economic climate. The Committee's estimate of personal
income is significantly lower than the 7.8% average growth rate
for the ten years ending with the depressed 1991; however,
persistence of the recession, an extension of the depressed
condition of the commercial real estate market, and the uncertain
outlock for defense-related industries could result in further
changes to the State's economy.. Although the Committee believes
that the current projections adequately discount the effect cf
these changes on the growth of Maryland personal income, growth
rates of 3%, 4%, and 5% for 1993, 1994, and 1995, respectively,
instead of the 3.9%, 5.6%, and 5.8% growth currently projected
for those years would result in the ratio of debt outstanding to
personal income reaching 3.2% in 1995.

Changes in the Definition of Tax Supported Debt. Changes in the
definition of tax supported debt will typically only occur

- whenever an outside authoritative group changes definition. To
be sure, there may be State reviews of individual transactions
that prompt the reclassification of a specific transaction or set
of transactions. Such internally initiated reclassifications,
however, are apt to be minor. On the other hand, there would be
a major impact if, for example, the bond rating agencies would
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decide to count State housing agency debt as tax supported debt
or if the Governmental Accounting Standards Board would require
long term operating leases to be included on the State's balance
sheet. Although changes in standards of outside authoritative
groups might have a major impact on measured affordability, such
changes are likely to be implemented with ample lead time and
would either only affect the out years of the program or prov1de
the Committee with time to adjust its program.

Changes within the General Obligation Bond Program. Changes
within the general obligation bond program may arise because of

. changes in (1) the types and costs of facilities and other
projects financed by general obligation bonds, or (2) changes in
the speed with which authorized bonds are issued.

Changes of the first variety do not of themselves affect
-affordability but rather may lead to a re-allocation of
resources. The Committee's recommendations are made in terms of
a specific dollar amount of bonds and not in terms of a specific .
set of programmatic facilities, grants, or other capital
projects. Changes in construction costs, the availability of
PAYGO funding, the need for new prisons or hospitals, federal tax
laws, and a -host of other variables will certainly influence both
the need for general obligation bonds and the Committee's view of .
the appropriate share of the affordability limit that is to be
used; such changes affect the amount of real assets that can be
acquired within a specific dollar amount of program. Such
changes by themselves, however, affect neither the dcllar amount
of the Committee's five year plan nor the ratio of debt
- outstanding associated with that specific plan to personal
income. Therefore, without Committee or General Assembly action
to alter the dollars to be authorized in the Committee's five
yvear plan, there is no affordability risk resulting from sucn
changes within the general obligation pilan.

Changes in the speed with which authorized bonds are issued,
however, may affect affordability. Bonds authorized by the
General Assembly at any session are not immediately solc¢. Rathrer
the bonds are sold over an extended period of time as the
projects are developed and cash is required to pay property
owners, consultants, contractors, and equipment manufacturers.

Any systematic force that would accelerate or retard the speed
with which bonds are brought to market will increase or decrease
the amount of bonds outstanding and affect the ratio of debt

outstanding to personal income.

In the 1991 report, the Committee noted that the then
pending federal regulations on the use of the proceeds of tax
exempt debt to reimburse the issuer for prior expenses might well
lead to an acceleration of the issuance of general obligation

- debt. Fortunately, both the U.S. Treasury and Internal Revenue
Service were responsive to many of the concerns expressed by
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state and local governments. As discussed in last year's report,
the revised reimbursement regulations and new components of the
final regulation on arbitrage will not require an add1t10na1
acceleration of issuances.

Changes in the Bond Issuances Plans of Other Components of State
‘Tax Supported Debt. Changes in the bond issuance plans for other
-components of tax supported debt probably present the greatest
risk to the eventual affordability of a specific five year
program. These changes can take the form of expansion of
existing programs, as was the case with the expanded Consolidated
Transportatlon debt issuance associated with the 1992 gas tax
increase, or a totally new program, such as the Maryland Stadlum
Authorlty in 1987. -

There are basically four classes of changes° (1) There are
changes in existing programs associated with external events.
For example, the NFL may once again delay the designation of the
expansion cities and, as a result, the "projected" sale of bonds
for the football stadlum may be delayed (2) There are known
proposals to alter existing programs or create new programs that
-the Committee may believe to have a high probability of
enactment, but the exact timing of the enactment and the amount
of new debt are less certain. For example, the 1991 General ’

Assembly authorized design funding for expanded convention

facilities in Baltimore City; the 1993 General Assembly
authorized State tax supported bonds for new facilities. (3)
There are knowh proposals that the Committee may believe to have
a low probability of enactment. For example, in both 1990 and
1991, the General Assambly considered a large bond authorization
for accelerating land purchases under Program Open Space and
directed the Department of Budget and Fiscal Planning and the
- Department of Natural Resources to study the proposal. The
-~ proposal is similar to the original design of Program Open Space
which was abandoned when transfer tax receipts were more than
‘adequate to meet the acquisition program's cash needs. (4) There
are bond programs that are not known at the time the Committee
develops its plan and analyzes it for conformity with
affordability standards. Several years ago when the Committee
- was considering its plan for 1990-1994, there was no proposal for
State assistance for an expanded convention center; tax supported-
debt related to the convention center will, in fact, be
outstanding by 1994. Clearly, this fourth type of risk is most
likely to affect the last two years of any five year period as
opposed to the first two years of the period.

FY 1995 - 1999 Risks. 1In considering the affordability risk
associated with the 1995-1999 plan in this year's report, the
major risk appears to be related to the growth in personal income
(discussed above); potential changes in other components of tax ,
supported debt appear to be limited to one with a positive effect
on affordability and, as is always the possibility, any bond
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programs not now envisioned. There do not appear to be any v
federal regulatory changes that mlght lead to an acceleration of
general obligation debt issuances; in fact, the regulatory
climate, for the first time in a number of years, appears more
favorable. Also, there is no evidence that the rating agencies
or the Governmental Accounting Standards Board are contemplating
changes in standards that would expand the definition of tax
supported debt.

The changes in the issuance plans of other components of tax
supported debt are related to the possibility of refunding '
additional series of County Transportation Bonds which would have
‘a slightly positive effect on affordability. Other programs
- considered in past reports, Program Open Space and the lease
conversion plan, do not appear to increase affordability risk.
The General Assembly continues to include funding for both
program Open Space and lease conversion as general obligation
bond items within the amount recommended by the Committee. The
Committee's base analysis anticipates that $86 million will be
issued for a new football stadium in 1995. Because a football
stadium is certain to cost more than that, possibly as much as
$150 million, past affordability risk analyses have included an
amount representing additional State tax supported bonds to fund
the difference. The Stadium Authority, however, is committed to
raising the additional funding from private sources or
accumulated lottery revenues rather than seeking an increase to
the Authority's bond authorization. All anticipated State tax
.supported debt to finance the expansion and renovation of the
convention center has been fully incorporated into the base
analysis. :

In its past three reports, the Committee recommended that
the General Assembly consider replacing the County Transportation
- Bond Program with an alternative that would not be characterized
as State tax supported debt. The 1993 General Assembly enacted
such an alternative. The base analysis reflects the fact that
there will be no new issues of County Transportation bonds under
the old program; future issues of County Transportation bonds
will not constitute State tax supported debt. The base analysis
also reflects the effect of the proposed advance refunding of
four series of County Transportation Bonds (the Third, Sixth,
Seventh, and Eighth) which achieve both debt service and present
value savings. The recent favorable movement of interest rates
prov1des the potential to advance refund an additional three
series (Ninth, Tenth, and Eleventh). Refunding the additional
series would reduce State tax supported debt by approxrmately $23
million in 1994 and $12 million 1999. The 1994 reduction is
equlvalent to almost .02% of the Committee's estimate of 1994

personal 1ncome.
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Conclusion. The analysis suggests that the Committee's
projection of general obligation bond authorizations is not only
currently affordable, but also that the risk of exceeding the
affordability limits are limited. For the first time since
adopting an affordability risk analysis, there appear to be no
potential changes in the bend issuance plans of other components
of State tax supported debt that would have an adverse effect on
affordability other than some future bond program unidentified at.
this time. The Committee, therefore, believes that adjusting the
level of the recommendation in the first year of the current five
year program, and continuing the annual increase adopted last
year, is prudent and consistent with current projections of
capacity. : ,

46

& 9%




IV. HIGHER EDUCATION DEBT

VA; Background

Chapter 93, Laws of Maryland 1989, altered the revenue
bonding framework and authority of the University of Maryland
System, Morgan State University, and St. Mary's College of
Maryland and also assigned certain duties relevant to those
alterations to the Capital Debt Affordability Committee.

The statute provided a framework for the issuance of higher
education debt. 1In particular, the statute distinguished between
auxiliary facilities (which generate fees or income arising from
the use of the facility) and academic facilities (which are used
primarily for instruction of students and any facilities which
are not auxiliary). The statute also authorized institutions to
issue bonds to finance either auxiliary or academic facilities
(maximum terms of 33 and 20 years, respectively) with the
stipulation that any academic facilities so financed must first
be expressly approved by an act of the General Assembly as to
both project and amount.

Furthermore, the statute specified fund sources that could
be pledged as security as well as those that could be used for
debt service payments. Specifically available to be pledged as
-security are auxiliary fees (defined as fees and rents arising
from the use of the auxiliary facility) and academic fees _
(defined as tuition and student fees). The systems specifically
cannot pledge: a State appropriation; contracts, grants, or
gifts; or any other source not expressly authorized by the
-General Assembly. Debt service on bonds for either or both
auxiliary or academic facilities is payable solely from auxiliary
fees, academic fees, a State appropriation expressly authorized
for that purpose, or revenues from ccontracts, gifts, or grants.

, The statute and subsequent annual amendments to the statute
establish the maximum allowable amount of outstanding debt for
the University of Maryland System at $605.6 million, Morgan State
University at $28 million, and St. Mary's College of Maryland at
$15 million. Debt for both academic and auxiliary facilities,
including capital leases for real property, are subject to the
maximum. - ' :

The General Assembly, at its 1989-1992 sessions, authorized
academic facilities with a total project cost of $175.4 million
to be financed with bonds in an amount of $187.1 million. The
1993 General Assembly authorized academic facilities to be
financed with bonds in an amount of $24.5 million.
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In addition to defining higher education bond authority and
authorizing certain projects, Chapter 93 directs the Capital Debt
Affordability Committee to:

~ ",..review on a continuing basis the size and condition of
any debt of" the University of Maryland System, Morgan State
UniVersity, and St. Mary's College of Maryland;

"In preparing an estlmate w1th respect to the authorization
of any new State debt" [i.e., general obligation debt] to "take
into account as part of the affordability analysis any" debt for
academic facilities to be issued by a system"; and

...submlt_to the Governor and the General Assembly the
Committee's estimate of the amount of new bonds for academic
facilities that prudently may be authorized in the aggregate for
the next fiscal year by..." the University of Maryland System,
Morgan State University, and St. Mary's College of Maryland.

The charges pose two basic questions for the Committee. How
is higher education debt to be “taken into account" in the
Committee's affordability analysis? How is the Committee to

-determine a "prudent" amount of new academic debt that may be
authorized? ) _

B. Incorporating Higher Educatlon Academic Debt 1nto the
Affordability Analysls

The language in the statute expanding the Committee's charge
states: "In preparing an estimate with respect to the
authorization of any new State debt [i.e., general obligation
debt], the Committee shall take into account as part of the
affordability analysis any debt for academic facilities to be
issued by a system." This language is somewhat ambiguous as to
what constitutes "to take into account".

Neither the statute nor subsequent "Committee Narrative" in
the report of the chairmen on the Capital Budget specifically
directed the Committee to include higher education debt as a
component of State tax supported debt for purposes of the
capacity criteria or affordability analysis or the Committee's
recommendation relatlng to new authorization of general
obligation debt.

Secondly, durlng their February, 1989, presentatlon to the
joint fiscal commlttees, both attending ratlng agencies were
quite explicit in describing their approach to debt measurement
that debt issued by institutions of higher education was not
considered by them to be State tax supported debt. The debt of -
the three systems, either currently outstanding or related to
future issuances, would not, under current rating agency policy,
be counted by the rating agencies in determining the ratlng of
- the State S general obligation bonds.
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Third, both the statutory structure of higher education debt
and the current budgetary policies related to higher education
debt underscore the separation of higher education debt and tax
supported debt. The statute provides that higher education debt
may not be secured by a pledge of the issuer's general fund.
appropriation. The statute further provides that no general
funds may be used to pay debt service unless specifically '
authorized in the budget. Not only has no budget included such
authorization, but also the Secretary of Budget and Fiscal
Planning has stated in a letter to the Committee that there is no
commitment on the part of the Administration to provide general
fund support for higher education debt service. :

-Fourth, the revenue sources that secure the bonds are under o
the direct control of the systems and not directly subject to the
approval of either the governor or the General Assembly.

~ There appears, therefore, to be no standard of analysis
commonly used by rating agencies that would suggest that higher
education debt should be included as a component of State tax
supported debt. At the same time, however, the Committee must in
-some way "take into account" higher education academic debt. The
Committee believes that through careful analysis, discussions,
and deliberations of higher education debt levels, capacity, and
needs it is meeting legislative intent. It should be noted that
outstanding higher education debt, including both academic and
auxiliary debt as projected, is 0.45% of projected personal
income in fiscal year 1995 and each year thereafter.

C. Recommendlng a Prudent Level of New Htgher Education
Academic Debt to be Authorized

The Committee's charge is to submit an "estimate of the
amount of new bonds for academic facilities that prudently may be
authorized in the aggregate for the next fiscal year by the
University of Maryland System, Morgan State University, and St.
Mary's College of Maryland." This charge, therefore, requires
the Committee to distinguish between burdens 1mposed by academic
debt as opposed to those imposed by auxiliary debt in arriving at
a recommendation for academic debt alone. From a credit
analyst's point of view, the aggregate level of a system's debt
is critical, while the type of debt (academic versus auxiliary)
has less relevance to the credit analysis.

v One approach to determlnlng a prudent amount of new academic

debt to be authorized is to start with the aggregate level of
debt that each system anticipates issuing. If it is estimated
that level of debt is prudent over time, then it is reasonable
for the Committee to accept that aggregate total and to also
accept the breakdown (between academic and aux111ary) proposed by
a system. _
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This approach does not address the issue of the maximum
level of debt outstanding allowed by statute for each system.
While the Committee believes that "caps" on amount of debt
outstanding are outside the statutory charge of this Committee,
the analysis of system debt capaczty may prove useful to the
Governor and General Assembly in settlng limits for debt ’
outstanding.

The guidelines initially adopted by the Committee to judge
debt manageability are those contained in the rating methodology
used by one of the major rating agencies. Standard and Poor's
uses five factors to rate a public institution's debt (over a
time frame of several years): (1) the rating of the State, (2)
the State's general financial support for higher education as a
whole, (3) the State's financial support for the particular
institution, (4) the institution's demand and financial factors,
and (5) the securlty pledge.

The first, second,'and fifth factors are the same for all
three systems. All systems benefit from the State's triple-A
rating; all are part of public higher education in Maryland; and
all can offer the same types of security. _

The third factor is only relevant to Morgan State University
and St. Mary's College of Maryland since the University of
Maryland System, as now constituted, receives approximately 93%
of the State general funds approprlated to the three systems.

. The fourth factor, the institution's demand and financial

factors, encompasses a host of data dealing with the student
body, financial performance, and components of debt. The
specific guideline related to debt burden is twofold. First, the
most accurate measure of debt burden is judged to be debt service
as a percent of the sum of unrestricted current fund expenditures
plus mandatory transfers. Second, if that ratio exceeds 10%, the
institution is considered highly leveraged. Comparisons of
public institutions in one state to those in another state may
not be meaningful,' since the level of state support varies so
widely. The ratios range from below 2% to over 10% and do not -
necessarily correlate to ratings, since many other factors are
taken into account in evaluating credit worthiness.

Table 3 displays various components of debt for each of the
three higher education systems. In analyzing the data, it is
important to recognize that there are two levels of higher
- education debt measurement. One consists of the sum of the
components that count toward the statutory ceiling, and the other
measure consists of the sum of the components that count for the
- purpose of credit analysis.. It is presumed for purposes of this
analysis that the relevant measure is the one that encompasses
all components of debt - one that mirrors the measure used by
- credit analysts - and Table 3 reflects that.
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j?}\EBI;IZ 3

HIGHER EDUCATION DEBT
Total Auxiliary and Academic

Projected Issiences Debt

Auxiliary Academic Outstanding

niversity of Marylad Syétems:

‘199& 40,000 496,184

1995 - 30,00 - 40,000 539,032
‘1996 30,000 . 40,000 580,677
1597 20,003 40,000 619,416
1998 30,000 .. 40,000 655, £89
195 23,000 40,000 696, 620

i State University:

1954 - Norme Articipated - 30,199
1955 30,470
1995 30,885
1997 ‘ 31,32
1958 31,637

1555 31,723

t. Mary’s College cf Maryland:

199¢ 8,728
1995 5,500 13,956
1996 , 13,647
1957 _ 13,251
1998 . , 12,843

1559 : 12,567

($ in trousands)

Debt
Service

52,496
84,273
58,030
63, 351
64, 698
70,37

39S

1,018
1,092
1,086

Q34

51 Q&Y

U~estricted
Current Furnd
Experciitures
plus
Mardatory -
Transfers

1,225,098
1,282,363
1,344,976
1,412,670
1,484,513
1,559,673

Retio of
Debt Service to
UCF Expenditures plu
Mendatory Transfers
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Two of the three systems anticipate issuing new debt over
the next six years. The Un1vers1ty of Maryland System
anticipates issuing $40 million in auxiliary debt during flscal
1994; bonds will not be needed in fiscal 1994 to finance academic
projects. The System plans to issue $30 million in auxiliary
debt and $40 million in academic debt in fiscal 1995 and each
year thereafter. St. Mary's College of Maryland issued $5.1
million in auxiliary bonds in April, 1993, for student housing
and anticipates issuing $5-$6 million in auxiliary debt during
fiscal 1995 for a student center. Morgan State University issued
$25.2 million in auxiliary bonds in May, 1990, for a project to
rehabilitate existing dormitories and add approximately 600 new
dormitory beds. 1In July 1993, Morgan issued $27.9 million in
refunding bonds to advance refund the 1990 dormitory bonds.
Morgan currently has no plans to issue additional debt. '

As can be seen from the final column of each panel in the
table, each system is well within the criteria suggested by
Standard & Poor's for measuring debt burden. The debt burden
ratios are less favorable than displayed last year for the
University and more favorable for Morgan and St. Mary's. The
less favorable ratios for the University reflect reduced levels
of capacity for each fiscal year. Unrestricted Current Fund
Expenditures plus Mandatory Transfers are currently estimated to
be approximately 10% below the levels projected in last year's
report. The more favorable ratios for Morgan are the result of a
combination of reduced debt service - because of the lower
interest rates associated with the refunding bonds - and higher
levels of Unrestricted Current Fund Expenditures plus Mandatory
Transfers; for Saint Mary's, it is a result of slightly higher
levels in Expenditures plus Transfers.

Since each of the system's debt issuance plans would result
in a debt burden level well below the 10% "highly leveraged" '
threshold established by Standard & Poor's, there appears to be
no basis for the Committee's recommendation to differ from the
systems' plans at this time. The Committee recommends a limit of
$40 million of new bonds for academic facilities- that prudently
may -be authorized in the aggregate for the next fiscal year.
This amount repyesents financing of academic facilities by the
University of Maryland System. :

D. Baltlmore City Community Colleg_

The Commlttee s respon51b111ty for reviewing hlgher
education debt was originally enacted in 1989 and enumerated the
debt of the three systems then in existence as the subject of the
Committee's rev1ew
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‘ In 1990, the General Assembly enacted legislation
transferring management responsibility for the Community College
of Baltimore to the State and renaming the institution as the New
~Community College of Baltimore. The legislation did not grant
the institution the authority to issue debt. Legislation enacted
by the 1992 General Assembly, however, granted the authority to
issue debt for auxiliary facilities only, limiting the aggregate
principal amount of bonds outstanding to $15 million, and renamed
the institution the Baltimore City Community College.

Although the analysis of the debt of the BCCC was not added
to the Committee's charge, the Committee reviewed the debt '
program of the institution. The Committee's charge includes the
review of debt of any State unit and, therefore, its scope
includes debt of the Baltimore City Community College. The
Committee believes, however, that Baltimore City Community
College should be not excluded from the specific listing of
higher education institutions but should be mentioned as are the
other three systems. Needless to say, BCCC would not be included
in the Committee's estimate of the amount of new bonds for
academic facilities that prudently may be authorized for the next
fiscal year, because the BCCC does not have the authority to
issue bonds for academic facilities but only for auxiliary
facilities. The Committee recommends that the Baltimore City.
Community College be added to the specific listing of higher
education institutions subject to review by the Committee.

The BCCC does not now have'any debt outstanding. It is
currently exploring the feasibility and de51rab111ty of various
capital projects that might be funded by the issuance of
auxiliary bonds or through capital leases during the next several
fiscal years. The Committee expressed concern that some of the
- projects under consideration by the BCCC might fall outside the
definition of auxiliary facultles for which it has the authorlty
to issue debt.
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V. OTHER ISSUES

A. Committee Authorization of Addltlonal Issues by the
_Department of Transportatlon

In addltlon to establlshlng the maximum amount of
Consolidated Transportation Bonds that could be outstanding for
the next fiscal year to $1.025 billion, as required by Chapter 3,
Laws of Maryland 1992 Special Sessions, the Joint Chairman's
Report also stated that: :

"The Department of Transportation's capital program as
presented in the Consolidated Transportation Program is
based on a bond sale of $55 million in FY 1994. 1If
authorized by the Capital Debt Affordability Committee, the
Department may issue an additional $30 million in debt in
order to replace lost revenue upon which the original
program was based or to complete the noise barrier program
with a 20 percent local match."

The Department of Transportatlon s Consolldated
Transportation Bond program includes an issue of $40 million in
September, 1993 (sold in conjunction with some level of refunding
bonds). - The Department does not plan to issue any additional
Consolidated Transportation Bonds in fiscal 1994. The program of
anticipated issuances over the five-year forecast period, when
coupled with other components of State tax supported delkt,
results in levels .of debt outstanding that are compatible with
_the Committee's affordablllty criteria of 3.2% of personal
income. :

B. Treatment of Authorization Effective June 1, 1995

Chapter 400, Laws of Maryland 1993, authorized State funding
for the Conventlon Center in the form of general obligation bonds
in the amounts of $20 million (Section 2) and $30 million
{Section 3). All sections of Chapter 400 except Section 3 took
effect on June 1, 1993; Section 3 takes effect on June 1, 1995.

- Section 4, moreover, contained the following language:

"...that the Capital Debt Affordability Committee, in
preparing a recommendation for the limit on the amount of
general obligation bonds to be submitted to the General
‘Assembly no earlier than the 1995 Session, shall include the
$30 million of general obligation bonds authorized in
Section 3 of this Act as part of the limit on the amount of
- general obligation bonds. Additionally, the Committee shall
take into consideration the $30 million in deferred general
obligation bonds authorized in Section 3 of this Act in all
calculations of the total tax supported debt of the State."
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The intent of the General Assembly is for the $30 million
authorization not be deemed an authorization of the 1993 General
Assembly but rather an authorization of the 1995 General
Assembly. : Characterization in that fashion serves to absorb the
first $30 million of whatever amount of new general obligation
authorizations the Capital Debt Affordability Committee
recommends for the 1995 General Assembly/fiscal 1996 capltal
program. The current general obligation authorization bond
program anticipates a recommendation of $390 million for the 1995
General Assembly/fiscal 1996 capital program - a 3% increase over
the $380 million limit for new general obllgatlon debt
authorizations the Committee will recommend in this year's report
‘for the 1994 General Assembly/fiscal 1995 capital program.  As
directed by Section 4 of Chapter 400, that $390 million 1ncludes
the $30 million.

" C. County Transportation Bonds

Although County Transportation Bonds have been used
exclusively to make loans to counties and are secured by taxes
imposed and collected by the State but otherwise payable to the
counties, the original authorizing statute (Section 3-309 of the
Transportation Article) state that "Bonds issued under this
subtitle are the obligations of the Department and may not be
considered to constitute a debt of a county for the purposes of -
determlnlng its debt 11m1tatlon."

As Departmental ‘debt paid from State tax revenues, the
County Transportation bonds have been considered State tax
supported debt and, as such, use up State debt capacity that
could be used for other State projects. As a consequence, for
the past three years the Committee has recommended that the
General Assembly consider alternatives to the County
Transportation Bonds that were established in State law.

Chapter 539, Laws of Maryland 1993, authorizes the
Department of Iransportatlon to establish a financing program to
enable the counties to finance the cost of transportation
facilities without the issuance of State or Departmental debt.
The new statute specifically states that (a) the bonds shall be
payable solely from the revenues received by the Department from
the participating counties for that purpose, and (b) neither
revenues of the State, the revenues of the Department, nor the
Transportation Trust Fund can be pledged nor be used to pay debt
service. Additionally, the statute states that bonds issued
under this program are neither debt of the State nor the
Department but are obligations of the participating counties.

With the exception of refunding bonds issued under the new
program, counties may participate in the new program only after
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approval by any required local ordinance or resolution; the bonds
issued under the program are subject to any local referendum
requirements or local tax limits.

As noted in earlier sections of this report, the base
analysis assumes no future issuances of county bonds under the
old program and assumes as well an advance refunding of certain
of the currently outstanding County Transportation Bonds. The
county bonds to be refunded are those issues the refunding of
which will generate both positive present value and debt service
savings for all county participants - the Third, Sixth, Seventh,
and Eighth series. This refunding has effectively eliminated
approximately $30 million in State tax supported debt in fiscal
1994 - since refunding replaces State tax supported debt (the
currently outstanding county bonds) with non-State tax supported
debt (the new county bonds). Because the Committee's base
analysis last year was based on current law, that analysis.
incorporated a continuation of the old State tax supported county
bond program. The combination of the effect of not 1ssu1ng any
additional bonds under the old program plus refunding four
existing series with county bonds under the new program results
in a total increased debt capacity of approximately $50 million.
With continued improvement in interest rates, it is possible that
an advance refunding »f additional series {most likely are the
Ninth, Tenth, and Eleventh) will provide present value and cash
savings for all participants; the refunding of this second group,
however, has not been incorporated into the base analysis. Table
4 compares State tax supported debt outstandlng under the o0ld and
new programs.
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stalte Tax Supoportecd Counly Trerspoi-tation Bonds Outstanding
~ Comp¥arison of 0ld County Bord Procg~mm with New County Bornd Proaeam

———————————— Country Transportation Bonds Outstardirng (met of Sinking Fund) - - - - -
Old Proaranm Additional TOTAL
1992 CDAC Repai-t Charge in . _Eliminated ad Change in Chanrge in
01ld Program - Old Progeam Debt  Refud 4 Issues Debt : Debt
Fi=zcal " Contirues Eliminated Cutstanding uder New Program — Outstanding Outstanrding
1993 ) 121,725 111,541 (9, 18/() 111,541 0 - (9,124)
1994 112, 005 93,908 (18,097) 63,904 ~ (30,004) (48,101)
C 1995 101,433 764,853 (26,585) . 55, 506 (19,247) (45,9232)
1996 96,014 61,453 (34,561) 46,541 (14,912) - (49,6473)
S)) 1997 ) 89, 554 i 47,532 (42,052) ' 37,733 (9,769) (51,821)
© 1998 86,040 36,968 (49,072) 32,802  (4,166) (53,238)

Xo&

09/03/93
0s:40 AM

Yy A1V I



60



ATTACHMENT

LOUIS L. GOLDSTEIN

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY
LOUIS L. GOLDSTEIN TREASURY BUILDING
P.0. BOX 466
ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND 21404-0466
(410) 974-3801

September 9, 1993

Honorable Lucille Maurer

State Treasurer

Chair, Capital Debt Affordability Commlttee
State Treasury Department

Goldstein Treasury Building

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

Dear Treasurer Maurer:

As per our discussion on Tuesday, September 7, 1993, I would like
a copy of this letter to be attached to the annual report of the
Capital Debt Affordability Committee with reference to the need
for the construction of public school facilities throughout
Maryland in anticipation of an unusual growth of students.

The latest reports show that there will be an additional 100,000
students throughout Maryland by the year 2000, and in Calvert
County alone, they anticipate an additional 17,000 students by
the year 2000. In my opinion, now is the time to start building
these school facilities so they will be in place when the need

exists. Time is of the essence. , -

Respectfully yours,

LLG:dlv

61 20)( ;
MRS FOR DEAF 1-800-735-2258 @ AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER






) | | | | . APPENDIX A-1

MARYLAND PERSONAL INCOME AND POPULATION
HISTORICAL DATA AND PROJECTIONS

Calendar Personal | ‘ % - , : %
Year - - Income Change Population Change
: {(millions) C (thousands) '
1983 59,019 o ' 4,301
1984 65,432 10.9% | 4,349 _ C1l1m
1985 _ 71,290 . $.0% ' 4,393 ' 1.0%
1986 77,100 ©al1x 6,061 1.5%
1987 , 83,586 . 8.4% 4,536 S 1.7%
1988 91,282 $.2% 4,622 1.9%
1985 . 98,915 8.4% ¢, 696 1.6%
1990 105,236 6.4% 4,781 1.9%
1991 103, 363 3.0% . 4,860 o 1lex
1992 113,481 6.7% ' | 4,éos . 1.0%
1993 117,953 3.9% , 4,957 1.0%
1994 ' 124,558 - S.6% S, 006 1.0%
1995 131,782 5.8% | 5,056 | | ;.02
1996 139,360 ' 5.5% 5,109 ©1.0%
1997 , 147,025 5.5% 5,162 1.0%
1998 155,111 5.5% 5,216 L 1.0%
1595 163,642 's5.5% 5,271 - 1.0%

Personal Income: _ .
1983 - 1991: Official Statement State and Local Facilities Loar of 1993 -
Second Series (U.S. Oéoartment_of Commerce, Buresau of Economic Analys!
189392 U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Econcmic Analysis
1983 - 1999: Bureau of Revenus Estimates

Population: ~ . _
1883 - 1989: Official Statement State and Local Facilities Loan of 13991 -
Fourth Series (U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Censzus)

1990 - 1999: Office of Planning/Bureau of Revenue Estimates
1993 - 1999: Bureau of Revenue Estimates

07:25 AM
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APPENDIX A-—2

MARYLAND STATE REVENLE PROJECTIONS
' (s in millions)

Gereral - - stadium

Fizcal Fund ‘ Property : Trenspor-tation Related Total
Year Revere . Taxes Total Reverves Reveryues Reveri s
1983 2,096.5 | 108.2 - 3,205.7 531.9 _ 3,737.6
1984 3,416.3 116.1 3,532.9 . en.5 ’ 4,193.4
1985 3,809.2 104.8  3,914.0 Ceses . 4,e03.8
1986 4, led.1 112.2 4,276.3 730.7 | 5,007.0°
1987 ‘; 4,642.0 121.2  4,763.2 780.5 - . ©5,843.7
1983 5,053.2 - 124.9 5,228.1 892.5 - . e,130.6
1589 5,442.3 -. 147.0  5,589.3 . %45.3 6,536
1550 . 5,705.2 162.5 5,867.7 966, 1 11.11 6,826,
1991 6,627.5, 174.9 6,202.4 893.9 | 12.0 7,108.3
1992 6,172.7 | 185.2 6,361‘.9 931.0 12.1 7,305.0
1933 : 6,455.0 209.9 6,662.9" . 1,083.0 13.7 ‘ 7,739.6
9% C6,576.4  216.9  6,791.3 | ‘l,Déé.D 13.6 7,851.0
1995 | 6,840.8 225.1 7,065.9 1,138.0 20.9 8,224.8
15% 7,148.0 236.3 7,384.3 1,172.0 24.1 8,520.4
1997 7,451.1 248.1 7,739.2 1,212.0 | 24.7 8,975.%
1598 . 7,850.7 260.5  8,111.2 1,241.0 - 286 $,377.9

1959 8,227.5 273.6 8,501.1 - 1,275.0 25.7 S,801.8

Gereral Fund:1983 - 1591, Sueplemental Fimarcial Cata of the Comptroller
1992 - Board of Reverwe Estimates, December 10, 1992 report
1993 - 1999, Bureau of Revernie Estimates
Prcperty Tax Reveries: 1982 - 1991, Supolemental Firerncial Data of the Comptroller
1992 - Crart of Sieplemental Financial 0ata of the Comptroller
1933 -~ Prelimirery Data of the Comptroller
1934 - Commissicn on State Cebt
_ 1995 - 1989 - State Treasiurer’s COffice
Trensportation Reverves: Department of Trensportation, Office of Asst Secy, Fimarce
Stadium Reverues: Transfers from the Stadium Facilities Fud to the Stadium Authority
: are assumed to be just sufricient, when coupled with the Authority’s
oWw—-saurce reverues, to meet cebt service requirements. ‘ :
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Gereral Proposed
" Asseadly Auttcrica-
Saession tions (b)
1994 3801
1995 33A)
1996 400
1997 415
19958 430
1999 445
2000 460
2001 475
2002 490
2003 - 805
Jotal
Cusrent

Aathorizatices () 1,131

Total Issussmvyces

Notes:

PROFOSED GENERA[. OBL.IGATION AUTHORIZATIONS AND EST IMATED J1SSUANCES

——————————— Estimated lssumces Du~irg Fiscal Yees- (&) e oo

19

o

3D
(c)

1995

95
0

. ($ in millions)

1996 1997 1993 1999 201 2101
95 76 76 19 19 s)
93 93 73 73 20 2)

0 100 100 &0 80. 20
0 104 104 a3 a3

o. 108 108 86"

0 111 111

0 115

0

193 274 358 a8 420 435
198 127 62 a7 25 25

30 400 é20 435 645 4en
(c) (c) :

(&) Percertage issumce assunptions by fiscal yvears:

" Fiscal year following year of authorization

Percent. of ariginal authorization issued:

isl:

25%

2

- 25%

3

2%

4th

z

2272

o
(n]
21
85
89
1185
119

450

463

5th

5%

(b) Net of 38 million - the remaining bonxls authorized by the Qutdoorr Recreaticn Loan of 1969

which &re unissued ab Jure 20, 1993. This amount will be cacelled.:

PAN RS

465

- 6th

5%

(c) Includes 320 million in fiscal 1994, $23 million in fiscal 1996, and $10 million in fiscal 1997
for- the Corwvention Center. ' '

S 07:3) AM
/03/93

Total
(3oL

380
30
400
415
ang
4Dl
322
258
123

4,27
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FROJECTED GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT - AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED

Althorrized but i Authorized but

Flsca), Unissuecd Debt at . ' New Debt Projected Unissued Debt at

Yeor Beglrming of Year Boxi Issues Authorizations @+ Cancellations End of Year
(a) o (b)

1924 1,139,018 A1), 00 3a3, 00 1,000 1,138,018
1995 1,138,018 350, 000 390,000 ' 1,000 1,177,018
1996 1,177,018 390, 000 4100, 000 1,000 © 1,186,018
1997 . 1,186,018 400, 000 415,000 1,000 1,200,605

1598 : 1,200,018 419,750 ‘ 420,010 S,103) 1,239, 268
195 1,309, 268 435,000 445,000 1, 0C0) 1,218, 268
20700 1,218,263 ‘ 445,250 GED, ) : 1,000 1,232,018
2001 1,232,018 459,750 475,000 Co1,000 1,246,268 .
2A%732 1,266,268 _ 462,501 4F), A . 1,273,768
2003 ‘ 1,273,768 464,500 805, (o0 ' ‘ 1,314,268

(a) As projected in Aspendix B-1.

(b) - Projected cearcellations are $1 million per~ year for C(utdoor Recreation.

07:31 A1
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APPENDIX B-3
FRCOJECTED GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT OUTSTANDING

(3 in thousands)

Qutstading
Fiscal at Beginmnirg Mew . Outstarnding
Year . of Year Issues Redemptions - at End of Yezr
a) " (b) S
1594 2,279,405 380,00 182,935 . 2,476,470
1995 2,476,470 350,000 217,218 2,609,253
1996 2,609,253 390,003 226,533 2,772,715
1997 2,772,715 400,000 - © 241,575 2,931,140
1598 2,931,140 419, 7503 252,725 3,098, 165
1999 3,098, 165 435,000 239, 142 . 3,29%,023
2000 3,294,023 445,250 270,203 3,465,070
2001 3,469,070 459,750 286,544 3,642,276
2002 3,642,276 - 462,500 206, 849 3,797,927

2003 3,797,927 - 464,800 328,792 3,933,635

e

(a) As projected in Acperdix s—i.

(b} Assumes cebt service on minibords is paid at mtwlty ad
rno minibond put options are exercised.

07:31 AM
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FROJECTED GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE

($ in Clrousaxls) -

. o - = — Adiustmert - - -
“iscal R Grross Debt Serwvice - - - - — Debt Service Non-State o Acliusted

Yeei~ Boicds Currently - New o on "Repayable” Debt Service Gereral Obligation
Qutstendirg (a) Issues Total - Bonds (b) Assianed (c) Debt Service
1994, 325,287 3,150 328,437 ' (654) 2,146 329,929
1995 253,118 ' 21,325 374,443 : (653) 1,462 - 375,252
1996, 344,005 41,938 385,943 (652) 1, 360) 386, 651
1597 313,853 81,126 399,986 - (647) 347 R 399, 624
1998 - 294., 289 119,360 413,648 (642) &4 : : 413,070
1979 262,86 165, 121 407,931 (124) 0 ' 407,857
20007 243%,19% . 212,207 455,403 v 0 ’ 0 455, 403
2001 217,769 259,472 Ca77,220 o 0 ‘ ' 477,221
20012 195, 190 308, 193 503, 384 ' o o . 503,384

2003 176,47 357,624 534,093 0 0o S 824,093

(a) Assunes debt service on minibonds is paid at matur-ity arc!
o minibond put cpticns a~e exet‘cised.

(b) Represents debt service which is repaid to the State by local subclivisions
rior to Lhﬁ debt ser*vix.e paymeit ce clate. .

(c) Repiresents debt service ﬂssumed by the State on bonds issued by local
sidxiivisions for publia. s«.h‘.ols

07:32 AM
09/103/93
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HISTORICAL DATA .- SCHOOL D8I

|

(a) FY 1987 authorizations Include $3,500,000 for Systeaic Renovations

{$ in thousands)
- STATE PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION AND CAPIVAL - INPROVEMENT LOANS - GENERAL PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION LOANS
| Authorlzed ~huthorized
Fiscal , - Out- But Debt  Authorized/ Cut-  But
Year ‘Aun‘m)‘lzed' Issued Redeemed standing Unissued Service  (Cancelled) lssued Redeemed standing Unissued
a .
- 1965 .0 .0 0 0 0 0 50,000 20,910 10,511 122,597  N,975
1966 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,570 10,926 138,241 48,405
1967 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 28,380 10,922 155,699 70,028
1968 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. 28,110 11,755 172,084 41,915
1969 0 0 0. 0 0 0 0 11,405 12,796 170,663 30,510
1970 0 0 0 0 0 0 -50,000 24,380 - 14,042 181,001 56,130
1971 150,000 0 0 0 150,000 0 0 40,105 15,453 205,653 16,025
1972 300,000 90,340 0 90,30 359,660 1,986 0 4,580 16,406 193,827 11,445
1923 220,000 73,000 0 163,340 506,660 5,218 0 3,770 16,561 181,036 1,615
197¢ 212,000 114,400 - 0 277,740 604,260 9,15¢ 0 0 18,125 162,911 1,675
1975 160,000 186,000 5,170 458,570 578,260 20,623 0 5,830 18,651 150,090 1,845
1976 50,000 162,700 9,685 611,585 465,560 34,202 0 0 18,241 131,849 1,848
1977 69,000 230,900 16,590 825,895 303,660 52,119 0 0 18,384 113,465 1,885
1978 $2,000 121,650 27,240 920,305 239,010 70,941 0 1,695 12,465 92,695 150
1979 62,000 70,750 37,285 953,770 230,20 85,335 0 0 16,890 80,805 150
1980 45,000 48,210 52,195 . 949,785 227,050 99,952 -0 0 16,085 . 64,720 150
1981 45,000 111,200 61,860 999,125 160,850 111,619 (150) 0 W,875 49,865 0
1982 32,000 65,500 69,120 995,505 127,350 126,968 0 0 13,060 36,805 0
1983 22,000 86,350 75,410 1,006,485 63,000 134,258 0 0 10,605 26,200 0
1984 - 36,000 36,500 82,025 955,920 62,500 146,099 0 . 0 8,515 17,685 0
1985 3,600 24,000 96,685 685,235 - 13,100 153,339 0 0 7,765 9,920 0
1986  ¢6,300 38,000 103,545 619,690 79,400 149,417 0 0 5,375 - 4,545 0
1987 57,400 34,040 ' 111,190 742,560 102,760 163,947 0 0 1,865 3,080 0
1988 53,000 55,750 109,295 688,995 100,010 157,696 0 0 1,085 1,995 0
1989 46,000 52,000 110,090 630,905 92,010 155,959 S0 0 725 1,270 -0
1990 53,000 35,300 106,395 559,810 109,710 148,622 0 0 75 495 0
1991 60,000 57,000 94,910 521,900 112,710 133,620 -0 0 155 340 0
1992 69,000 76,510 76,725 521,685 105,200 113,813 0 0 165 175 0
1993 80,000 95,000 58,520 558,165 . 90,200 93,822 0 "0 175 0 0

Debt

13,608
14,661

15,311

16,628
18,561
19,672
2,00
2,080
23,903

25,066

25,100
Am
23,73
2.n
20,981
19,551
12,707
15,91

12,39
9,765

8,628
5,845
1,691
1,25

07

LY/

175
n
1

- SUPPLENENTAL PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION LOANS

~N N
- y

'oocaevooéagg oo oggcege:oha coocooo

23

1,540

1,630

1,728
1,828
1,93
2,215
2,395
2,53
2,695
2,870

780

835

895

-
§=°= oo ocoocoocoo0 o

- -Authorized

Out -

coooco 00000

3
g

*. 20,000

20,000
23,940
2,815
21,625
20,085

18,455 -

20,730
19,805
17,670
15,655

13,20 -

10,725
8,030
5,160
¢,380
3,545
2,650

~ But

~
(3

. %,

oo oo aec.aag §§ oao{égg‘ggaa cooooe

Pebt

Service  Muthorized lssued Redeened standing Unissued Service

(-]

LIS

1,113
2,289
2,409
2,412
2,688
2,6%
2,810
2,985
3,187
3,359
3,413
3814

3,4%

3,437

1,14
1,176
1,19

[~ — I — I — I I — B — B — I — O — I

fiscal
Year

1985
1966
1967
1968
1969
1970
9
1972
1973

- 19N

1975
1976
19
1978

- 199

1980

1981 -

1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
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HISTORICAL DATA - OEPARTHENT OF TRANSPORTATION DEBY

Consolidated Iransportation Bonds
(8 in thousends)

Gross Debt - Gross Debt . Net Dedbt - - - - & - - - pebt Service (d) - - - - - -

Outstanding : Outstanding Sinking Outstanding Oeposits to :
Fiscal 8eginning . .. End Fund(s) End Refunding Principal
Year of Yeor Issued Defeased Redeened - of Year Batance (c) of Year Sinking Fund Redeened [Interest Total
1979 354,900 35 (b) 354,865 85,727 269,138 30,491 3% 19,076 §9,602
1980 . 35¢,885 45,000 399,865 125,826 224,039 227,99 » 20,559 48,483
1981 399,865 120,000 (a) ’ ' 519,865 165,346 354,519 22,924 - 23,943 £6,867
1982 519,865 60,000 60,000 $19,865 198,770 321,098 20,924 © 28,945 49,869
1983 519,865 40,000 _ 60,000 ' 699,865 . 260,601 259,264 20,924 60,000 32,884 113,808
1984 499,065 $99,865 283,617 216,248 . 20,924 ‘ 29,219 50,143
1989 499,865 . £99,865 335,241 166,62¢ 20,924 . 29,219 . 50,143
1986 © 499,865 © 354,868 3,000 162,000 29,299 112,701 10,462 3,000 19,547 33,009
1987 142,000 100,000 7,000 235,000 48,317 186,683 f' 7,000 12,919 19,919
19688 235,000 - 8,000 227,000 58,953 168,047 8,000 15,685 23,685 .
1989 227,000 100,000 17,000 310,000 68,162 241,838 o 17,000 18,195 35,195
1990 . 310,000 260,000 20,000 $%0,000 67,309 482,691 20,000 28,842 $8,842
1991 550,000 310,000 18,000 842,000 68,329 173,671t ‘ 18,000 {6,261 66,261
1992 842,000 120,000 - 21,000 941,000 66,230 87¢,770 21,000 59,211 80,211
1993 944,000 15,000 : $6,200 959,800 39,901 919,899 _ 56,200 (e) 61,4085 117,645

J Note: On 2/15/78, $354.9 alllion of refunding bonds vere lssued thet refunded $366.9 allllon in outstanding State Highvay Construction Bonds
~ ($99.4) and Consolidated TransportationBonds ($247.5 afllion). Therefore, ot 6/30/78, $354.9 sillfon vas outstanding. These bonds vere
: fully defeased by the end of flscal 1986, : ‘
o (a) 1Includes 360 millfon Consolidated Transportstion Bonds plus a one-year Bond Anticipation Note for $60 nillion,

The one-year BAN vas re-issued the folloving yesr. :

{b) Specitications for the use of certain federal fung: received by the Department required retiring debt; therefore, during flscnl 1979, the
Departaent purchased 935,000 of the refunding bonds on.the open market. ‘

(¢) For those bonds Issued prior to 7/1/89, sinking fund balances reflect the net effect of: deposits into the fund, one‘caléndar year in
advence, of debt service; fund earnings; and payments, from the sinking fund, to bondholders. Bonds issued after 7/1/89 do not require
such a sinking fund, ' ‘ : :

(d) Represents payments to the refunding bond sinking fund plus payaents of principal and interest to the bondholders.
Asounts may differ fron budgetary smounts (budgetary aaounts represent payment to sinking funds).

(e) Includes early redemptions of $30 million.

ne.aa M
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HISTORICAL DA'A - OEPARTHENI OF !RANSPORIAIIOM oesr

County Iransportation Bonds

{9 in thou;ands)

Fiscal
Year

1979
1980
1981
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990
1991 -

1992
1993

Note:

Gross Debl
Outstanding
Beginning
of Year

156,595
160,585
160,370
219,640
225,085
257,335
276,620
296,395
299,470
152,565
161,900
159,290
157,708
161,380
155,240

On 5/25/78, $155.725 alllion of refunding bonds vere {ssued that refunded $153.685 nillfon in outstanding County Highvay Construction Bonds '
These bonds vere fully defeased by the

Issued
§,645

$9,270

5,700

34,878
22,270
24,210
- 8,798
40,590
18,255
7,28%
9.950
16,550
8,300

{a)

and County TYrensportation Bonds.

end of fiscal 1986,

" (a)

(v)
{c)

(d)

Defeased '
or Refunded Redeengd

6595
215

255
2,625
2,985
4438
5,720

180,405 (b) 7,090
8,920
9,895
11,538
12,875
14,440
16,408

Gross Debt

- Outstanding

End
of Year

160,585
160,370
219,640
225,085
257,335
276,620
296,395

299,470

152,565
16,900

159,290 -

157,708
161,380
155,240
138,833

Sinking

Fund(s)
Balance (c)

35,898

48,491

67,056
85,295
106,373
124,619
144,595
177,185
21,479
21,599
26,024
23,978
25,539
27,31
27,294

Net Debt
Outstanding
End
of Year

- 124,687
111,879
152,584
139,790
152,962
152,001
151,800

122,285
131,086
140, 301
133,266
133,727
135, 8¢1
127,926
111,581

At 6/30/78, $155.725 aillion of the refunding bonds vere outstanding.
Also outstanding at 6/30/78 vas 8870 thousand in old County Highuay Construction Bonds that vere not refunded.

Deposits to
Refunding Principal

Sinking Fund Redeeaed
9,832 655
9,882 215
9,413 ‘ '

19,266 25%
9,216 2,625
8,749 - 2,985
7,214 §,438

5,720
7,090
8,920
9,895
11,538
12,875
14,440
16,405

Represents the Hinth Serfes fssue of 811,415 nillion plus a refunding series 5! $29.175 nitlion Issued to

refund 924.680 efllion.

The $29.175 million vill sature from fiscal 1988 through fiscal 1998,

Represents the defeasance of $155.725 nillion and the refunded 824.680 aillion,

Sinking fund balances reflect the net effect of:

debt servlce. fund earnlnos. and payments, from the sinking fund, to bondholders,

ﬂepresents parnents to the refunding bond sinking fund plus payaents of prlnclpal and interest
Alounls way differ froa budgetary amounts (budgetary amounts represent payaents to sinking funds).

to bondholders.

deposits Into the fund, one flscal year ln advance. of

Interest

8,708
8,822
11,187

13,843

15,681
18,061
19,591
12,099
12,336
11,766
1,93
11,698
11,619
11,383
10,454

19,195
18,919
20,660
23,364

27,522

29,795
31,240

17,819

19,426

20,686

21,826
23,230

24,49¢

25,823
26,859
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THE STATE OF NEW YORK
UPDATED DEBT CAPACITY AND CONTROL ANALYSIS ‘

Preface

For the 1990-91 update of this Debt Capacity and Control Analysis, a major change in the
calculation of net tax-supported debt has been implemented as a result of the establishment of the
New York Local Government Assistance Corporation ("LGAC"). The State developed the LGAC
~ bonding program as a major component of a fiscal reform agenda for the purpose of replacing its
annual operating borrowings ("Spring Borrowing") with long-term bonds, in order to eliminate the
State’s dependence on seasonal short-term borrowings. In 1990, LGAC was authorized to issue
~ up to $4.7 billion of bonds and notes for the purpose of making payments to local governments
- and school .districts. During the State’s 1990-91 fiscal year, LGAC issued $909 million of bonds
in order to fund $800 million in payments to school districts. LGAC, which was viewed favorably
by the credit rating agencies and the financial community, includes a bond covenant which places
a cap on future intra-year cash flow borrowings. :

Under LGAC’s program, it is antnc:pated that the State’s annual Spring Borrowing will be
eliminated by the 1994-95 fiscal year. As LGAC issues its bonds, outstanding long-term tax-
“ supported debt will rise substantially, but short-term seasonal borrowing will at the same time be
* reduced to zero. For comparability purposes, this Office has determined to include short-term
operating borrowings in the 1990-91 Analysis. This change is consistent with recent comments
by financial rating analysts stating that short-term debt for operating purposes which is issued each
year should be included in the calculation of an issuer’s debt position and debt ratios. Moreover,
" prior years have been restated in this yp_g_t_g to include the Spring Borrowmg in order to facilitate
’j year-to-year compansons _

e



THE STATE OF NEW YORK
UPDATED DEBT CAPACITY AND CONTROL ANALYSIS

Introductwn and Fmdmgs

Introduction

In August 1984, this Office issued a paper entitled New York State: Debt Capacity and
Control Analysis. That study established, on both a current and projected basis, the level of New
- York’s long-term debt on which the State’s taxpayers must pay prmcrpal and interest and projected
the financial and economic resources available to pay such debt in the future

The amount of debt supported by State taxpayers was $20.8 billion for fiscal year 1990-91,
including $16.7 billion of long-term debt and the $4.1 billion of short-term debt for operating
purposes. This amount of debt is a larger amount than the traditionally issued general obligation
debt, but a smaller amount than any listing that includes all public authority debt. It is the debt
that this study determined is actually paid out of State tax receipts. :

This Analysis serves as the update of the original study, modified for the change indicated
in the Preface, and establishes the State’s net tax-supported debt position and the resources
available to pay that debt. The study is based on the Quarterly Confirmations of Outstanding Debt
collected by the State Comptroller and the State’s Financial Projections and Caprtal Plan for fiscal
years 1991-92 through 1995-96. :

" Findings

‘Net tax-supported debt for the fiscal year 1990-91 was found to be $20.8 billion, an
increase of 67.8% over the past five years. Long-term net tax-supported debt was found to be
$16.7 billion at March 31, 1991, a 106.3% rise since March 31, 1986, and the Spring Borrowing -
was $4.1 billion during the year. Even adjusted for a reclassification of bonds issued for State
University of New York ("SUNY") educational facilities by the Dormitory Authority to refinance
outstanding Housing Finance Agency ("HFA") bonds for such purposes, net tax-supported debt
increased 47.0% from 1986 (adjusted to mclude the Spring Borrowing).®

When this Office issued its report in 1986, the amount of net tax-supported debt projected

" to be outstanding on March 31, 1991 was $13.6 billion (adjusted to include the Spring Borrowing)
-- just 65.2% of the amount actually outstanding at March 31, 1991. (Absent the SUNY educa-
tional facilities reclassification, the amount of net tax-supported debt outstanding at March 31, 1991
“was still 34.3% above the amount projected in 1986.) The Capital Plan prepared in 1986 did not
anticipate debt issuances by the Medical Care Facilities Finance Agency ("MCFFA") for certain
hospital projects and by the Metropolitan Transportation Authority ("MTA"). In addition, issu-
- ances by the Urban Development Corporation ("UDC") were projected to be significantly less than
the amount that has been issued over the period. Finally, the 1986 Capital Plan did not anticipate
the refinancing of SUNY educational facilities financings by the Dormitory Authority.

Similarly, the Capital Plan prepared in 1986-87 was projected to result in net tax-supported
debt (adjusted to include the Spring Borrowing) at 3-31-91 that was 75.6%® of the amount

m In 1985-1986, debt for SUNY educational facilities was issued by the Housing Finance Agency and
was supported by tuition and student fees and therefore was not included in this Office’s definition
of tax-supported debt. All of this debt was refinanced through issuances by the Dormitory
Authority with debt supported by State tax receipts.

@ - Projections under the Capital Plan developed in 1986-87 resulted in a long-term net tax-supported
- debt position of $11.625 billion, plus the $4.1 billion Spring Borrowing.

AL




actually outstanding at 3-31-91 and the Capital Plan developed in 1987-88 projected debt
outstanding at 3-31-91 to be only 76.1%" of what was actually outstanding at that date.

If this pattern persists, it can be anticipated that.the amount presently projected to be

-outstanding at 3-31-96, $24.289 billion, will be significantly less than the amount that will actually

“be outstanding at that time. As noted on page 14 of the Analysis, the current Capital Plan is heav-

ily weighted toward the front end with very few issuances projected in the last two years of the
Plan. This occurs for three main reasons: (i) the level of authorized general obligation debt will
decrease; (ii) the bonding program for LGAC is expected to be completed during fiscal year 1994;

- and (iii) issuances by the Thruway Authority for highway repairs and improvements (see below)
- and by the Dormitory Authority for City University of New York programs are projected to end.

" The amount of issuance forecast for fiscal year 1995-96 is only 19.5% of the amount projected to
" be issued in fiscal year 1991-92. Based on prior years’ patterns, this does not appear to be real-
" istic. Thus, the projected debt ratios in this &g}y_sj are likely to be below the actual results for

fiscal year 1995-96.

Currently, the State projects issuances of $11.8 billion of long-term net tax-supported debt
during the next five years, according to the Financial Projections and Capital Plan prepared by the

- Division of the Budget and updated through October 1991. At the same time, the Spring Borrow-

- ing is expected to be reduced by an amount equal to LGAC issuances each year, which are project-
.ed to total $3.9 billion. As a result, the State’s net tax-supported debt position would rise to $24.3

LR

.. billion at March 31, 1996, an increase of 16.7% over the March 31, 1991 level. A comparison

of the change in the debt position and the debt ratios resulting from the Capital Plan versus the

. period ending March 31, 1991 and a comparison with’ mdustry standards for states are shown

~below.
‘State of New York Debt Position and Debt Ratios
' Ratio of
Industry Standa_rds State to Percent Change
Actual Waming Industry Projected  3-31-86 to 33191t

. 3-31-86? 3-31-91 Median® Level® Standards 3-31-96® 3-31.91 3-31-96

... Net Tax-Supported - , -

* - Debt (millions) $12,398 $20,809 - - - $24,289 67.8% 16.7%
Debt Per Capita. $697 $1,157 $345 - 3.35X $1,350 66.0 ' 16.7
Debt to - ] c . o

Personal Income 4.3% 52% 22% - 2.36X 49% . 20.9 (5.8)
Debt Service to )
Tax Receipts 4.1% 5.1% - 10.0% 0.51X 7.9% 24.4 54.9

m - The Capital Plan prepared in 1987-88 projected long-temi net tax-supported debt to be $11.746
» billion, plus the $4.1 billion Spring Borrowing. ,

@ Restated to include the Spring Borrowing.

® Median levels for all states in 1991, as calculated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

@ - Credit analysts view the 10% level as a rule-of-thumb indication of an excessive debt burden.

® Projected as a result of the debt issuances and growth in personal income and general fund tax

- receipts over the period which are included the Financial Projections and Capital Plan provided by
the Division of the Budget. Population is projected to be constant over the period, which is con-
sistent with the Division of the-Budget’s stat¢ément in the Financial Projections and Capital Plan that
there would be little or no growth in population over the next five years.
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All of the State’s debt ratios increased over the past five years; although the growth in
indebtedness was offset somewhat by the growth in the State’s economy. While total net tax-
~ supported debt rose 67.8% from March 31, 1986 to March 31, 1991, each of the ratios rose by
less than that amount. Debt per capita rose nearly as much -- 66.0% -- but debt to personal
income rose 20.9% and debt service to tax receipts rose 24.4%. During the upcoming five-year
period, the increase in both total and per capita debt is projected to be slower than during the five
previous fiscal years, at 16.7%. The ratio of debt to personal income is expected to fall 5.8%,
due to the completion of the bonding out of the Spring Borrowing and the projected rise in
personal income over the period. -

- The ratio of debt service to tax receipts is projected to rise much more rapidly over the
next five years than in the past because of the heavy debt issuance in recent years and the pro-
_jected slowdown in tax receipts. In addition, there were several debt service deferrals taken in
fiscal years 1990 and 1991 and principal repayments have been postponed on several authority
issues. These actions, while providing budgetary relief in the short run, will produce greater debt
service obligations for future years.. As a result, the ratio of debt service to tax receipts is expect-
" ed to be 7.9% at March 31, 1996, an increase of 54.9% over the fiscal year 1991 ratio. Such a
level approaches the 10% rule-of-thumb warning level used by credit analysts as an indication of
excessive debt burden

The credit agencies that assess the State’s bonds have commented that New York’s debt
ratios are high and growing, especially when compared to the ratios of other states. However,
because a large portion of the projected debt issuances are for the purpose of lessening the State’s
- reliance on short-term debt for operating purposes (to be issued by LGAC), th&se increases are not
expected to adversely affect the State’s credit ratings. '

ln fact, the LGAC program has, from a credit standpoint, more than offset the rise in debt
by addressing Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody’s") past concerns about the State’s high
use of short-term debt for operating purposes. This program is viewed favorably by financial
analysts because the State will be significantly less dependent on short-term debt for operations
after the bonding out. As noted in the most recent credit report released by Moody’s, however,
the continuing sale of deficit notes ($460 million in fiscal year 1988-89, $775 million in fiscal year
1989-90 and $1,081.5 million in fiscal year 1990- 91) has undercut some of the benefit of the
LGAC program.

With the institution of the LGAC program to "bond out” the Spring Borrowmg, this Office.
determined, in its annual review of the State’s net tax-supported debt position, that it would be
appropriate to change the calculation of the State’s debt to include the Spring Borrowing. Prior
years have also been restated to include the Spring Borrowing ® in order to make them compar-
able and to more accurately reflect the effect of the LGAC program. This change is consistent
with recent comments by financial analysts stating that short-term debt for operating purposes
which is issued each year should be included in the calculation of an issuer’s debt position. '

In addition tb the sale of deficit notes, the rating agencies have been concerned in recent
years about the growth in lease purchase and contractual obligation debt, which is often used to
avoid obtaining voter approval on certain bonding programs. Although total debt has risen 67.8%

o ‘Deficit notes have not been included in calculating the State’s debt 'posmon because they are expect-
ed to be eliminated during the current Capital Plan so that inclusion would make future years not
comparable.
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in the past five years, an examination of the change in net tax-supported debt by component is
informative: general obligation debt rose only 24.5%, moral obligation debt actually declined
43.1% and short-term operating debt declined 4.7%; lease purchase and contractual obligation debt,

- on the other hand, rose 265.4% from fiscal year 1986 to fiscal year 1991. The increasing use of
bond issues to provide one-time relief from budgetary stress, such as the sale of Attica prison and -
_ the reschedulmg of debt service payments on the Albany Mall, has also been cited as a negative
credit factor in recent years.” Indeed, in its review of the State dated December 2, 1991,

Standard & Poor’s Corporation ("S&P") stated: "the continued use of temporary or one-shot
solutxons could have a negative effect on the State’s 'A' G.O. rating."

_ In view of the rating agencies’ comments about the size of the State’s debt position and
their remarks about "one-shot solutions” and deficit notes, continued additions of large bonding
programs could cause negative credit implications at some point. For that reason, new bonding
proposals must be examined closely to determine if they can be supported within the State’s
available economic and financial resources. In particular, the infrastructure needs of the State must
be weighed against the increasing burden of debt service and overall budgetary outlays being
placed on New York taxpayers. .

M Another financing providing "one-shot” budgetary relief is the proposed $80 million Thruway
Authority service contract bonds. The State Comptroller has filed a lawsuit challengmg the legality
of this financing.
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Calculatiori of Debt Position

The point of departure for this Analysis is a determination of the amount of debt for which
_the State’s taxpayers are responsible. Once the calculation has been defined, the amount of debt
~ can be compared with the resources that the taxpayers provide to service the debt. In this way,
an analysis can be made of the abxhty of the taxpayers of the State to afford the debt that must be

paid for.
Amount of Indebtedne

The State’s debt position, as indicated in the Preface, consists of two principal elements:
long-term indebtedness and the amount of short-term operating debt issued each year (the "Spring
Borrowing”). - At March 31, 1991 the amount of long-term State, authority and local government
debt for which the State itself had direct or indirect responsibility amounted to $27.669 billion,

- consisting of the following: general obligation debt -- $4.649 billion; guaranteed debt -- $0.535
billion; contractual obligation debt -- $3.976 billion; lease-purchase debt — $8.604 billion; and
moral obligation debt — $9.905 billion (including $6.705 billion issued by the Municipal Assistance
Corporation). '

Because the State is ultimately responsible for its indirect as well as its direct obligations,
it could be argued that New York’s long-term debt position consists of these five components and
. thus totals $27.669 billion. Such a debt position does not, however, take into account the fact that
most of New York’s indirect obligations are serviced by non-tax revenues, such as highway tolls,
dormitory room rentals or local revenues. Accordingly, these obligations do not place a burden,
in the form of annual debt service, on the State’s direct resources. On the other hand, New
York’s taxpayers are responsible for more than just the $4.649 billion of general obligation debt
-- the debt approved by the voters.

The calculation of indebtedness that is used most frequently among municipal credit analysts
is the one that takes into account all issues supported by State-imposed tax revenues. This debt
position shows the amount of indebtedness serviced from the general government fund; that is, it
reflects the debt service payments made directly from tax revenues. That debt is known as net tax-
supported debt. All three of the rating agencies, Fitch Investors Service ("Fitch”), Moody’s and
S&P employ net tax-supported debt in their analyses.

Although a consensus seems to exist among credit analysts as to the appropriateness of
using net tax-supported debt, there is less unanimity about the precise calculation, other than the
inclusion of direct general obligation indebtedness. For instance, in a recent report on New York
(dated August 6, 1991) Moody’s calculated the State’s long-term debt position to be $20.1 billion,
or $2.4 billion greater than the Office of the State Comptroller’s ("OSC") calculation of long-term
net tax-supported debt on June 30, 1991 because Moody’s includes several items (Dormitory Auth-
ority issues for health facilities and SUNY dormitory facilities and MCFFA issues for mental
health services) that OSC views as self-supporting. On the other hand, Moody’s does not include
short-term operating debt when calculating the State’s debt ratios, so that the State’s overall
calculation of net tax-supported debt is $1.7 billion greater than that of Moody s. Appendix A
compares the State’s calculation to the Moody’s calculation. , :

The decision as to which indirect obligations to include in net tax-supported debt is,
. therefore, somewhat judgmental. For example, most of the items that carry the moral obligation

provision (e.g., Housing Finance Agency issues for housing and hospitals ) are now self-support-
ing. Similarly, non-tax revenues support certain lease-purchase debt, such as that issued by the
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Dormitory Authority to finance portions of the State University System which is serviced by
dormitory room rentals. To include such issues in New York’s tax-supported debt position would
- be a mismatch of obligations and resources; it would add obligations to the State’s debt position
that are only contingent liabilities, but not a direct drain, on its tax resources.

: Conversely, including only debt for whxch New York is legally liable, dlrectly or indirectly,
overlooks the fact that certain obligations (such as bonds issued by the Dormitory Authority to
~ finance capital improvements at the State University of New York and the City University of New
York) are supported by tax revenues although there is no legal requirement, even indirect, for the
. State Legislature to appropriate the debt service for such obligations. Disregarding these items in
calculating New York’s debt burden would also be a mismatch of obligations and resources.

For these reasons, the $27.7 billion of long-term State-level debt noted earlier was
examined to determine those items supported by tax receipts. All State-level debt was reviewed,
including guaranteed debt (debt that is guaranteed by the State); lease-purchase and contractual
obligation debt (debt that is serviced by the State in accordance with the terms of specific contracts
and leases, subject to annual legislative appropriations); and moral obligation debt (debt for which
the State agrees, subject to legislative appropriations, to make up any deficiency in a debt service
_reserve fund set up for the purpose of securing payment on the bonds). To the extent that any of
these items becomes self-supporting, or debt deleted as self-supporting becomes dependent on State
‘tax revenues, the item should be added to or subtracted from the State’s debt position.

During the review of items included in net tax-supported debt prepared for fiscal year
. 1990-91, this Office has determined that the State’s annual Spring Borrowing should be included
.. in the calculation, as explained in the Preface. This debt issue has occurred annually since
~. 1959-60 and it is the largest single financing that the State undertakes each year. For these rea-
- sons, and because the State developed the LGAC bonding program with the purpose of replacing
- annual operating borrowings with long-term bonds in order to eliminate over time the State’s de-
- pendence on short-term debt, it was deemed appropriate to include short-term operating debt in
- the calculation. This approach is consistent with recent remarks by rating agency officials who
. have indicated that short-term debt that is never really retired, but is reissued each year, should
- be included in debt calculations. '

As noted in recent credit reports issued by Moody’s, however, the continuing sale of deficit

notes has undercut some of the benefit of the LGAC program. Although the State Constitution
provides that deficit notes must be paid off in the succeeding fiscal year and may not be rolled
- over, the amount of deficit notes has increased annually over the past three years. To the extent
that this practice becomes an annual occurrence, deficit notes might also be Judged for inclusion
in the calculation of net tax-supported debt in future years.
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Calculation of Net Tax-Supported Debt -

The State’s calculation of net tax-supported debt outstanding at March 31, 19'9l'i,s shown

below: -
NET TAX-SUPPORTED DEBT
Outstanding as of March 31, 1991
(dollars in millions)
Short-Term Operating Debi (I) . . . . . . . . .. A | $4,100
. General Obligation Debt A ‘ ,
Bonds (2) . ...t e e e e e, 34,402
Commercial Paper . . . ... .. i e e et e e e e e 223
Bond Anticipation Notes . . . . .. e S ee e e e 24
Total ............ e e re e e e - 34,649
Contractual Obligation Debt (3) : ,
Dormitory Authority (4) . ... .................... . $ 19
Housing Finance Agency (5) . e e e 192
~ Local Government Assistance Corporation (6) . ........... - 909
Medical Care Facilities Finance Agency (7) .. ........... 450
Metropolitan Transportation Authority (8) . . . .. .......... 1,749
Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Authority (9) . ............. 449
Urban Development Corporation (10) . ... ...... Ceeesa 206 _ _
Total . .. ... T SN - 3.974
Lease-Purchase Debt (3) : ‘
Certificates of Participation (11) . . ... ............ . - 655
County of Albany-Empire State Plaza (12) . ............. - 354
Dormitory Authority-CUNY (13) . .............. P 2,107
Dormitory Authority-SUNY (14) . ................ . 2,589
Other Office Buildings (15) . ............ e e e e e 11
Thruway Authority (16) . ... ... ... .. i ueennn. : 168
Urban Development Corporation (1 7)o e 1,485
Total ......... e mesesaee e et 7,369
Moral Obligation Debt (3) (18) .. ... ... e et 713
Other Debt (19) . ............ P P | 4
Total Net Tax-Supported Debt . . . ........ . e |  $20,809
7
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Notes on Net Tax-Supported Debt Calculation

Repaid on March 29, 1991.

Excludes $1,081.5 million of outstanding tax and revenue annclpatlon notes and $236.99 mil-
lion of $404.69 million of State General Obligation Refunding Bonds dated August 1, 1986
to advance refund an equal amount of general obligation bonds that are included in this
table. Debt service on the refunding bonds will be paid from an escrow fund established
with the proceeds of the refunding bonds until the refunded bonds are redeemed from the
balance of the proceeds of the escrow fund. -

Payments made by the State used to pay debt service on contractual obligation, lease-pur-
chase obligations and moral obligations are subject to annual appropriations by the Legis-
lature and the availability of moneys to the State for the purposes of makmg such payments.
Issued to finance a llbrary for the blind and handicapped.

Issued to finance various housing programs.

Issued to finance certain assistance payments to local governments; secured by a portxon of

certain sales and use taxes.

Issued to finance certain hospital projects; secured by service contracts provxdmg for
payments by the State if necessary, subject to annual appropriations for up to 30 years.
Issued to finance transit improvements; secured by service contracts providing for payments
by the State over a 35-year period.

Issued to finance construction of the New York City Convention Center.

Issued to finance construction of high technology centers at certain universities, Ten Eyck
Plaza in Albany and the Onondaga County Convention Center.

Issued to finance the acquisition of certain equlpment and facilities.

Issued to finance the State’s office complex in Albany. Of this amount, $232 million relates
to debt issued by Albany County for construction of the complex and $123 million relates
to lease rental bonds issued by UDC to restructure debt service payments totalling $126.7.
million in fiscal years 1989, 1990 and 1991 on the Albany County bonds. '
Issued to finance capital improvements at City University of New York. Of this amount,
$1,753 million relates to obligations for Senior Colleges on which the State contributes funds
that pay 100% of debt service and the remainder ($354 million, equal to 50% of the total

- of $708 million) relates to obligations for Community Colleges on which the State con-

tributes funds that pay 50% and New York City pays 50% of debt service.

Issued to refund debt issued by HFA for educational facilities.

Issued to finance construction of State office buildings.

Issued to finance highway reconditioning and preservation and constructnon and recon-
struction.

Issued to finance correctional facilities and state capital construction costs.

Issued by the Urban Development Corporation ("UDC") to finance housing projects. Al-
though no funds appropriated by the State and paid to UDC in recent years have been for
administration or funding of housing programs, there are no assurances that these programs
can remain self-sustaining in view of their past difficulties. For that reason, the Comp-
troller’s Office has made a judgment that UDC debt issued (and outstanding) for housing
programs should be included in New York’s net tax-supported debt position.

Issued by Erie County to finance its convention center. The amount of debt shown in the
table is the portion of debt for which the State contributes debt service (50% of $7.9

mllllon)

Source: ' Office of the State Comptroller.
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Evaluation of Debt Position
Trend in Debt Ratios

One way in which credit analysts evaluate an issuer’s debt position is by examining trends
in debt levels. . The following graph shows the rise in net tax-supported debt over the past five
years. For the three fiscal years ending March 31, 1989, the growth in net tax-supported debt
~averaged only 3.1% per year, largely because the Spring Borrowing decreased during that time
" from $4.3 billion to $3.1 billion; long-term net tax-supported debt increased $2.4 billion over the
period, equal to an average annual rate of 9.0%. In fiscal year 1990, the growth in debt began
to escalate substantially, with net tax-supported debt increasing 29.9% from 3-31-89 to 3-31-90
and 22.4% from 3-31-90 to 3-31-91. During that time, long-term net tax-supported debt rose by
24.9% and 27.5%, respectively, while the Spring Borrowing increased to $4.1 billion.

" The largest addition to long-term net tax-supported debt in fiscal year 1990 was Dormitory
Authority debt for SUNY, totalling $1.8 billion at 3-31-90. This debt, which is supported from
State tax receipts, was issued to refinance debt issued by HFA that was supported by tuition and
student fees. In fiscal year 1991, the refinancing plan was completed and this item increased
further, to $2.589 billion.

During fiscal year 1991, the largest new item in New York’s net tax-supported debt posi-
tion was the LGAC financings to bond out the Spring Borrowing, totalling $909 million at 3-31-91.
Because the LGAC issuances are for the purpose of lessening the State’s reliance on short-term
debt for operating purposes, increases due to this item have not adversely affected the State’s credit
ratings. In fact, the LGAC program has, from a credit standpoint, more than offset the negative
impact of the rise in debt by addressing Moody’s past concerns about the State’s high use of short-
term debt for operating purposes. This program is viewed favorably by financial analysts because
the State will be significantly less dependent on short-term debt for operations after the bonding
out. The legislation creating LGAC limited the amount of operating debt that the State may issue
in any one fiscal year to $4.7 billion less the aggregate amount of LGAC debt outstanding (exclud-
ing bonds issued to finance the capital reserve fund and to pay costs of issuance). This limit can
only be exceeded if the Governor, the. Temporary President of the Senate and the Speaker of the
Assembly certify (i) that there are emergency or extraordinary factors or factors unanticipated at
the time of adoption of the budget causing a need for the notes and (ii) the amount of notes issued
in excess of the limit will be eliminated within three fiscal years.

The rating agencies have, however, been concerned in recent years about the growth in
lease purchase and contractual obligation debt, which is often used to avoid obtaining voter
approval on certain bonding programs. The following graph breaks out the State’s debt position
into four categories: (i) general obligation debt; (ii) contractual obligation and lease purchase debt;
(iii) moral obligation and other debt and (iv) the Spring Borrowing. As can be seen, general obli-
gation debt has risen only slightly since 1985-86, while moral obligation debt and short-term
operating debt have fallen. Contractual obligation and lease purchase debt, however, is more than
three times the level in 1985-86. Overall, the State’s net tax-supported debt position has increased
67.8% since 1985-86, while general obligation debt has risen 24.5%, moral obligation debt has
fallen 43.1%, lease purchase and contractual obligation debt have risen 265.4% and the Spring
Borrowing has fallen 4.7%. Current projections show that lease purchase and contractual
obligation debt are expected to continue to increase substantially over the next few years although
the overall level of debt is currently projected to increase less rapidly than during the previous five
fiscal years. In addition, the Spring Borrowing is expected to be eliminated by the 1994-95 fiscal

“year as a result of issuance of LGAT debt.
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Although the amount of debt outstanding has increased over the past five years, the trend
in the State’s debt ratios has been mixed during this time, due in part to the strength of the State’s
economy that somewhat offset the rise in debt. As can be seen in the following graph, prior to
fiscal year 1990 the level of debt to personal income had been declining, while debt per capita had -
increased moderately each year. Debt service to tax receipts ranged from 3.8% to 4.5% during
the period. In fiscal years 1990 and 1991, all of the State’s debt ratios rose substantially.

~ Total net tax-supported debt is expected to rise 16.0% in 1991-92 and 4.3% in 1992-93,
and then decrease in the last three fiscal years of the current Capital Plan. Debt per capita and
debt to personal income are forecast to follow the same pattern: in fiscal year 1991-92 both ratios
are expected to experience a substantial rise and in fiscal year 1992-93 debt per capita is projected
to rise slightly and debt to personal income to level out. In fiscal years 1993-94 through 1995-96,
debt per capita and debt to personal income are expected to decline modestly each year. Debt ser-
vice to tax receipts, however, is expected to rise during the next three fiscal years at a much great-
er rate than the other ratios largely due to deferrals of debt service and postponement of principal
repayments on several authority issues during fiscal year 1990-91. ;
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Net Tax-Supported Debt Ratios
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‘ Over the past five fiscal years, the increase in net tax-supported debt (as adjusted for short-
“term cash flow borrowings) has been much greater than the rise projected when this Office prepar-
ed the Debt Capacity and Control Analysis in fiscal year 1985-86. At that time, the State’s net
tax-supported debt position, after adjustment to include short-term operating debt, was $12.398 bil-
lion and it was projected to rise $1.169 billion over the period to $13.567 billion by March 31,
1991. However, the State’s net tax-supported debt position, after adjustment to include short-term
operating debt, actually rose $8.411 billion over the five year period, to $20.809 billion.

The State’s projected five-year Capital Plan in 1985-86 totalled $3.491 billion and consisted
of the following: $2.255 billion of general obligation bonds, $805 million of Dormitory Authority
issuances for CUNY Senior Colleges, $81 million for UDC issuances for university high-tech facil-
 ities, $218 million for UDC correctional facilities and $132 million of debt issued by the Dormi-
tory Authority for CUNY community colleges. The Spring Borrowing was not included in the
State’s five-year Capital Plan, but it totalled $4.3 billion in fiscal year 1985-86.

Actual issuances since 1986 include several financing programs that were not anticipated

when the 1985-86 Capital Plan was developed. For instance, it was stated that debt might be
issued for special hospital projects by the Medical Care Facilities Finance Agency although such
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a bonding program was not certain; the State currently has outstanding $450 million for this pro--
gram. In addition, at March 31, 1986 outstanding debt issued by the Housing Finance Agency for
SUNY educational facilities was supported by tuition and student fees (and was therefore not in-
cluded in the net tax-supported debt calculation). All of this debt was refinanced through issuances
by the Dormitory Authority with debt supported by State tax receipts and debt for this purpose
totalled $2.589 billion at March 31, 1991. There were no issuances contemplated by the MTA in

- 1985-86 although the tax-supported portion of MTA debt increased $866 million over the period.

In addition, issuances by LGAC were not included in the five-year Capital Plan developed in

1985-86, but there was $909 million outstanding for that program at the end of fiscal year
1990-91. Finally, there was projected to be only $218 million of debt issued by UDC for correc-

tional facilities during this time, but the actual increase in this debt was $1.19 billion.

The table below compares the projections made in the 1985-86 Analysis, adjusted to include
the Spring Borrowing, with actual results for March 31, 1991. As can be seen, the actual out-
comes were significantly higher than projections from five years ago in all cases. Contributing
to the greater than expected rise in debt ratios was the less than expected growth in total personal
income and General Fund Tax Receipts over the period: in 1985-86, total personal income was
projected to be $414.7 billion at 3-31-91, while actual personal income was $397.6 billion; and
General Fund Tax Receipts were projected to be $30.883 billion in fiscal year 1990-91 but were
actually $26.118 billion, primarily as a result of income tax rate reductions. On the other hand,

- growth in population was more than projected, which helped to temper the rise in debt per capita:
population was projected to be 17,872,000 in 1991 but actual population in 1990 was 17,990,000.
Comparison of Projected to Actual Debt Position at March 31, 1991
Debt Position at March 31, 1991

‘ Projected
Actual - in 1985-86
- At 3-31-86" Capital Plan®™ Actual®
Total Debt Outstanding . ' _
(000,000s) $12,398 $13,567 $20,809
Debt Per Capita - $697 : $759 - $1,157
Debt to Personal Income 4.3% 3.3% - 52%

Debt Service to Tax Receipts 4.1% 4.3% : 51%

Comparison of E ew Ygrk to Industry Standards

Credit analysts also evaluate the State’s net tax-supported debt ratios in comparison to those
of other state issuers. New York’s current net tax-supported debt ratios compare to industry
~standards for states as follows:

M  Restated to. include the Spring _Bon'owing.

@ If SUNY educational facilities bonds are excluded in order to make 1990-91 comparable to 1985-86,
total net tax-supported debt outstanding on 3-31-91 would be $18,220 million, debt per capita would
be $1,012, debt to personal income would be 4.6% and debt service to tax receipts would be 4.6%.
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Net Tax-Supported Debt Ratios .
At March 31, 1991

_Industry ‘Standards . :
' ‘Warning New York to

New York  Medians™ Level® Industry Standards
Debt Per Capita $1,157 . $345 — 335X
Debt to Personal Income  5.2% 2.2% - 2.36X
Debt Service to '
Tax Receipts : 51% : - 10.0% 0.51X

- As these ratios indicate, New York’s ratio of debt per capita and debt to personal income
~are worse than the median for all states, but the level of debt service to tax receipts is within the
acceptable range. Based on data from Moody’s regarding the debt ratios of all other states, New
York’s net tax-supported debt per capita of $1,157 ranks fifth highest and debt to personal income
of 5.2% ranks New York eighth. On the basis of Moody’s calculation of New York’s net tax-
supported debt, which differs from the State’s calculation as previously mentioned, New York’s
debt per capita ranks fifth among the states at $993 and debt to personal income ranks eighth at
4.7%. See Appendix B for information on New York’s ranking among the states. '

The rise in New York’s ratios has been much faster than the rise in median levels over the
"past five years. The State’s debt per capita increased 66.0% from 1985-86 to 1990-91, while the
median increased only 25.5% during this time. More importantly, the median level of debt to per-
sonal income decreased 8.3% in the past five years, while this ratio increased 20.9% for New York."

- Moody’s has characterized the State’s debt levels as "high and growing" in recent credit
reports. Moody’s notes that the amount of pay-as-you-go financing in the State has declined sub-
stantially in recent years, to be replaced with agency and authority debt subject to annual appropri-
ation of payments. In this regard, Moody’s noted in its November 12, 1991 report:

One reason for this great influx of agency borrowing is that it has become the
source for nonrecurring revenues with the proceeds providing budgetary relief in
the year of issuance but increasing debt service over the long-term. Such fi-
nancings have included refundings of outstanding debt to defer debt service pay-
ments and release funds from debt reserves, as well as borrowing for certain capital
outlays previously paid from current revenues. Debt service, from both lease obli-
gations and general obligations, has been increasing dramatically in the past few
- years, and is projected to continue to grow further.

In June of this year when the Spring Borrowing was issued, S&P changed the outlook on
the State’s long-term debt from "stable” to "negative®. This change was due to: "continued econ-
omic volatility, further erosion of the state’s fiscal condition, and uncertainty about the state’s abil-
ity to maintain balanced operations through a full fiscal year.” In a report on the State published -
on December 2, 1991, S&P noted that the State’s debt burden is manageable but "high relative
to other states.”

® Median levels for all states in 1991, as calcuiated by Moody’s Investors Service Inc.
@ Credit analysts view the 10% level as a rule-of-thumb indication of an excessive debt burden.
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Future Needs and' Resources

This section of the Analysis identifies issuances of net tax-supported debt expected over the
next five years ending March 31, 1996, based on information contained in the current Financial
Projections and Capltal Plan, as updated through October 1991. These issuances are then
compared to growth in economic and demographic resources to determine the effect of such
'lssuances on the State’s debt ratios.

Assumptions

In order to perform this Analysis, the economic and demographic assumptions shown below
were developed based on projections prepared by the Division of the Budget. The growth rates
used for population and personal income, as well as the amount of tax recexpts are taken from the
" Financial Projections and Capital Plan. Prmc:pal retirements and debt service payments on debt
outstanding at September 30, 1991 are shown in Appendix C and Appendix D, respectively.

No growth in population during the period;
Growth in personal income averaging 4.4% per year;
Growth in tax receipts averaging 4.2% per year;
General obligation debt issues are assumed to have an interest rate of 7.50%
with principal retirement schedules based on purpose of debt and ranging
from 10 to 30 years; '
- ® . The Spring Borrowing is assumed to be outstanding for eleven months at an
interest rate of 5.5%;
® Debt service on Certificates of Participation are a.ssumed to stay at the 1991
level throughout the period;
L] Local Government Assistance Corporation debt issues are assumed to have
- an interest rate of 8.00% with level debt service over 30 years; and
] Repayments on other lease purchase and contractual obligation debt issu-
ances projected in the Financial Projections and Capital Plan are not
. included due to the low retirements in the early years.

Current Capital Plan

The State is expected to issue $11.8 billion of tax-supported debt over the next five years,
including $3.9 billion of debt to be issued by LGAC to "bond out” the Spring Borrowing."
Projected issuances of net tax-supported debt through March 31, 1996 are set out in the table on
the following page.

It should be noted that the Capital Plan projects the heaviest debt issuances during the next
three fiscal years. This occurs for three main reasons: (i) the level of authorized general obliga-
tion debt will decrease; (ii) the bonding program for LGAC is expected to be completed during
fiscal year 1994; and (iii) issuances by the Thruway Authority for highway repairs and improve-
ments (see below) and by the Dormitory Authority for City University of New York programs are
projected to end. The projected issuances in fiscal year 1994-95 are 44.3% of the issuances
projected for fiscal year 1991-92, after subtracting out issuances projected for LGAC. Similarly,
“issuances projected for the last year of the Capital Plan, fiscal year 1995-96, are just 31.7% of
the issuances projected for the current fiscal year, after subtracting out issuances projected for
LGAC. Based on prior years’ patterns,-as discussed earlier in this report, a drop-off in debt
issuance during the later years of tllxe Capital Plan does not appear to be realistic.
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The Capital Plan includes issuance of $80 million of service contract bonds by the Thruway
Authority in fiscal year 1991-92. Under the Capital Plan, the Thruway Authority would issue the
bonds and use the proceeds for repairs to roadways. The Authority would then transfer $80
~million of toll and other revenues to the State’s general fund in order to provide budget relief in
fiscal year 1991-92.  That program essentially uses the most recent toll increases, which were insti-
tuted in order to fund a pay-as-you-go capital program for the Authority, to finance the State’s op-
erations. The financing has been challenged by this Office in a lawsuit filed in August. As a
result of the lawsuit, this financing might not take place. Although it has been suggested that this
program might be carried into future fiscal years, the official Capital Plan projections by the Divi-
sion of the Budget show this item only in fiscal year 1991-92. Moreover, the legal challenge by
the State Comptroller’s Office to the issue scheduled for fiscal year 1991-92 would indicate that
it is not appropriate to show financing beyond the amount included in the Capital Plan at this time.

Current Capital Plan
(dollars in millions) -
1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 . 1994-95 1995-96 Totals

General Obligation

Bonds _ ' $834,520 $923,704 $712,970 $4f§_8.608' $228,618 $3,199,239
Commercial Paper ) 70,000 - - - - 70,000
~ Contractual Obligation ' - ' : )
Housing Finance Agency . 188,000 176,000 168,000 119,000 119,000 770,000
Local Government Assistance 'Corp. 1,600,000 1,600,000 700,600 - -- 3,900,000
Medical Care Facilities ‘ o
Finance Agency 140,000 - - - - 140,000
Metropolitan Transportation Authority" 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000
Thruway Authority o _
Service Contract ' 80,000 - - - L e 80,000
Consolidated Highway Improvements 192,000 160,000 - - - 352,000
Urban Development _
Corporation - Universities ‘ © 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Lease-Purchase . '
Certificates of Participation S 105,000 95,000 100,000 105,000 110,000 - 515,000
Dormitory Authority :
SUNY Educational Facilities 250,000 - 150,000 150,000 120,000 100,000 770,000
SUNY Athletic Facility 27,000 - - - - - 27,000
State Education Department 24,000 C - - - - 24,000
. Department of Health 10,000 12,500 12,500 C e - 35,000
Thruway Authority ' .
Repairs & Reconditioning . 135,000 . - - - - 135,000
Suburban Transportation - 11,000 37,300 45,700 20,100 - 114,100
Westway Buyback . 40,100 - v - - - 40,100
Urban Development Corporation ’ E o
Correctional Facilities 150,000 100,000 100,600 - 100,000 100,000 550,000
Division for Youth : 50,000 - 30,000 - - 80,000
" Eavironmental Facilities Corporation . ‘
Riverbank Park - 51,000 - - ~ . 51,000
Revolving Fund Loans o 28000 _ 43,500 ___ 27,200 17 000 - 115,700
TOTALS. . : g,161,4gg 23!453! $2,201,370 $1.134,708 i 8!2.6! §111763|139

- The current MTA capital plan ends on December 31, 1991. The issuances projected in fiscal years
1993 through 1996 are estlmated by the Office of the State Comptroller to continue at current
levels.

Source: Financial Projections and Capital Plan, as adjusted through October 1991.
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Effect of Capital Plan on Debt Ratios

Under the Capital Plan, the State’s total net tax-sﬁpported debt, aﬁer taking into account
retirements of debt, is expected to rise by $3.48 billion from $20.809 b11110n on March 31, 1991
to $24.289 billion on March 31, 1996, as shown below.

Change in Net Tax-Supported Debt
(dollars in millions)

1991-92 - 1992-93  1993-94 199495  1995-06 Totals
Outstanding ~ $20,809  $24,133  $25,178  $24,899  $24,419 -
Issuances 4,161 3,453 2,201 1,134 813 $11,763
Retirements (637) (808) (880) (914) (943) (4,182)
'Net New Debt 3,524 2,645 1,321 220 (130) 7,580 ®
Less: Change in ' | o ‘
- Spring Borrowing (200) (1,600) (1,600) (700) - (4,100)
" Outstanding $24,133  $25,178  $24,899  $24,419  $24,289 -

Based on the assumptions set out above, issuances under the Capital Plan are projected to
have the following effect on the State’s debt ratios at March 31, 1996. Appendix F sets out the
year-by-year effects of such issuances on the State’s debt ratios.

Inipact of Capital Plan On Debt Ratios
Base Case .

"__Industry Standards Ratio of Stite to
New York State = Moody’s Wamning _Industry Standards
1990-91  1995-96 Median®  Level® 1990-91  1995-96

"Debt Per Capita $1,157 $1,350 $345 - 3.35X 3.91X

Debt To Personal ‘ : :
Income 5.2% 4.9% 2.2% - "2.36X 2.23X

Debt Service to

Tax Receipts - 5.1% 7.9% - 10.0% 0.51X 0.79X

The current Capital Plan is expected to produce a rise in net tax-supported debt of 16.7%.
This increase would result in a rise in debt per capita to $1,350, a rise in debt to personal income

- Totals may not add due to rounding. .

@ Median for all states in 1991, as calculated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
e Credit analysts view the 10% level as a rule-of-thumb indication of an excessive debt burden.
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to 4.9% and a rise in debt service to tax receipts to 7.9%. The change in debt per capita repre-
- sents a 16.7% increase, debt to personal income a 5.8% decrease and debt service to tax receipts

a 54.9% rise. The projected increase in the debt service to tax receipts ratio would bring this ratio
close to the 10% rule-of-thumb warmng level used by credit analysts to indicate excessive debt
levels v :

If economic projections are not met, the State’s debt ratios could rise further, as shown
- below. This case assumes a population decline of 0.1% per year, personal income growth
averaging 2.2% per year, or one-half the growth projected in the Five-Year Financial Projections
and Capital Plan, and one-half the projected growth in tax receipts. Using these reduced
performance assumptions, debt per capita would not rise significantly over the Base Case, but debt
to personal income would be'5.5%, versus 4.9% in the Base Case, a small rise over the current
ratio. The ratio of debt service to tax recelpts would be 8.6%, versus 7.9% if the State’s financial
projections were met. The debt ratios in 1995-96 as a result of reduced economic and financial
growth are set out below and the year-by-year changes are shown in Appendix G.

Impact of Capital Plan On Debt Ratios
Reduced Economic and Financial Performance

Projected 3-31-96 Ratio to Industry Standards

Reduced Reduced
, - Base Case Performance ase Case Performance
Debt Per Capita 0 $1,350 $1,357 391X 3.93X
Debt To Personal Income @ 4.9% 5.5% 2.23X 2.50X
Debt Se;vice To Tax Receipts @  7.9% " 8.6% 0.79X 0.86X»

o Assuming population decline of 0.1% per year.

@ Assuming personal income growth of one-half that pmjected in the Financial Projections and Capltal
Plan.

o Assuming growth in tax recelpts of one-half that projected in the Financial Projections and Capltal
Plan.
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Conclusion

The burden that New York State’s debt position places on the taxpayers at the current time
is heavier than that of most other states, with debt per capita more than three times the Moody’s
median for. all states and debt to personal income 2.36 times the median. Both of these ratios
place New York among the states with the highest relative debt positions. In past years, the State
has had a relatively low level of debt service to tax receipts, but this ratio is beginning to rise
rapidly. In a credit report on the State, Moody’s characterized New York’s debt levels as "sub--
stantial” and "high" and its overall debt structure as "negative” due to the methods of borrowing
and the heavy use of short-term debt for operating purposes. S&P has also noted that while the
State’s debt levels are "manageable,” they are high in comparison to other states.

The State is projected to issue $11.8 billion of net tax-supported debt during the upcoming
five year period (ending March 31, 1996). The resulting debt position of $24.3 billion would be
a rise of 16.7% in five years, which is much less than the rise over the previous five yeai{s of
67.8%. The projected change in net tax-supported debt for the five-year period 1986 through 1991
was 9.4%, far below the actual increase. (Even after adjusting for the reclassification of SUNY
-educational facilities bonds, the rise in net tax-supported debt during this time was 47.0%.) As
a result of these projected issuances, the State’s debt ratios would show a 16.7% rise in debt per
capita and a 5.8% decrease in debt to personal income. The largest increase would be the 54.9%
" rise in debt service to tax receipts, which is expected to occur due to heavy debt issuance in recent
‘years and the slowdown in tax revenues. This ratio is currently forecast to exceed 8% in fiscal
years 1992-93 through 1994-95. As this ratio approaches 10%, the rule-of-thumb warning level
used by credit analysts, there might be concern about the high level of fixed obligations in the

State’s budget.

The Local Government Assistance Corporation is expected to issue $3.9 billion over the

next three fiscal years to complete the bonding out of the Spring Borrowing. Because this debt

is being issued to lessen the State’s reliance on short-term debt for operating purposes, these issu-

ances are generally viewed favorably by financial analysts. However, some credit analysts have

expressed concern about the State’s reliance on deficit notes in recent years and the sharply in-

creased use of lease purchase and contractual obligation debt to provide "one-time" budgetary
relief.

For these reasons, the continued addition of large bonding programs could at some point
cause negative credit implications. Therefore, new bonding proposals must be examined closely
to determine if they can be supported within the State’s available economic and financial resources.
In particular, the infrastructure needs of the State must be weighed against the i mcreasmg burden
being placed on New York taxpayers
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- Appendix A

Moody’s Calculation of New York State ’s Debt Position

In its report on the State dated August 6, 1991, Moody’s calculated the State’s net
tax-supported debt position to be $20,088.0 million” at June 30, 1991, as opposed to the
State’s pro-forma calculation of $21,810 million. Moody’s includes several items that the
State does not, as shown below. Since the debt service on these issues are projected to be
‘serviced by non-tax revenues, such as dormitory room rentals and Medicaid payments, and
are therefore self-supporting, the State has determined that these items are not tax-
supported debt. On the other hand, the State has determined that the Spring Borrowing
should be included in its calculation of net tax-supported debt this year, an item which
Moody’s does not include. ‘

In addition, Moody’s double-counted the $243 million of certificates of participation
issued by CUNY for John Jay. The $654.7 million shown as outstanding for certificates
of participation in the general obligation debt section included this amount. This inclusion
has been brought to their attention and should be corrected in the future.

Moody’s calculation of the State’s debt position at June 30, 1991, after giving effect
to subsequent issuances and refundings, is shown on the following page together with a
comparison to the State’s calculation. '

- m Adjusted for mathematical errors.

4

19
e 3




Moody'’s Calculatlon of New York State’s Debt Position
At June 30, 1991 After Giving Effect to Subsequent Issues and Refundmgs

From the Credit Report Dated August 6, 1991
(in millions)

Moody’s State Difference - .
General Obligation Bonds® - _ ] $4,527.4 $4,527.4 : -
General Obligation Commercial Paper BANs ‘ 317.2 317.2 -
General Obligation TRANs and Deficit Notes® - _4,981.5 4981.5 -
' Gross General Obligation Debt . 9,826.1 9,826.1 -
Certificates of Participation : ___654.7 654.7 -
Gross Direct Debt o - 10,480.8 - 10,480.8 -
Less: TRANs and Deficit Notes : ' _‘ 4,986.0 1,086.0 $(3,900.0)
' Net Direct Debt 5,494.8 9,394.8 (3,900.0)
Lease Purchase and Contractual Commitments . : ' '
Local Government Assistance Corporation 1,468.1 1,468.1 L
MCFFA - Mental Health Services 1,426.0 - 1,426.0
MCFFA - Special Hospital Project 450.0 450.0 -
Dormitory Authority - Health Facilities , 117.0 - ‘ 117.1
Dormitory Authority - City University of New York @ 2,461.0 2,107.0 - 354.0 -
Dormitory Authority - SUNY Dormitory Facilities'® 271.0 - - 2710
Dormitory Authority - Library for the Blind 19.0 18.5 0.5
Dormitory Authority - SUNY Educational Facxlmcs"’ 2,589.0 2,589.0 -
Dormitory Authority - Education Department Revenue 24.0 24.0 o -
Dormitory Authority - Community Colleges® : 64.4 - 64.4
Albany County - Empire State Plaza 244.0 231.7 12.3
Municipalities - State Office Buildings 11.0 11.2 0.2)
New York State Thruway Authority - R&P, C&R 168.1 168.1 -
MTA - Service Contract Bonds -1,749.0 1,749.3 .-
TBTA - New York City Convention Center 449.0 448.9 0.1
UDC - Technology Development Centers 155.0 151.3 3.7
UDC - Empire State Plaza : 123.0 122.6 . 04
UDC - State Facilities ’ -+ 1230 ) 241.8 7 (118.8)
UDC - Correctional Facilities 1,485.0 1,480.1 4.9
UDC - Onondaga Convention Center 45.0 45.2 (0.2)
CUNY (John Jay) Certificates of Participation . 243.0 ©® ’ 243.0
Erie County Convention Center® 3.9 i 4.0 : 0.1)
Housing Finance Agency - Service Contract Obllgauons 191.7 191.7 =
Total Lease-Purchase and Contractual Commitments 13,880.2 11,502.5 2,3771.7
Other Commitments:
Urban Development Corporation ' 713.0 713.0 -
NET TAX-SUPPORTED DEBT 20,088.0 21,810.3 $(1,722.3)

(V)]

(O}
®
©
(v]
®
(]

Excludes the crossover refunding bonds issued in 1986, debt service on which will be paid from earnings on
escrowed proceeds until refunded bonds are called. '

$3.9 billion of TRANSs; $1,081.5 million of deficit notes. .
Includes City University System’s senior colleges, community colleges, and consolidated revenue bonds.
Excludes. $352 million total crossover refunding bonds issued in 1984, 1986 and 1988 debt service on which
will be paid from earnings on escrowed proceeds until refunded bonds are called. New York excludes 50%
of New York City Community College debt as the City pays 50% of the debt service on these bonds.

New York considers this self-supporting from dormitory revenues.

Excludes special obligation bonds. Gives effect to Series 1990 B refundmg of July 1990

Excludes $277 million issued for CUNY community colleges.

Moody’s double-counted this item; it is included in the COPs figure under Gross Direct Debt.

Represents portion of debt for which state is responsible: 50% of Erie County debt scrvxce ($8.6 million).
After adjusting for mathematical efrors.
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| Appendix B
Debt Rankings Among the States

- Set out below is New York’s ranking among the states for debt per capita and debt
to personal income, as calculated in this report using the definition of net tax-supported
debt set out on page 7 of this report. This definition differs from Moody’s definition of -
net tax-supported debt, as shown in Appendix A. The data on other states was compiled
by Moody’s Investors Service. '

Tax- rted Debt Per itz
: Credit : © - Credit
Rank State - Amount Ratings S Rank  State Amount Ratings
: (Moody’s/S&P) ’ o (Moody’s/S&P)
1  Hawaii . $1,910  AwAA 26  South Dakota $333 NR/NR
2  Massachusetts 1,756 Baa/BBB 27 Georgia ' 316  Aaa/AA+
3 Connecticut 1,565 Aa/AA- 28  California . 297 Aaa/AAA
4 Delaware 1,297 Aa/AA+ 29 New Mexico 275 “Aa/AA
. 5. NEW YORK  1,157® AJA 30  Oregon 266 Aa/AA-
6 Louisiana 991 Baal/A 31 South Carolina 264 - Aaa/AAA
7  Washington 761 Aa/AA 32 Mississippi 234 Ad/AA-
'8 Rhodelsland = 721 - Aa/AA- 33 Virginia 232 Aaa/AAA
9  Kentucky 697 Ad/AA 34 Arizona 214 NR/NR
10 Maryland 694 Asa/AAA 35  Missouri’ 204 Asa/AAA
11 Alaska 667 Aa/AA- ‘ 36 Michigan _ 199 Al/AA
12 Vermont 645 Aa/AA- . 37 - Texas © 186 . Aa/AA
13 West Virginia 643 Al/A+ 38  North Dakota 184 Aa/AA-
14 New Jersey 550 Asa/AA+ 39  Uuh 171 Asa/AAA
15 Illinois 525 Aal/AA+ 40  Tennessee 101 Aaa/AA+
16 Florida 466 Aa/AA 4]  Kansas 94 NR/NR
17 New Hampshire 449 Aa/AA 42 Indiana ’ 90 NR/NR
18 Pennsylvania 426 Al/AA- ' 43 North Carolina 78 Aaa/AAA
19 Ohio 405 Aa/AA 44 Colorado 75 NR/NR
20 Wisconsin 403 Aa/AA : 45  Oklahoma 65  AwAA
21 Minnesota . 394 Aa/AA+ 46  Idaho - 54 NR/NR
22 Alabama 370 Aa/Aa 47 Arkansas . 46 Aa/AA
23 Maine 365  Aal/AA+ 48  Iowa 42 NR/NR
24  Montana - 359 Aa/AA- 49  Nebraska 32 NR/NR
25 Nevada 356 Aa/AA S0  Wyoming . () NR/NR
MEDIAN $345

) Moody’s calculated the State’s debt per capita at $993, for a rank of 5th, which was 2. 88 times the
- median versus 3 35 times calculated in this report.
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Credit

. cl’edit B
Rank . Amount Ratings ' Amount Ratings
< - ‘ (qudy'slsgl’) : : (Moody's/S&P)

- 10.4%

1
2

3.

4

6 g!genluqk:y a

7 West Virginia- = S

8 NEW YORK “5.2m , ST ‘ , . ;

9 = ‘Washington 4.4 ' AwAA e 34 Arizona 1.4  NRINR
10 ‘Rbode Island . 4.6  : Aa/AA- & 35"  North Dakota - 1.3 . Aa/AA-
11 :Vermont - 3.9 AvAA- 36 Virginia 1.2 Asa/AAA
12 ‘Maryland - 3.4 Asa/AAA ... 377 .- Missouri ° 1.2 Aas/AAA
13 ‘Alaska 3.2 AsJAA- T 38  Texas . . 12 - As/AA
14 lliinois . 2.7 Aal/AA+ 39  Michigan 1.1 AlAA
15 Florida C27 Ae/AA 40 Tennessee 0.7 Asa/AA+
16 :Alabama 29 Aa/AA 41 Indiama . = 0.6 NR/NR
17 Montana .25 . Aa/AA- . . 42 _Kansas ... 0.6 - NRNR
18 ‘Wisconsin® ' 2.5 : e 43’ _Oklshoma % = 0.6 Aa/AA
19 Ohio U2 44  North Carolina ~ 0.5 Aaa/AAA
20 Pennsylvania 2.4 45 Colorado 04  NR/NR
21  South Dakota 2.4 46  Idaho 0.4 NR/NR
22 New Jersey 23 47 Arkansas = 0.3 Aa/AA
23 :Maine 2.3 48  lowa 0.3  NR/NR
24 Minnesota 2.3 49  Nebraska 0.2 NR/NR
25 New Hampshire 2.2 50  Wyoming 00  NRNR

MEDIAN 2.2%

o Moody’s calculated the State’s debt to persdnal income at 4.7%, for a rank of 8th, which is 2.14
~ times the median versus 2.36 times calculated in this report.
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Trend in State Debt Ratios and Median Ratios

Appendix C

Trend in New York State Net Tax-Supported Debt and Debt Ratios®

1985-86 11986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90

Net Tax-Supported Debt
(in 000’s) :

Loﬁ g-Term Net Tax-

. Supported Debt $8,098 $9,289 $9,888 $10,489 $13,104

Plus: Short-Term

Operating Debt™® 4300 3500 2,600 3100 3,900

Total Net Tax-
Supported Debt $12398 $12.789 $12.488 $13.589 $17,004
Debt Per Capita $697 $720 $701  $759 $947
Debt to Personal Income 4.3% 4.2% 3.9% 3.7% 4.3%

‘Debt Service to

Tax Receipts 4.1% 38% 4.1%  45%  4.8%

Trend in Moody’s State Median Debt Ratios

1985-86 1986-87 1987-88 1988-89 1989-90

Debt Per Capita ' $275 $293 $300 $339 $349

Debt to Personal Income 24% 24% 23% 23%  2.2%

)
@

Restated to include the Spring Borrowing.

23

$16,709

S
S

20,80

-

$1,157

5.2%

-5.1%

" There were also deficit notes outstanding in certain years, as follows: $460 million at March 31,
1989, $775 million at March 31, 1990 and $1,081.5 million at March 31, 1991.




Appendix D

Retirements of Existing Net Tax-Supported Debt
Outstanding at September 30, 1991

(in thousands)
Fiscal Year Ending March 31 e
1992 1993 1994 1995 1996
General Obligation ' o '
Bonds . _ . $381,100  $391,520 $362,120 .$354,620 $347,520
Contractual Obligation
Dormitory Authority - Library 215 230 . . 245 260 280
Housing Finance Agency - Housing 790 2,230 . 2,450 2,685 2,950
Local Government Assistance Corp - 27,835 29,330 30,950 32,735
Medical Care Facilities Finance Ag - 3,400 7,930 9,325 9,885
Metropolitan Transportation Authority : o
1981 Service Contract Bonds - 12,675 13,585 14,570 15,660 16,855
1986-87 Service Contract Bonds 3,950 - 9,585 10,205 20,885 11,635
Thruway Authority - : _ ‘
Consolidated Highway _ - - 6,740 7,130 7,565
Improvement Program _ ‘
TBTA - NYC Convention Center 13,900 15,255 16,210 17,230 18,345
UDC - University High-Tech ' 5,242 9,158 5732 5,599 5,511
Lease-Purchase
Certificates of Participation 109,089 108,107 99,767 55,592 _43,155
Dormitory Authority :
CUNY Senior 13,340 33,421 38,542 42,892 - 41,770
CUNY Community Colleges (50 770 7,518 9,103 9,708 10,915
SUNY - 14,810 52,155 56,375 59,130 63,205
SUNY Athletic Facility - 290 310 330 355
State Education Department - - 265 280 300
Empire State Plaza 7 '
Office of General Services - 32,780 29,790 . 29,890 29,890 26,530
Urban Development Corporation - - - - -
Other Office Buildings 2,735 2,725 2,575 2,050 - 1,100
Thruway Authority . : '
Highway Repairs & Reconditioni 16,970 17,940 18,980 20,100 21,300
. Urban Development Corporation ]
Prisons : 23,730 27,680 29,485 31,480 33,650
Capital Purposes v : - 2,700 2,850 3,030 3,225
Moral Obligation
UDC - Housing 4,775 18,995 20,340 - 21,795 . 23,365
~ Other - Erie County Convention Ce 394 394 380 315 381
TOTAL 7 $637,265 $774,513 $764,394 $740.996 $728.532
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~ Appendix E

Debt Service on Existing Net Tax-Supported Debt
Outstanding at September 30, 1991

(in thousands)
Fiscal Year Ending March 31
General Obligation -
Bonds | $675,558  $710,005  $654,412  $622,918  $592,725
Contractual Obligation | |
Dormitory Authority - Library 1,498 1,508 1,526 1,505 1,507
Housing Finance Agency - Housing 19,859 23,7126 . 23,508 23,562 23,925
Local Government Assistance Corp 52,853 - 156,989 154,528 154,447 154,354
Medical Care Facilities Finance Ag 36,603 45,530 49,764 51,563 53,294
Metropolitan Transportation Authority - _
1981 Service Contract Bonds 79,992 79,985 79,993 79,984 79,988
1986-87 Service Contract Bonds 64,523 . 70,777 - 70,776 70,773 70,776
Thruway Authority : A A o
" Consolidated Highway Improve 5,533 14,646 21,386 21,385 21,385
TBTA - New York City Conventio 41,433 41,835 41,841 41,836 - 41,837
'UDC - University High-Tech 19,288 24,051 20,832 20,859 20,895 -
'Lease-Purchase
Certificates of Participation 152,697 152,697 152,697 152,697 - 152,697
Dormitory Authority '
~ CUNY Seaior ' 141,844 163,096 165,864 167,472 169,328
CUNY Community Colleges (50 - 24,925 28,773 28,569 28,228 . 28,129
SUNY 275,982 222,656 223,819 223,200 223,346
SUNY Athletic Facility - 882 2,125 2,205 2,204 2,207
State Education Department 1,259 2,075 2,076 2,074 2,075
Empire State Plaza : .
Office of General Services 48,673 43,494 41,631 - 39,661 37,742
Urban Development Corporation - - ' : :
Other Office Buildings : 3,288 3,134 2,851 2,197 1,162
Thruway Auithority B v ’ .
Highway Repsirs & Reconditioni 27,950 . 27,255 27,255 -21,256 27,248
Urban Development Corporation - A o
Prisons 125,948 132,661 132,796 132,980 133,163
' Capital Purposes » 17,838 20,374 - 20,337 20,310 20,275
Moral Obligxition
UDC - Housing 51,837 65,616 65,604 65,601 65,610
Other - Erie County Convention Ce 630 625 . s8s 556 538
TOTAL - C _ $1.870.893 » $£2.033,633 - $1.984.854  $1.953.268  $1.924.205
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Appendix F

Impact of Debt Issuances Under the Five-Year Financial Pm,]ectwns and Capital Plan

.

* Net Tax-Supported Debt
Outstanding at April 1 (000's)

- Issuances
Retirements
Net New Debt

Less: Change in Spring Borrowing

Net Tax-Supported Debt
Outstanding at March 31

Population (1)

Debt Per Capita

Total Personal Income (2)

Debt to Personal Income

Debt Service (3)
‘General Fund Tax Receipts (4)

Debt Service to Tax Receipts

BaseCase

1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 199394 1994-95

1995-96

$20,808,896 $24,133,070 $25,177,562 $24,896,757

4,161,439 3,453,004 2,201,370 1,134,708
637,265 808,512 882,175 916,778
3,524,174 2,644,492 1,319,195 217,930

(200,000) (1,600,000) (1,600,000)  (700,000)

17,990 17,990 17,990 17,990 17,990

$1,157 $1,341 $1,400 $1,384  $1,357

$397,602 $410,723 $430,027 $451,098 $470,946 .

5.2% - 59% 5.9% 5.5% 5.2%

$1,336,442  $2,050,383 $2,359,923 82,461,898 $2,515,347
$26,118,000 $27,436,000 $28,359,000 $29,398,000 $30,549,000

5.1% 75%  8.3% 8.4% 8.2%

(1) In thousands. Assumes no growth, based on the 1990 Census figure.

$24,414,688
812,618

944,805
- (132,187)

17,990

$1,350
$493,081
4.9%
$2,539,221

$32,085,000

7.9%

(2) In billions. ‘Assumes growth in personai income averaging 4.4% annually, as estimated in the Financial Projections
and Capital Plan. Figures are based on preliminary estimate for 1990 by the Bureau of Economic Analysis

of $397,602 billion.

" (3) In thousands. Figures for 1991-92 through 1995-96 are based on debt outstanding at 3-31-91 plus general obligation an
LGAC debt expected to be issued under the Financial Projections and Capital Plan, as updated through October 1991.

(4) In thousands. Cash-basis projections from the Financial Projections and Capital Plan, as updated through October 199
Average annual growth in tax receipts from 1991 to 1996 equals 4.2%.

26
/206l



Appendix G

Impact of Debt Issuances Under the Hve-Year Financial Projections and Capital Plan
Reduced Economic and Demographic Growth

1990-91 1991;92 1992-93 - 1993-94 1994-95
Net Tax-Supportéd Debt |
Outstanding at April 1 (000's) $20,808,806 $24,133,070 $25,177,562 $24,896,757
Issuances 4,161,439 3,453,004 2,201,370 1,134,708
Retirements 637,265 808,512 882,175 916,778
Net New Debt 3,524,174 2,644,492 1,319,195 217,930
Less: Change in Spring Borrowing (200,000) (1,600,000) (1,600 000) (700,000)

Net Tax-Supported Debt
Outstanding at March 31

Population (1)

Debt Per Capita

Total Personal Income (2)

Debt to Personal Income

Debt Service (3)

General Fund Tax Receipts (4)  $26,118,000 $27,436,000

Debt Service to Tax Receipts

$20,808,896
17,990 17,972 17,954 17,936
$1,157 $1,343 - $1,402 $1,388
$397,602  $404,162  $413,660  $423,795
52% 6.0% 6.1% 5.9%
$2,050,383 $2,359,923  $2,461,898

$1,336,442
$27,897,500 $28,408,546

5.1% 1.5% 8.5% 8.7%

(1) Inthousands. Assumes decline of 0.1% per year, based on the 1990 Ceasus figure.

17,918

$1,363

$433,118

5.6%

$2,515,347

$28,964,676-

8.7%

$24,414,688

- 812,618
944,805
(132,187)

17,900

$1,357

$443,297

55%

$2.539,22'1>
$29,692,846

8.6%

(@) Inbillions. Assumes one-half of the growth in personal income estimated in the Financial Projections and Capital
Plan, which averages 2.2% over the period. Figures are based on preliminary estimate for 1990 by the Burean
of Economic Analysis of $397,602 billion.

(3) In thousands. Figures for 1991-92 through 1995-96 are based on debt outstanding at 3-31-91 plus general
- obligation and LGAC debt expected to be issued under the Financial Projectlons and Capital Plan, as updated

through October 1991.

(4) In thousands. Assumes one-halfthegmwthintureceiptsbetweenﬁscalym 1992 and 1996 as projected in the
cash-basis projections from the Financial Projections and Capital Plan, as updated through October 1991.
~ Average annual growth in tax receipts from 1991 to 1996 equals 2.6%.

27
tl X




DEBT
and

UTY

Accountability and Efficiency in State Debt Management
! |

Fhe Results of a 50-State Survey Sponsored by
The Council of State Governments, the National Association of State Treasurers,
\\ and the Martin School of Public Administration ( Umverszty of Kentucky) e

e e e

S

/72 &X



Foreword

State government faces increasingly complex and difficult choices as it seeks to finance the needs of its
citizens. State government begins the last decade of the twentieth century with more demands for high-
ways, schools and prisons — all needs traditionally met in most states by debt financing.

Debt and Duty: Accountability and Efficiency in State Debt Management brings together invaluable
‘information on who in each state is charged with addressing these needs and how they are doing it.

Public finance at the state level is explored in this publication in an interesting and informative manner.
The Council of State Governments and the National Association of State Treasurers are pleased to have
sponsored this study in the hope that it expands the base of knowledge and understanding of this vital topic.

ﬂaniel Sprague Jimmie Lou Fisher

Executive Director President

The Council of State Governments National Association of State Treasurers
Acknowledgment

The authors wish to acknowledge the helpful and patient participation of over 100 state officials in the
national survey that made this paper possible. The authors would also like to thank the staff of the National
Association of State Treasurers and The Council of State Governments for their assistance throughout the
project.

Merl M. Hackbart Rhonda Riherd

State Budget Director Martin School of Public Administration
Commonwealth of Kentucky University of Kentucky

James Leigland Marysia Reid

Martin School of Public Administration National Association of State Treasurers
University of Kentucky The Council of State Governments

LA R A B2 B
teERERTE
St RRTETR

e RTTRY

Copyright 1990

The Council of State Governments
Iron Works Pike
P.O. Box 11910
Lexington, Kentucky 40578-1910

Manufactured in the
United States of America

C-176
$20.00

dA3X




Introduction

During the past decade, states have taken on dramatically increased levels of responsibility. The number
and cost of state programs in education, health and human resources, transportation, environmental
protection and other areas is growing rapidly, putting an unprecedented strain on state coffers.

For most states, one answer to this financial squeeze is borrowing. Departments, agencies, boards and
state offices of all kinds are going into debt to pay for needed programs. The total state debt in 1988 reached
$276 billion, according to The Book of the States 1990-91. While this may seem miniscule compared to the
national deficit, its growth is of concern to state officials who have a long tradition of conservative fiscal
policies and balanced budgets. .

Despite the increased borrowing activity, little is known about state debt management policies. In fact,
no comprehensive study has been made of the planning, preparation, sale and repayment of tax-exempt
public debt for which states consider themselves responsible. Too few resources have been devoted to the
systematic collection and analysis of comparative state data on debt management policy. As a consequence,
the management of state borrowing remains a mysterious process, unlike other state financial activities,
such as capital budgeting, which have been the subject of extensive, recent research.

Recent federal attempts to limit the tax-exempt status of certain state debt instruments make it doubly
important to bring state management policies into focus. As the states move boldly into the 1990s, taking
the lead in new areas of public concern, their success will, in a large part, be determined by their ability
to borrow and to manage debt wisely.

This paper seeks to help clarify the current situation by summarizing and analyzing the results of a national
survey, undertaken in 1988, on state debt management policies. The survey was a cooperative effort on the
part of The Council of State Governments, the National Association of State Treasurers and the Martin
School of Public Administration at the University of Kentucky.

The survey was conducted in four phases. The first phase was a telephone survey of all 50 states to obtain
initial information concerning offices or agencies with debt management oversight responsibility. A second
phase of the survey consisted of a pilot survey of eight states to test the survey instrument, particularly in
terms of definitions and terminology. A third phase of the survey consisted of a written questionnaire sent
to all 50 states. A fourth phase of the survey involved two rounds of telephone follow-up to all 50 states
to solicit information from nonrespondents and clarify and supplement responses, particularly to open-
ended survey questions. Forty-one states responded to the mailed questionnaire, and all 50 states were
included in the telephone surveys.

The Executive Summary that follows lists findings and emerging issues of concern to state officials that
are discussed in more detail in subsequent sections. The comparative base data produced by this survey is
designed to provide a reference point from which to formulate policy and process changes that can enhance
the efficiency and accountability of state capital acquisition, debt management, and capital budgeting.
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PART ONE

Patterns in State Debt Management Policy

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Findings:

Finding #1:

The task of managing the issuance and repayment
of state debt has grown precipitously in size and com-
plexity over the last decade.

Finding #2:

Principal constraints on the formulation and im-
plementation of state debt management include state
constitutional restrictions on borrowing, and recent
changes in the federal tax structure.

Finding #3:

States typically issue a variety of different kinds
of long-term tax-exempt debt obligations; there is,
however, considerable disagreement among state offi-
cials regarding definitions of terms. For example, do
lease-backed obligations constitute “long-term state
debt?” Is there a difference between state revenue
debt and special authagity revenue debt?

Finding #4:

Most states have centralized the process of struc-
turing and selling state GO and revenue debt, but
continue to allow some or all of their special authori-
ties to handle these responsibilities themselves.

Finding #5:

Voters and/or legislative bodies typically authorize
the issuance of state GO bonds; legislative bodies or
central executive finance offices authorize the issu-
ance of state revenue bonds, rather than the agencies
or departments issuing the debt. But in most states,
special authorities authorize their own debt issues.

Finding #6:

The issuance of state GO and revenue debt is typi-
cally subjected to oversight by a variety of elected and
appointed officials of regular state government. Most
debt-issuing state special authorities appear to be
relatively free from oversight other than that exer-
cised by their boards of directors.

Finding #7:

States can be said to tend toward either one of two
extremes with regard to their organizational arrange-
ments for planning, preparing, selling and repaying
long-term, tax-exempt debt obligations.

ISSUES OF CONCERN TO
STATE OFFICIALS

Issues:

Issue #I:
How can cost savings be promoted in the prepa-
ration, sale, and repayment of public debt?

Issue #2:

How can state credit standing be protected or im-
proved at a time when credit standing seems increas-
ingly vulnerable? ,

Issue #3:

To what extent can and should state capital plan-
ning and debt management include participation of
local governments?

Issue #4:
What are the implications of the continuing search
by states for new kinds of debt instruments?

FINDINGS

Finding #1:

The task of managing the issuance and repayment
of state debt has grown precipitously in size and com-
plexity over the last decade.

The growth is evident in the amount of debt out-
standing, the level of issuing activity, the type of debt
issued and the number of separate issuing entities.
For example, the amount of debt issued by state gov-
ernments has grown by over 203 percent during the
last decade. As shown in Figure 1, outstanding long-

FIGURL 1

State Long-Term Debt Outstanding

1977-78 & 1987-88 (in millions)

1976-77 1987-88
Full Faith & Credit $ 42,913 $ 66,758
Nonguaranteed 44,271 197,314
Total: $ 87,184 $264,071

Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census, /1977 Census of Governments, Compendium
of Government Finances, Vol. 4, No. 2, Series GC 77(4)-5 (Washington: U.S. Govern-
ment Printing Offie, 1979); Government Finances in 1986-1987, Series GF-87-5

(Washington: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1988).

FIGURE 2

State Long-Term Debt Issued & Retired

1977-78 & 1987-88 (in millions)

1976-77 1986-87
Issued $12,377 $49,782
Retired 4,016 33,194
Change: $ 5,392 $ 16,570

Source: US. Bureau of the Census, 1977 Census of Governments, Compendium
of Government Finances, Vol. 4, No. 2, Series GC 77(4)-5 (Washington: U.S. Govern-
ment Printing Offie, 1979); Government Finances in 1986-1987, Series GF-87-§

(Washington: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1988).
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term tax-exempt state debt grew from $87.2 billion
in 1977 to $264.1 billion in 1987.

Along with growth in outstanding debt, the level
of issuing activity increased as well. Figure 2 indicates
that the amount of long-term state debt issued in
1977 was $12.4 billion; in 1987, the amount of such
debt issued was almost $50 billion. Although over
$33 billion in state long-term debt was retired in 1987
(as opposed to just $4 billion in 1977), the total out-
standing balance of state debt increased by $16.6 bil-
lion in 1987, over three times the 1977 increase.

The type of state debt making up the national total
also shifted dramatically over this period. As Figure
1 indicates, in 1977 outstanding “full faith and credit”
debt roughly equaled outstanding “non-guaranteed”
debt (fong-term debt payable solely from pledged
specific revenues). By 1987, the amount of state non-
guaranteed debt outstanding was almost three times
the size of total full faith and credit debt outstanding.

Finally, the number of separate governmental en-
tities issuing and guaranteeing state long-term debt
also increased significantly over this period. In ad-
dition to executive agencies or departments that is-
sue full faith and credit (or general obligation) debt,
many states also allow the issuance of nonguaranteed
(or revenue-backed) debt by regular line departments
or agencies, educational institutions, as well as spe-
cial purpose governments known variously as au-
thorities, commissions, corporations, boards, dis-
tricts, etc. Figure 3 indicates that, over the 1977-87
period, the number of state-level entities issuing reve-
nue-backed debt not directly guaranteed by state gov-
ernment grew from 272 to 416, a 53 percent increase.

Such growth in the level and complexity of state
debt issuance has occurred largely because borrow-
ing is emerging as the only realistic way for state gov-
ernments to finance many public purpose activities,
including especially the acquisition, construction or
renovation of public facilities. Contributing to this
need to borrow have been various interrelated factors,
including declining federal infrastructure assistance,

FIGURE 3

State-Level Special Purpose Governments*
with Debt Qutstanding 1977, 1987

1977 1987
Authority 131 213
Commission 36 43
Corporation 18 40
Board 16 20
Other** 23 38
Total: 224 354

Key:

* Exclusive of educational institutions

ss Other names include administration, association, bank, center, company,
cooperative, council, district, fund, hospital, port, system, turnpike.

Sources: Moody's Investors Service, Moody's Municipal and Government Man-
ual (New York: Moody’s Investors Service, 1977); Moody's Municipal and Govern-
ment Manual (New York: Moody’s Investors Service, 1987).
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statutory and constitutional limits on public taxing
and spending, shrinking budgetary surpluses, and
rapidly growing needs to repair, replace, and add to
aging capital stock. As a result of these factors, levels
of outstanding state debt have grown precipitously
over the last decade, as have the number and types
of problems associated with state borrowing, in-
cluding rising issuance costs and threats to credit
standing.

Finding #2:

Principal constraints on the formulation and im-
plementation of state debt management include state
constitutional restrictions on borrowing and recent
changes in the federal tax structure.

States face a variety of constraints on the formu-
lation and implementation of debt management.
These are constraints over which state policy mak-
ers have relatively little control, in contrast to state
statutes or regulations that manifest the debt poli-
cies themselves. Constraints range from conditions
in the capital markets, which determine the interest
rates at which state debt may be sold, to federal regu-
lations regarding what kinds of debt states may sell
and how they may sell it. Ty

All respondents cited two very different kinds of
constraints having significant impacts on state debt
management. The first, state constitutional restric-
tions on borrowing, vary considerably from state to
state. They represent efforts on the part of state offi-
cials to ensure fiscal discipline in the future, and may
reflect state or regional views of government as well
as philosophies regarding capital formation. As con-
stitutional amendments, they are typically difficult
to change. The second constraint, mentioned by all
respondents, involved recent changes in the federal
tax structure, embodied in the Tax Reform Act (TRA)
of 1986. These changes apply to all states, and in-
clude new, stricter requirements to provide informa-
tion on public borrowing activity, limits on some debt
financing techniques, as well as new definitions of
what may be considered tax-exempt debt obligations
of state and local governments.

Constitutional limits. Figure 4 categorizes state
constitutional limits on full faith and credit borrow-
ing by purpose, and by approval process require-
ments. The figure illustrates the variety of constitu-
tional approaches to debt limitation, and suggests
some explanations for state borrowing behavior. For-
ty states are not limited as to borrowing purpose, but
face a variety of limitations in the form of approval
process requirements, including specific dollar limits
on outstanding debt, by referenda, by extraordinary
legislative majorities, and flexible debt limits tied to
revenue collection, property values, etc.

Ten states are limited in their borrowing activities
to the financing of casual deficits or extraordinary
expenses, and eight of these 10 also face limitations
in the form of approval process requirements. Of
these eight, all but one face specific dollar limits
on the amount of debt outstanding, ranging from
$100,000 in Nebraska to $1,000,000 in Missouri. Four
of these states no longer actively issue full faith and
credit debt, citing “constitutional restrictions.’ In all,
eight of the 11 states not currently issuing full faith




and credit bonds have some kind of dollar limit on
debt, suggesting that this variety of debt limit may
severely constrain borrowing behavior.

States may circumvent restrictive constitutional
limits on full faith and credit debt by foregoing full
faith and credit debt completely and issuing nonguar-
anteed or revenue-backed debt, as in Arizona or
Colorado. States may also create semi-autonomous
government corporations to issue such nonguaran-
teed debt, as is the case in Indiana and Kentucky.
Finally, states may simply change their constitutions
periodically. For example, Texas is restricted to casu-
al deficit borrowing, a $200,000 ceiling with no con-
stitutionally detailed avenues for authorizing addi-
tional debt. In that situation, each state bond issue
is authorized via constitutional amendment.

Tax Reform. All respondents also reported that
TRA significantly changed many aspects of the tax-
exempt debt issuing process, and states have had to
adapt their policies and procedures accordingly.
Under TRA, all states must maintain more detailed
records on public debt issued by government agen-
cies and must make annual reports to the U.S. Treas-
ury regarding every governmental transaction involv-
ing tax-exempt interest, including bank loans, leases
and bond issues. New rules limiting arbitrage and ad-
vance refundings also require much more detailed
record keeping.

FIGURE 4

In addition to new reporting requirements, TRA
drastically reduced the volume of public debt that
may be issued, by instituting tests that bonds must
meet in order to be considered tax exempt, and
by means of a unified volume limit or cap on the
amount of debt that may be issued in each state for
“qualified private activity” purposes. Beginning in
1988, Title XIII of TRA set the volume cap for each
state at the greater of $150 million or $50 per capi-
ta., beginning in 1988. Categories of “private activi-
ty” bonds subject to the cap include those for singlc
and multifamily housing, certain water facilities,
mass commuting facilities, sewage and solid waste
disposal facilities, certain energy utilities, hazardous
waste facilities, redevelopment bonds, small issue
manufacturing and student loans.

Vague and somewhat impractical TRA provisions
for distributing this debt issuing capacity among
state and local level issuers have prompted most states
to make their own distributions via legislation or ex-
ecutive orders. States also have designated officials
or created new offices to oversee the specifics of the
allocation process and to make policy decisions re-
garding allocation. For example, the California Debt
Limit Allocation Committee is responsible for allo-
cating private activity bonding capacity under the
limit defined by TRA. All California localities, coun-
ties, state agencies and local development authorities

State Constritutional Limits on
State General Obligation Borrowing
Limitation By Purpose
Limited to Casual Deficits or

Limitation by Approval Process Requirements No Limit on Purpose Extraordinary Expenses Only
Voter Approval Required for Borrowing:

Referendum AK, AR, NY, PA, OK

With Legislative Approval HI, WA

Within Flexible Limits FL, NM, VA

Extraordinary Legislative Majority
Approval Required*

Flexible Debt Limit:**
Referendum Required to Exceed Limit
Other Conditions for Exceeding Limit
No Additional Debt Allowed

Dollar Limit on Debt:
Referendum Required to Exceed Limit
Other Conditions for Exceeding Limit
No Additional Debt Allowed

Simple Legislative Majority Approval
No Borrowing Limit Specified
Total Number of States

DE, IL, LA, MA, MN, MT

NJ, NC, WY
SC
CT, GA, HI, NV, SD, UT, WI MS
CA, CO, ID, KS, ME, RI IA, KY, MO
ND, OR OH
AL AZ, NE, TX
MD, NH, TN, VT
IN, Wv
40 ' 10

Sources: The Council of State Governments National Survey, 1988; Advisory Com-
mission on Intergovernmental Relations, Significant Features of Fiscal Federalism,
1988 Edition, Vol. 1 (Washington, U.S. Government Printing Office, 1988).

Key:
*3/5t03/4
*¢ Limits tied to revenue collection, property values, etc.
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must apply to the Committee for a private activi-
ty bond allocation. The California Mortgage
Bond and Tax Credit Allocation Committee dis-
tributes private activity mortgage bond and
housing tax credit allocations to state and local
agencies.

Finding #3:

States typically issue a variety of different kinds
of long-term tax-exempt debt obligations; there is
however, considerable disagreement among state
officials regarding definitions of terms. For example,
do lease-backed obligations constitute “long-term
state debt”’? Is there a difference between state reve-
nue debt and special authority revenue debt?

For the purposes of this survey, long-term, tax-ex-
empt debt obligations of state government were clas-
sified into the following four categories:
¢ General obligation (GO) debt is backed with an un-
conditional pledge by state government of any and
all sources of revenue — including the state’s taxing
power — for the repayment of the debt.

o State revenue debt is “nonguaranteed debt” in
the sense that it is backed solely by specific, pledged
revenue sources (e.g., user fees, special assessments,
limited taxes), and does not constitute an obligation
against any other resources of government.

o Special authority debt is issued as debt obliga-
tions of special purpose government units (which
may be identified in state statutes as public authori-
ties, special districts, associations, boards, corpora-
tions, commissions, bond banks, etc.), rather than
as a direct obligation of the state. Such debt may be
backed by specific, pledged revenue sources (e.g.,
public utility user fees) or by any and all revenue
sources of the special purpose government unit, in-
cluding tax revenues in many cases. (Such debt may
also enjoy secondary backing by state government,
including moral obligation pledges to replenish defi-
ciencies in debt service reserves.)

o Lease-backed debt is structured like revenue
bond issues, with “certificates of participation” or
“lease revenue bonds” secured by lease payments.
The kinds of state-level government entities issuing
this form of debt include universities, special authori-
ties and regular line agencies of state government.
This category of debt was distinguished from tradi-
tional revenue bonds because some states do not
recognize lease-backed obligations as state debt.

Figure § indicates states actively issuing the vari-
ous kinds of long-term tax-exempt municipal debt.
Thirty-nine states currently issue GO deb: :uaran-
teed with the “full faith and credit” of the state. Of
the remaining 11, nine have no GO debt outstanding;
two states, Kentucky and North Dakota, are still
responsible for outstanding GO debt, but have made
relatively recent decisions to stop issuing this form
of debt.

Currently, 34 states issue nonguaranteed revenue
debt backed by specified revenues. This is considered
“state debt” in the sense that it is a direct liability of
state government, but it is not secured with any and
all state revenues as is the case with full faith and
credit debt. This kind of nonguaranteed debt may be
issued as “special obligations of the state” (e.g., Ohio,
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Oregon), “departmental revenue bonds” issued by
regular line departments of state government (e.g.,
Utah, Wyoming), “special tax revenue bonds” (e.g.,
“sales tax revenue bonds” in Illinois), or simply state
revenue bonds secured with dedicated taxes or speci-
fied user fees (e.g., “liquor store revenue bonds” in
Iowa).

« Of the 16 states reporting that they do not active-
ly issue state revenue bonds, 10 have no such debt out-
standing. Idaho, Indiana and South Dakota do not
actively issue either state GO or state revenue debt,
and have neither kind of debt outstanding.

Every state but Nevada has authorized state-level
special purpose governments to issue debt. Usually
quasi-independent corporate entities, these entities
are known by a variety of names, but are probably
most familiar as public or special authorities. Occa-’
sionally these entities enjoy the power to levy taxes
and they may refer to debt secured with taxing pow-
er as full faith and credit or guaranteed debt. Large,
non-taxing entities, such as the Port Authority of
New York and New Jersey, are authorized to issue GO
bonds in the sense that all project revenues are
pledged to support debt service for a given issue.

Most state level special purpose governments issue
non-guaranteed bonds backed by specific, limited
project revenues. These bonds may be self-supporting
in the sense that they are not guaranteed in any way
by state government and exist as indirect or contin-
gent liabilities of the state. However, much of this
debt enjoys specially arranged, secondary backing
by the state. This backing is in the form of the state’s
full faith and credit guarantee, “moral obligation”
pledges on the part of states to insure that debt serv-
ice reserves remain at required levels, as well as oth-
er state support mechanisms such as reserve fund
backups, lease arrangements, contractual obligations
or dedicated taxes.

Finally, 23 states reported using some variety of
lease-backed financing in 1988 (e.g., “certificates of
participation” and “lease-purchase revenue bonds”).
California, New York, Ohio and Michigan appear to
be among the most active current users of this tech-
nique. As noted above, states may not consider these
obligations to be direct state liabilities, even when
they are issued by executive departments or agencies.
For example, officials of New York State reported
that the state does not issue revenue bonds. Standard
& Poor’s reports, however, that New York is the sec-
ond leading issuer of certificates of participation,
most of which are sold through the State Department
of General Services. In Arizona, the State Depart-
ment of Administration issues lease-purchase debt,
but these financings are not subject to the sort of debt
restrictions applied by the legislature to other kinds
of state revenue bonds.

In a narrow legal sense, lease-backed debt is indeed
distinct from state GO or revenue debt. But the ulti-
mate backing for such debt typically is state general
revenues. Most investors view such debt as another
variety of state borrowing.

Finding #4:
Most states have centralized the process of struc-
turing and selling state GO and revenue debt, but



FIGURL 3

Types of Long-Term Tax-Exempt Municipal
Debt Actively Issued by State Governments

Types of Debt 2o
State General Obligation __State Revenue __Special Authority Lease-.

AlaDRME ... .o i e s s * * &
7T T R N s S A * * * &
ARIZONA 5 i ide it sainas 4 bn 5o s o oid * * *
PRERANBAN. . o codl oo iinie vie o wigteli’s * * *
California ................... * * * *
Colorado .. ......: . 5000 * * *
Connecticut ...........cc0.... * * * s
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Flortida o ois i o s g i T * * * *
Oeorgia . .. 0. vai. L 5w * *
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BRI o o s Do vis st s aTe ah *
HBROIS: ;. . i i8iheie ceeni * * * *
DA . . oo iy i * *
JOWE . i T e ot v * *
RaANSES#:.. 2 oo so sl S oan o W * * *
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LOWISIaNa - .- ooc . oo el * *
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Mapvland ... +i Ji.o0 o AL S * * *
Massachusetts ................ * * * *
Michigan .................... * * * *
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New Hampshire .............. * * *
NewlJersey......covvvenvnnnn. * * * *
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New York....... S L YR * * *
NorthCarolina ............... * * * *
North Dakota ................ e * * *
(8| T T e SR SRR W * * * *
Oklahoma ................... * *
OreBOR". . .. e soseerins * * * 2
Pennsylvania ................. * *
Rhode Island . ................ * * * *
South Carolina ..... o v e a * * *
South Dakota ................ : * *
TeIDCSSER . . . oo vvvsnioreiiie * *
TORMS s L e sl o e e * * *
870 R S T D RSy * * * *
Vermont..........covveennnn. * *
Visghnda. .. ....... 00007 s * * * *
Washington ................... * *
West Virginia................. * * *
WISCONSIN . . ... ..cois it * * *
Wyoming ............covnnen. * *
Total: 39 34 49 23

Source: The Council of State Governments National Survey, 1988.
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continue to allow some or all of their special authori-
ties to handle these responsibilities themselves.
The process that culminates with the sale of state
debt is actually a series of processes, including deci-
sions regarding the use of bond proceeds (e.g., as part
of the capital budgeting process), the authorization

of specific proposals to issue debt, the assembly of .

a team of expert advisors (e.g., bond counsel, finan-
cial advisor, other legal advisors, accountants, audi-
tors ‘and other experts), the design and structuring
of the bond issue (decisions regarding the size, tim-
ing, nature of the debt instrument used, whether or
not to insure the issue, etc.), selection of an under-
writer or underwriting syndicate (via negotiation or
formal competition), arrangements for credit ratings,
etc.

The entity that structures and sells state debt may
be different from the entity that issues the debt, in
the sense of being responsible for paying it back. This
is true, for example, in states where central finance
offices structure and sell revenue debt of which state
departments will be primarily responsible for paying
back.

Figure 6 classifies states according to the type of
entity that structures and sells each of the three prin-
cipal kinds of state debt. As the figure indicates, 27
of the 39 states actively selling GO debt do so through

FIGURE 6

central finance offices. In Connecticut, for example,
the Division of Debt Management in the Treasurer’s
Office structures and sells all state general obliga-
tion bonds. In Illinois, GO bonds are structured and
sold by the Bureau of the Budget. Executive branch
boards, commissions, or committees and their tech-
_nical staffs, sell such debt in nine states. In Alaska,
for example, the State Bond Committee sells such
debt. In New Mexico, the Board of Finance issues
such debt. Three states report that the structuring
and sale of GO debt is managed by a joint execu-
tive/legislative entity.

Figure 6 indicates that most states follow a simi-
lar pattern with regard to the sale of state revenue
debt. In 17 of the 34 states actively selling this kind
of debt, the sale is carried out through a central state
finance office, such as the treasurer’s office, even
when the debt is “issued” by some other executive
department or agency. In nine states, an executive
branch board or commission sells such debt. Final-
ly, in eight states, the issuing agency or department
is authorized to structure and sell their own revenue
debt issues, suggesting a decentralized approach to
at least these aspects of debt management.

Only a handful of states maintain control over the
structuring and sale of debt for which special pur-
pose governments (such as authorities, districts,

States Classified According to Types of Entities
With Principal Roles in Structuring and Selling State Debt

Type of Debt Issued
State General State Revenue Special Authority
Obligation Debt Debt Revenue Debt
Type of Authorizing Entity (39 states) (34 states) (49 states)
Central Executive AL, AR, CA, CT, AR, CA, HL IL, NY, NC, OR
Branch Finance Office DE, HI, IL, ME, KY, MS, MT, NV,
MD, MA, MI, MN, NH, NJ, NC, OR,
MS, MT, NV, NH, RI, SC, UT, WI,
NJ, NY, NC, OK, wY
OR, PA, RI, SC,
UT, VT, WI
Executive Branch AK, FL, MO, NM, AK, FL, KS, MO, KS
Commission, Authority OH, TX, VA, WA, NE, NM, TX, VA,
or Board wv - WV
Joint Legislative/Executive GA, LA, TN GA, TN
Commission or Board
Individual Departments, AS, CO, CT, 1A, AL, AK, AZ, AR,
Agencies or Authorities MA, MI, ND, OH CA, CO, CT, DE,
FL, HL, ID, IL,
IN, IA, LA, ME,
. ND, MA, MI, MN,
! MS, MO, MT, NE,
i NH, NJ, NM, NY,
ND, OH, OK, PA
RI, SC, SD, TX,
UT, VT, VA, WA,
WV, WI, WY

Source: The Council of State Governments National Survey, 1988.
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boards, etc.) are primarily responsiblc. The Kentuc-
ky Office of Investment and Debt Management, in
the State Finance Cabinet, sells all bond issues for-
mally issued by state authorities. The North Caroli-
na Treasurer’s Office sells debt in the names of state
authorities. In 43 states, these entities structure and
sell their own debt obligations without involvement
by central state finance offices, executive branch
boards or commissions, or joint executive/legislative
boards. This highly decentralized approach to the
sale of these kinds of bonds is consistent with general
lack of direct supervision of the financing activities
of these entities, described in more detail below.
Figure 3 (see page 2) categorizes by name the state-
level special purpose governments with outstanding
debt in 1977 and 1987. As the figure indicates, the
vast majority of these entities are known as authori-
ties, but these names rarely reflect accurately fun-
damental differences between entities. Figure 3 does
illustrate, however, the growth in the number of all
of these semi-autonomous debt issuing entities at the
state level. From 1977 to 1987 the total number of
these entities increased by 130 or §8.3 percent.

FIGURE 7

Finding #5:

Voters and/or legisiative bodies typically authorize
the issuance of state GO bonds; legislative bodies or
central executive finance offices authorize the issu-
ance of state revenue bonds, rather than the agencies
or departments issuing the debt. But in most states,
special authorities authorize their own debt issues.

The authorization of specific state debt issues is
a distinct step in the process that culminates with the
sale of a bond issue. But the governmental entity
authorizing the sale may or may not be distinct from
the entity that structures and sells the debt or the en-
tity that formally issues the debt, in the sense of be-
ing responsible for repayment. The constitutional
restrictions on the issuance of GO debt, listed in Fig-
ure 4 (see page 3), require that in 20 states the legis-
lature or the general electorate must authorize GO
bond sales. In other cases, and with regard to other
kinds of debt, states have established a variety of
statutory or procedural measures for the authoriza-
tion of debt issues. Figure 7 indicates the results of
those efforts; respondents were asked to name the
entity with primary responsibility for authorizing

States Classified According to Types of Entities
With Principal Roles in Authorizing Specific State Bond Issues

Type of Debt Issued
State General State Revenue Special Authority
Obligation Debt Debt Revenue Debt
Type of Authorizing Entity (39 states) (34 states) (49 states)
Central Executive AR, CO, NH, NJ, KY, NC, OR,
Branch Finance Office NC, OR, RI, WY
Executive Branch MS AZ, FL, MA, MI, DE, MS, N\M
Commission, Authority MS, NM, TX, VA
or Board
Joint Legislative/Executive CT, SC SC LA, SC, TN

Commission or Board

Legislative Majority

Electorate (referendum)

Individual Departments,
Agencies or Authorities

DE, GA, HI, IL,
LA, MD, MA, MN,
MO, MT, NH, NC,

>
»
<>

=
%
1238

SRERR
FREFRX
-EE

AK, CA, CT, H], AL, CA, GA, HI,
IL, IA, KS, KY, ID, KS, ND, WV
MO, MT, NE, NV,
RI, UT, VT, TN ND, WV, WI
Wi
OH AK, AZ, AR, CO,
CT,FL,IL, IN,

Source: The Council of State Governments National Survey, 1988.
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specific debt issues of the various kinds discussed
above. :

In states whose constitutions designate such an en-
tity (the legislature or the electorate), rather than
specific debt limits (dollar amounts or flexible Lim-
its), that entity is identified in Figure 7. For exam-
ple, 10 state constitutions require voters to approve
GO bond issues via the referenda process. Figure 7
indicates that nine additional states have added statu-
tory requirements for voter approval. Similarly, 12
state constitutions require that a legislative majori-
ty authorize GO bond issues. Figure 7 indicates that
five additional states have added statutory require-
ments for formal legislative approval. In a number
of states, such as New Hampshire, New York and
West Virginia, the legislatures have also established

limits on GO debt. v
- Instates whose constitutions restrict state GO debt
through specific limits (e.g., dollar limits on outstand-
ing debt or flexible debt limits), statutes must desig-
nate entities that will authorize the sale of specific
issues. For GO debt, this authorization often involves
calculation of the state’s current debt position rela-
tive to such limits. Such authorization may come
from the legislature or from a variety of other
sources, as indicated in Figure 7.

Finally, for state revenue debt and special authority
debt — not typically addressed by constitutional
limits — statutes may or may not erect some kind of
authorization process. Legislative approval is required
* in 16 of the 34 states issuing state revenue debt. In
32 states, special authorities authorize their own debt
issues. (In some states, such as California and New

York, the complexity of authorization arrangements

defies simple categorization; Figure 7 incorporates

judgments of respondents with regard to the most

appropriate classification of their states.)

Most responderits in these states noted that this
debt is not considered a direct liability of state gov-
ernment, and therefore is not a matter of immediate
state concern. In addition, the elected or appointed
governing boards of these kinds of entities must ap-
prove bond issues. In a number of states, regular state
officials are ex officio members of these boards.

_Finding #6: ‘

The issuance of state GO and revenue debt is typi-
cally subjected to oversight by a variety of elected and
appointed officials of regular state government. Most
debt-issuing state special authorities appear to be

- relatively free from oversight, other than that exer-
cised by their boards of directors.

For the purposes of this survey, oversight was de-
fined to include a broader range of responsibilities
than are exercised in the authorization of specific
debt issues. In this sense, oversight ranges from the
periodic calculation of outstanding debt totals, to the
on-going, direct review and approval of capital con-
struction plans and operating budgets. The oversight

- of debt issuing activities varies with the type of debt
issued, as well as the measures in place for approv-
ing, structuring and selling debt. Officials charged
with oversight responsibilities may or may not be the
same people who approve specific debt issues.

With regard to state GO debt, oversight is gener- -
ally exercised as part of the management responsi-
bilities of regular state government executives. Often,
the entities that approve specific debt issues also
monitor debt totals and collect other kinds of infor- -
mation, especially in the case of special boards or
commissions. Examples of entities that oversee GO
debt issuing activities include the Connecticut State
Bond Commission, the Texas Bond Review Board
and the Washington State Finance Commiission. In
states where legislative bodies play principal roles in
approving debt issues, special legislative offices or
commissions may collect and analyze information on
state GC borrowing activities. Examples are the
Maryland Legislative Department of Fiscal Services
and the Joint Economic and Fiscal Commission of
the Illinois legislature.

The issuance of nonguaranteed debt by regular
state agencies and departments is also subject to the
oversight activities of regular state government offi-
cials as part of their normal management responsi-
bilities. In states such as Nevada, New Hampshire
and Oregon, where such debt is issued by a central
state office, that office normally collects debt-related
information, calculates debt limits, etc. In North Caro- .
lina, most departments rely on the Treasurer’s Office

" to structure and sell debt. The Treasurer and the leg-

islature maintain information on these kinds of debt
issuing activities and the Treasurer must approve
capital plans.

In states such as Ohio, Colorado and Iowa, where
departments structure and sell their own revenue
bonds, the issuing entities generally maintain infor-
mation on borrowing. In Colorado, for example, the
Department of Education authorizes its own capi-
tal plan and bond issue, maintains all records on debt
and calculates its own debt capacity.

The concept of oversight is most meaningful in
connection with the activities of quasi-independent
authorities, boards and other special purpose gov-
ernments that operate outside of the regular, execu-
tive branch structure of state government. The prin-
cipal means of overseeing the activities of these en-
tities is through appointments to the boards of trus-
tees (bodies that also authorize specific bond issues
in 32 states, as noted above). Typically such appoint-
ments are made by the governor, or are ex officio in
nature. In California, Maine, Massachusetts, Penn-
sylvania and Vermont, for example, the State Treas-
urer sits on the boards of all special purpose govern-
ments issuing debt. In Maine, Missouri, New York
and many other states, the Governor appoints the
trustees of each state’s authority.

A second means of oversight involves formal re-
quirements for regular reporting by these entities. For
example, Arizona’s Salt River Power District sets its
own debt limits and structures its own bond issues,

- but is required to report amounts of its outstanding

debt to the Department of Revenue. Authorities in
Hawaii must report on a regular basis to the State
Director of Finance, the legislature and the. Gover-
nor regarding their bond market activity. Authori-
ties in Rhode Island must report all bond issuing
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activity on a regular basxs to the State Public Finance -

Board.

A third means of oversxght mvolm direct controls -

over their actions in the form of specific review and

approval powers exercised by officials of regular state

governments. For example, the State Treasurers in
‘Delaware, Oregon and North Carolina must approve
capital plans of issuing authorities in those states.
The Kentucky Office of Investment and Debt Man-
agement reviews and approves all authority capital
projects, and manages debt service payments. The
Governors of New York and New Jersey may veto the
board minutes (and thus any and all board minutes)

. of certain authorities in those states, thus affording .-

them a powerful, but rarely used, form of oversight.
Most state authorities, commissions, districts, etc.,

appear to be relatively free from oversight. For ex- -

ample, the Arkansas Development Finance Authori-
ty maintains its own information on debt issues, and
is not required to report information to state officials.

Similarly, Colorado’s authorities are not subject to -
formal reporting requirements, and are not super- -

vised by any state office. The same is true of special
purpose governments in Idaho, Connecticut, Dela-
ware, Montana, Nebraska, Ohio and a number of
other states.

Finding #7:

States can be said to tend toward either one of two
extremes with regard to their organizational arrange-
ments for planning, preparing, selling and repaying
 long-term, tax-exempt debt obligations. .

The first extreme is a highly centralized, integrat-
ed management approach, represented by Kentucky,

- Michigan and Virginia, which maximizes state over-
sight and control. The second extreme is a highly de-
centralized approach, represented by Connecticut,
Ohio and Massachusetts, which encourages more
self-regulation on the part of state debt issuing enti-
ties.

Kentucky. Kentucky represents one of the most
highly integrated approaches to debt management in
the sample. The state no longer actively issues GO
bonds. Instead, it issues lease revenue debt of vari-
ous kinds, under carefully controlled conditions.

- State revenue bonds are issued by the Kentucky State
Office of Investment and Debt Management (OIDM)
on behalf of the State Property and Building Com-
mission. OIDM also issues bonds on behalf of the
several authorities authorized by the legislature to sell
revenue debt. The directing board of each authority
initially determines the need for such debt. OIDM
evaluates the need for the project, carries out all ac-
tivities of the issuance process and reports to the
General Assembly regarding these debt issuing ac-
tivities.

Virginia. The Treasury Board issues all general ob-
ligation debt as well as the debt of state higher edu-
cation institutions. The Board also approves the
terms and structure of revenue bonds issued by all
state agencies receiving general fund appropriations.
Revenue bonds issued by four state authorities are
reviewed by the Board, and the Division of Debt
Management of the Treasurer’s Office performs staff

services for those authorities. The State Treasurer is

a board member of all nine state authorities that i 1s-
sue tax exempt debt.

Michigan. All general obligation debt of the state
is reviewed by the State Administrative Board, and
is issued by the Cash and Debt Management Divi-
sion of the Treasurer’s Office. The State Administra-

" tive Board also reviews all revenue bond debt issued

by state agencies. These agencies hire their own con-
sultants to work on their financing and manage in-
vestment of proceeds.

For some M:chlgan state authorities, the proce-
dures for review and issuance of revenue bonds are

. similar to those for state agencies. Some authorities

report directly to other state agencies, such as the
Commerce Department. Finally, some authorities act
independently of all other state agencies or depart-
ments. The State Treasurer serves as board member
for most authorities that issue bonds. .
Connecticut. Connecticut illustrates a more decen-
tralized approach to debt management policy. Like
most states surveyed, Connecticut requires central-
ized review and approval of state GO and revenue
bonds, but requires no centralized state review and
approval of public authority debt financings — for

‘which the state does not consider itself liable. One

measure of control is provided, however, by using ex
officio members on the boards of issuing authorities.
The State Treasurer sits on the boards of most issu-
ing authorities. Also, the Secretary of the Office of
Policy and Management, an executive agency, sits on
the boards of all state authorities.

Ohia. Ohio’s GO debt is reviewed and 1ssued by the
Commissioners of Sinking Funds. These officials in-
clude the Governor, Attorney General, State Audi-
tor and State Treasurer. However, no formal review
exists either for state revenue bonds or for revenue
bonds issued by state public authorities, although the

~ State Treasurer sits on the board of several of these

entities. The authorities coordinate all aspects of
their revenue bond issues and hire outside consul-
tants as necessary.

Massachusetts. Review of GO debt in Massachu-

setts is performed by the Finance Advisory Board

(FAB). State agencies that issue revenue bonds not
guaranteed by the state do not submit proposals to
the FAB, but coordinate their own debt issues. Public
authorities that issue non-guaranteed revenue bonds
carry out financings using their own staff and out-
side consultants. One measure of control is provid-
ed by debt limits imposed on each authority by its

enabling legislation.

EMERGING ISSUES OF CONCERN
TO STATE OFFICIALS

In telephone responses to open-ended follow-up
questions survey respondents were asked to identify -
one or two issues of growing importance in the for-
mulation and implementation of debt management
policy in their states. The following discussion covers
a selection of typical responses.

Issue #I:
How can cost savings be promoted in the prepa-

_ ration, sale and repayment of public debt?
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This issue grows with impottance during periods

 of rising or uncertain interest rates, and as states face

more restrictions on the kinds of debt they may is-

_sue in tax-exempt form. One example of a procedure

used by some states for controlling debt issuance
costs involves coordinating the size and timing of
different kinds of issues originating within the state,

If large state and local issues are sold simultaneous-

ly, issuers may be forced to pay interest penalties.
New"York State deals with this potential problem
with its Securities Coordinating Committee, a body
that'schedules the issuance of state debt in a coordi-

-nated fashion.

Issue #2:

. How can state credit standing be protected or im-
proved at a time when credit standing seems increas-
ingly vulnerable?

In the short term, credit protection helps guard
against interest penalties associated with debt issues
of questionable credit worthiness. In the long term,

. it helps guarantee the state continued access to the

credit markets for appropriate public purposes. A
complicating factor in the protection by states of
their credit standings has been the dramatic shift in
public borrowing from GO debt, over which states
typically have direct control, to various kinds of non-
guaranteed or revenue debt, over which states may
not have direct control. _

Technically, the debt issued by these entities may
be only a contingent liability of the state, but the
state’s credit rating may nevertheless be threatened
if the issuer defaults. In such cases, the investment
community may perceive that the state is informally
obligated to arrange or sponsor a “bailout’’ Such a
perception was an important factor in New York’s ef-
forts to rescue the New York State Urban Develop-
ment Corporation (UDC) after it defaulted on short-
term debt in 1975, although the state’s “moral obli-
gation” support was pledged to UDC’s long-term
bonds rather than its short-term securities.

Survey responses indicated that over the last 10
years, a number of states have become concerned
about the effects of special authority borrowing on
state credit standings. Over that period, at least nine
states undertook reviews and reforms of debt man-
agement policy for the purposes of enhancing pro-
tection of the state’s credit standing. These states in-
clude New York, California, Illinois, Michigan, Ken-
tucky, Wisconsin, Oregon, Maryland and Vermont.
In each of these cases, state liability for nonguaran-
teed state revenue debt and the debt of special pur-
pose governments came under careful study.

Issue #3:
To what extent can and should state capital plan-

» -

ning and debt management include participation of
local governments’
Another issue identified by some respondents af-

* fecting the formulation and implementation of debt

management policy concerns the extent to which a

. state should involve itself in the debt issuing activi-

ties of governments operating within its boundaries,
regardless of potential danger to the state’s credit
standing. In other words, policy makers in these
states recognize a growing need to develop compre-
hensive, coordinated efforts for capital planning,
budgeting and financing involving all government
units within each state’s boundaries. This need may
be recognized as most critical in states facing a com-
bination of resource scarcity, growing demands for
government goods and services, and severe limits on -
debt issuance activities, in the form of constitutional -
restrictions, federal tax restrictions, or already large
amounts of outstanding debt.

Issue #4:

What are the implications of the continuing search
by states for new kinds of debt instruments?

Finally, the rapidly growing popularity of lease-
backed financing is evidence of the continuing effort
by state and local issuers to identify and make use of
new kinds of debt instruments. Lease financing was
originally used to circumvent restrictions on the is-
suance of GO bonds, and the need for voter approval
of such borrowing. These continue to be major rea-
sons for the use of this financing technique, but such
debt has become widely used for a variety of pur-
poses, raising additional questions concerning how
such bond issues should be authorized, sold and
monitored.

CONCLUSION
There have been few attempts to carry out broad

~ studies of basic state debt management policies, us-

ing comparative state data, largely because of the
complex and highly diverse nature of existing poli-
cies. But this lack of research has meant, among
other things, that policy makers and their staffs have
had little guidance as they attempt to adjust policies
and practices to meet their states’ changing capital
financing needs, as well as the evolving legal and pro-
cedural requirements associated with the capital mar-
kets themselves.

~ This study offers a ““baseline’” assessment of state
debt management policies. With such information,
researchers and analysts should be better able to de-
sign future studies focusing on the impacts of exist-
ing policies, and provide state officials with informa-
tion useful in improving state approaches to the plan-
ning, preparation, sale and repayment of tax-exempt
public debt.
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Debt Management Proflles of 1 the50 States

- ALABAMA

GO Bonds: Alabama GO bonds are constitution-
ally limited to a specific dollar amount and require
a public vote (a constitutional amendment) and ap-
proval by the legislature before they can be issued.
These bond issues are rarely issued due to the in-
volved process. If they are issued, the Treasurer’s
Office handles the bonding process, i.e. structuring
and issuing the bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: Alabama does not issue any
revenue bonds directly in its own name. All revenue
bonds are sold by authorities.

Authority Revenue Bonds: Each authority must be
created by the legislature and each issue must be ap-
proved by the legislature. The Governor “controls”
each of the authorities by having at least one mem-
ber of his cabinet on the board. Once the issues are
approved, the authorities structure and sell each of
their own bonds, with the aid of the executive bond
counsel advisor. The Treasurer’s office collects and
records information for all authorities, except the
Housing Authority, and acts as paying agem for the
issues.

ALASKA

GO Bonds: All GO bonds are issued in the name
of the State of Alaska by the State Bond Commit-
tee. This is composed of three cabinet members with
- staff assistance from the Treasury Department, De-
partment of Revenue. The GO issues require voter
and legislative approval. The Department of Reve-
nue collects information on deébt actmty and main-
tains all records.

- State Revenue Bonds: The same basic process ap-
plies to the sale of revenue bonds issued in the state’s
. name. The legislature approves these issues.
~ Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities have

legal and managerial independence. Each of the
authorities has an oversight board composed of offi-
cials appointed by the Governor. There is no central
office that collects data for the authorities. Authori-
ties approach the issuance of bonds in different ways.
In general, however, the issuance of bonds is indepen-
dent from oversight by any office of the state, exclud-
ing an annual debt report produced by the Depart-
ment of Revenue, which includes authority bond
activity.

ARIZONA

GO Bonds: Arizona does not actively issue GO
debt.
State Revenue Bonds: The University system and

the Department of Transportation issue revenue .

bonds, backed by fuel and sales taxes. The legislature
sets debt limits for the Department of Transporta-

tion, but the approval of the debt is by the Highway
Commission. The Board of Regents sets debt limits
and approves issues for the University system. The .
Department of Revenue collects information on the
outstanding debt of these agencies, along with the
revenue debt of municipal issuers. Lease purchase
agreements are not subject to the same criteria as the
revenue debt. Lease purchases are carried out by the
Department of Administration, are not viewed as
debt outstanding by the state and are not backed by v
the full faith and credit of the state.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The Power Authority
was created by the legislature to issue debt (i.e. the
Hoover Dam Project). The authority sets its own out-
standing debt limits and structures and issues its own
bonds. It is not subject to review by any government
entity, but is required to report debt outstandmg to
the Department of Revenue.

ARKANSAS

GO Bonds: Arkansas issues very little GO debt.
This operation is carried out by the Treasurer’s Of-
fice. All debt is authorized by voter referendum. The
Treasurer’s Office calculates and monitors debt limits
and oversees the structuring, issuing and reporting
of information regarding the debt.

State Revenue Bonds: The Treasurer’s Office has
the same responsibilities for revenue debt as with the
GO debt. Very little revenue debt is issued in the name
of the state. The Treasurer’s Office calculates and
monitors debt limits.

- Authority Revenue Bonds: The Arkansas Develop-
ment Finance Authority (ADFA) issues most of the
debt in the state. Issues are sold for economic de-
veiopment, housing development and government

 projects of other types. The Treasurer’s Offices cal-

culates and monitors debt limits, but after this step
the authority is completely on its own. There is no
outside authorization for specific issues and no out-
side approval of the capital plans of the authority.
The ADFA coordinates the issuing process, arranges
for bond counsel and credit ratings, etc., issues the
debt and maintains records. The ADFA is not re-
quired to report any information to any state official.
The ADFA maintains all records and information on
the debt issue.

" CALIFORNIA

GO Bonds: Voters approve GO debt issues. The
management and oversight of debt issues falls to the
Department of Treasury. The Office of Trust Services
is trustee and paying agent for all general obligation
bonds.. The California Debt Advisory Commission
serves as a center for information on public debt is-
suance. The Commission collects and analyzes infor-
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mation on the issuance of debt by public agencies
and provides technical assistance concerning the is-
sue. This includes all local GO issues. The Treasurer
serves as chairman of all related sub-committees.
State Revenue Bonds: The same issuance proce-
dures apply to the sale of state revenue bonds. The
legislature approves the issuance of state revenue
bonds. ‘ _
Authority Revenue Bonds: There are a series of
special authorities within the state with oversight
responsibilities for allocation of revenue or conduit
revenue sales. These authorities only report the
amount of debt and other related information to
the Debt Advisory Commission. The legislature ap-
proves each bond program and specifies an admin-
istering agency to sell the bonds. The finance com-
mittee or financing authority approves the amount
of the sale and works with the Trust Services Divi-
sion of the Treasury to schedule and sell the bonds.
No other office is directly responsible for oversight
of these authorities. The Governor or Director of Fi-
nangce, the State Comptroller and a member from the
specific area serve on the authorities’ boards.

COLORADO

GO Bonds: Colorado does not actively issue GO
bonds. ,

State Revenue Bonds: The Department of Educa-

tion has legal authority to issues revenue bonds in its
own name. The Department of Education authorizes

each bond and capital plan, coordinates the credit

rating process, issues the bonds and maintains all
records. The Department also calculates the debt ca-
pacity.

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities han-
dle all aspects of the bonding process independent-
ly, including authorization of the bonds and capital

plans. Each authority is controlled by a governing .
" board, made up of officials appointed by the Gover-

nor. There is no formal reporting mechanism and no
direct oversight by any state office.

CONNECTICUT

GO Bonds: GO debt is limited by the amount of
tax receipts during the previous year. The issuance of

‘GO bonds is coordinated by the Division of Debt

Management in the Treasurer’s Office. Oversight is
performed by the State Bond Commission composed
of the Governor, Treasurer, Attorney General, Comp-
troller, Commissioner of Public Works, Secretary of
Office of Policy Management and four members of
the state legislature. The Division of Debt Manage-
ment structures the bond sale, prepares the official
statement, reviews the documents and sells the bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: The only state agency that
issues revenue bonds is the Department of Trans-
portation, subject to approval by the Treasurer’s
Office. The issue is carried out by the Treasurer’s
Office and labeled a “special tax obligation bond;’

B payable from motor fuel taxes, motor vehicle receipts

and license permits and fees. All processes related to
the structuring, financing and sale of the bond are

carried out by the Division of Debt Management in
the Treasurer’s Office. The state is directly responsi-
ble for the debt. The DOT is responsible to the Treas-
urers’ Office and does not report to any special board
for bond issuance. :
Authority Revenue Bonds: Bond authorization is

. the responsibility of individual authorities, who also

structure and sell their bonds. The state recognizes
some contingent liability, but is not directly liable for
debt. The authorities that issue bonds are Housing
Finance Authority, Development Authority, Higher
Education and Supplemental Loan Authority, Re-

- source Recovery Authority and Southeastern Con-

necticut Water Authority. The issues are coordinat-
ed entirely by each authority and oversight. results
from the membership of either the Treasurer or
Secretary of Office of Policy Management on each
of the authority boards.

DELAWARE

GO Bonds: The legislature approves GO debt is-
sues; executive branch issues, structure and sell the
debt.

State Revenue Bonds: Delaware does not actively
issue any revenue bonds, either through regular de-
partments or state agencies.

. Authority Revenue Bonds: The executive branch-
(bond issuing officers made up of the Governor,
Treasurer, Secretary of State and Secretary of Fi-
nance) approves the capital plan of the issuing enti-
ty, the amount of the issue, type of bond structure

_ and prospectus of the bond issue. It then signs over

all other operations directly to the issuing authori-
ty. The authority coordinates the issuing process, ar-
ranges for bond counsel and credit ratings. Each
authority issues its own debt. There is no mandato-
ry reporting requirements on the part of the authori-
ty. The bonds of the authorities do not carry any le-
gal backing or guarantee by the state.

FLORIDA

GO Bonds: Voter approval is required for GO
bond issue. The Division of Bond Finance, governed
by the Governor-and other elected officials, is a cen-

* tralized debt management staff authorized to sell all

GO bonds of the state agencies and local govern-
ments. This division was established by the legisla-
ture and provides all fiscal, legal and marketing ser-
vices for the state agencies and local governments.
The State Board of Administration, another consti-
tutionally required office within the executive branch,
acts as trustee to the bond issues.

State Revenue Bonds: The same issuance proce-
dures apply to revenue bonds for the state. The leg-
islature approves these bonds: '

Authority Revenue Bonds: The Division of Bond
Finance is responsible for issuing the state’s express-
way authority bonds only. No other special authori-
ties report to the Division of Bond Finance. The oth-
er state authorities structure and issue their own

‘bonds.
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GEORGIA

GO Bonds: GO debt is limited by the amount of

revenue receipts in the previous year and must be ap-
proved by the legislature. The Governor must ap-
prove all capital plans. The process is carried out by
the State Finance and Investment Commission.

State Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds are not ac-
tively issued by Georgia. No state agency or depart-
ment issues revenuce bonds.

Authority Reverue Bonds: Authority debt backed
by direct guarantees by the state must be approved

by the legislature. The authorities are advised by =

the Financing and Investment Commission and the
bonds are issued in the name of the authority by the

Commission. Some authority bonds are not guaran-.

teed and considered “‘stand-alone” bonds. This sta-
tus is ultimately determined by the legislature.

HAWAII

" GO bonds: GO debt is limited by the size of general
fund revenues in the previous year and must be ap-
proved by the legislature. No voter approval is re-
quired. The bonds may be issued in an agency or
department’s name, but all bonds must be counter-
signed by the Director of Finance. The calculation
of debt capacity is centralized in the Department of
Finance. All processes related to the structuring,
ﬁnancing and sale of the GO bonds are centralized
in the Department of Finance.

State Revenue Bonds: The same process applies to
revenue bonds of the state. The only difference is that
the outstanding debt is limited only by the agency’s
ability to pay off the debt. All bond activity is cen-
tralized within the Department of Finance.

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities struc-

ture their own bond sales. The Director of Finance

arranges for the finance teams, including the bond

counsel, trustee and paying agent. The authorities
must get legislative approval for each issue and the
bonds must be countersigned by the Director of Fi-
nance. The authorities must report on a scheduled
basis to the Director of Finance, the legislature and

the Governor on their activity in the bond markets. -

-Again, the calculation of authority debt capacity is
the responsibility of the Department of Finance.

IDAHO

GO Bonds: Idaho does not actively issue GO
bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: State agencnes and depart-
ments do not issue revenue bonds.

Authority Revenue Bonds: All bonds are issued by
state authorities. The legislature approves each issue,

but each authority sets debt limits, structures and is-

sues its own bonds. There is no oversight or report-
ing requirements once the issue has been approved.

ILLINOIS

GO Bonds: All GO issues are authorized by the
legislature. The legislature, along with the Governor,

must also approve the associated capital plans. All

of the bond processes (including coordination of the
rating process, arrangements for bond counsel and
financial advisor), calculation of debt capacity and
record keeping is done by the Bureau of the Budget.

State Revenue Bonds: State revenue bonds are
reviewed and authorized by the Bond Commission
and issued though the Bureau of the Budget, Execu-
tive Office. Other revenue debt, labeled “certificates
of participation,’ issued by the State Department of
Central Management Services, are considered reve-
nue debt by the ratings agencies, but are considered

by the state to be “state lease payments,’ not subject =

to taxing authority of the state. Neither the state nor
its agencies directly issue moral obligation bonds.

Authority Revenue Bonds: Authority debt issuing
activities are not reviewed by the Commission, as
long as the debt carries no direct state obligation, and
are secured by the revenues of the issuing authority.
If an authority issues debt that requires backing by
the state, the state legislature must authorize a spe-
cial tax pledge to have direct liability for the debt.
Such a case is the request for debt issues on behalf
of the Chicago White Sox Stadium. Authorities often
carry their own debt liability with no guarantees by
the state. The authorities generally issue their own
bonds. '

INDIANA

GO Bonds: There is a constitutional prohibition
agamst the state issuing any debt in its own name. No
GO bonds are issued.

State Revenue Bonds: The constitutional prohxbn-
tion applies to revenue debt also. No state agency has
the power to issue debt of any type.

Authority Revenue Bonds: There are eight to 10

" authorities that issue debt. These were created in the
-mid 1970’s. An elected official serves on every board

and the authorities are created by the legislature. The

" bonds carry no liability of the state and do not re-

quire legislative approve for issuance, Each authori-
ty structures and issues its own bonds. There are a
few cases in which authorities are subject to a debt
limit, such as the Bond Bank, but thxs is not the
general rule.

IOWA

GO Bonds: lowa does not acﬁvely issue GO bonds.
.State Revenue Bonds: The Department of Educa-
tion issues revenue bonds in its own name. The bonds

are authorized by the legislature and the capital plans

are also approved by the legislature. The Department-

~ of Education coordinates the credit rating process

and all other bond activities. The Department of
Education, along with the Treasurer’s Office, collects
information and maintains all debt information.
Once the agency has received bond authorization, it
calculates and monitors its own debt capacity.
Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities coor-
dinate and oversee all activity related to the issuance
of bonds. Once the authorities have been established
by the legislature, the authorities act independently
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excluding limited oversight by the Treasurer’s Office.
The Treasurer’s Office provides staff assistance for
the issuance of the bonds and collects information
on the bond activities. The authorities report to ap-
pointed boards, which approve all capnal plans for
the authormes

KANSAS

‘GO Bonds: Kansas does not actively issue GO
debt. , .

State Revenue Bonds: All revenue issues require the
approval of the legislature. The actual structuring
and issuance is carried out by the Development Fi-
nance Authority (DFA). This authority reports
directly to the Governor and has a board of appoint-
ed members to oversee its activities. The DFA serves
as a central office that maintains information con-
cerning the bonds of the state.

Authority Revenue Bonds: All authority bonds fall
under the oversight of the DFA. The authority car-

- ries out all activities related to the issue once legisla-

tive approval has been received. Again, the DFA has

all information regarding the debt and the state bond

activities.

KENTUCKY

GO Bonds: Kentucky does not actively issue GO
bonds.
State Revenue Bonds: The State Property and Build-

- ing Commission finances projects with revenue bonds,
authorized by the state legislature. The Office of In-_
vestment and Debt Management (OIDM) issues

these bonds and oversees the issues.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The state has several
authorities authorized by the legislature to issue rev-
enue bonds. These include the Higher Education
Commission, the Housing Corporation and the In-
frastructure Agency. The OIDM issues the bonds in
the name of the authority. All activities concerning
the bond are carried out by the OIDM. Each authori-
ty is headed by a board that initiates the debt issu-
ing process by formally identifying the need for bond

funds. The OIDM has the legislative authority to -

evaluate each revenue project and act as a liaison be-
tween the general assembly and the requesting agent.

The OIDM reports monthly to the State Investment -

Commission concerning bond issues.
LOUISIANA

GO Bonds: All GO bonds are approved by the leg-
islature and structured and issued by the Bond Com-
mission in the name of the state.

State Revenue Bonds: No revenue bonds are issued
directly in the name of the state.

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities al-
lowed to issue revenue bonds coordinate-their financ-
ings through their own staff and outside consultants,
but the Bond Commission approves all state issues

including the terms, conditions of the proposal and
the price and interest rates.

MAINE

GO Bonds: The issuance of GO bonds for the state
is centralized within the Treasury Department. After
legislative approval and a vote by the public (required
to exceed a constitutional limit on outstanding debt),
the Treasury oversees the bond activity for the state.
The Treasurer’s Office structures, issues and moni-

“tors the bond issues for the state agencies.

State Revenue Bonds: The state of Maine does not
dlrectly issue revenue bonds. _ .

_Authority Revenue Bonds: State authormes are
completely separate from oversight by the Treasury
Department. The State Treasurer serves as ex-officio
officer on all authority boards, but has no special
control. The Governor appoints authority board
members and the legislature sets outstanding debt
limits for the authorities. The authorities are not re-
quired to report any other information and face no
bond registration requirements. .

MARYLAND

GO Bonds: GO bond issues must have associated
capital plans approved by the legislature and the
Governor. The legislature authorizes each GO bond
issue and all functions related to GO debt issuance
are carried out by the Treasurer’s Office.

State Revenue Bonds: State agencies and depart-

ments do not directly issue revenue bonds.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The specific authori-
ty board authorizes the bond issue and approves the
capital plan. The authority carries out all functions
related to the debt sale and acts independently once

. its board has approved the issue. There is no central

state office that oversees bond issuing activity-or col-
lects information concerning bond activity.

MASSACHUSETTS

GO Bonds: Most of the debt issued in the name
of the state and its agencies is in the form of GO
bonds. Currently, the state has about $6 billion out-
standing GO debt. The Administration and Finance
department in the executive branch oversees these is-
sues. Legally, all debt issues must be initiated through
the Office of the Treasurer. The GO bonds do not re-
quire a vote of the people, but must be approved by
the legislature.

State Revenue Bonds: The Secretary of the Admin-
istration and Finance Department sets a volume cap
for these debt issues, which are sold by the agencies
and departments themselves.

Authority Revenue Bonds: There are a large num-
ber of bonds issued by state authorities. The authori-
ties are established by the legislature and the volume
caps are set by the Secretary of Administration and
Finance (executive branch). The state does not guar-
antee these bonds or have any moral obligation for
them. There is currently about $15 billion of this debt

* outstanding. The Treasurer serves as ex-officio on
" each of the authority governing boards. (There are

several “fringe” authorities of the state such as the
Massachusetts Transit Authority that issue revenue
bonds. These authorities act as independent issuers

r 38X



but are considered “creatures of the state” The state
carries a liability for these bonds if the authority rev-
enue streams do not cover debt service.)

MICHIGAN

- GO Bonds: Both the electorate and the legislature
must vote to issue GO bonds, which are sold through
executive branch offices.

State Revenue Bonds: The Admlmstranve Board
~ reviews all revenue bonds issues proposed by state

. agencies. The Transportation Division is one of few
state agencies that issues revenue bonds.

Authority Revenue Bonds: Most authorities have
their own boards to which they are responsible. Some
must be reviewed by the State Administrative Board,
- while others report directly to state agencies such as
the Department of Commerce.

MINNESOTA

GO Bonds:'The Commissioner of Finance of the
Revenue and Finance Departnient oversees the issu-
ance of all GO bonds of the state. The legislature
must approve each issue. The Commissioner of Fi-
nance, appointed by the Governor, executes all activi-
ties related to bond issuance as directed by the Ex-
ecutive Office. This office only issues GO bonds.

" State Revenue Bonds: The state of Minrniesota does
not directly issue any revenue bonds.

Authority Revenue Bonds: All revenue bonds are
issued by “special bonding agencies’’ These authori-
ties are not under the supervision of the Commission
of Finance and act as separate entities, handling all
aspects of their bond issues. The legislature establish-
es debt limits for these agencies, but has no control
over how the issues will be structured and managed.

MISSISSIPPI

GO Bonds: The Bond Division handles all GO
bond issues for the state. The legislature sets out-
standing debt limits for the GO bonds, based on a
state constitutional restriction of debt based on a re-
cent history of revenue collection. The Bond Divi-
sion maintains all records on the GO issues. Each
agency request is reviewed on a case-by-case basis by
the State Bond Commission, chaired by the Gover-
nor. Once the bonds are structured and issued, the
State Bond Attorney, appointed by the Governor,
must validate the sale. -

State Revenue Bonds: The same procedures apply
to the sale of state revenue bonds. :

Authority Revenue Bonds: Each authority must go

before the State Bond Commission for issue review
and must report to the legislature annually after the
issue is sold. Again, the State Bond Attorney must

validate the issue before it can be sold. There areno

~ formal reporting procedures for the authorities or
- bond counsel.

MISSOURI

- GO Bonds: All GO bonds are issued by the Board
of Fund Commissioners, made up of the Governor,

Attorney General, Treasurer, State Auditor and Com-

missioner of Administration. The state constitution
places a dollar limit on all outstanding GO bonds,
but the limit may be exceeded by referendum. The

. legislature also approves each issue. The Board of

Fund Commissioners maintains all information and
records concerning the GO bonds of the state.
State Revenue Bonds: State revenue bonds must be
legislatively approved and are issued by the Gover-
nor, Lieutenant Governor and Attorney General. The
legislature sets outstanding debt limits for the reve-
nue bonds. These bonds are issued primarily for state
building funds and correction facilities. The Division
of Accounting collects information on the bond ac-
tivity for an annual report; no other office maintains
information on the bonds.
- Authority Revenue Bonds: Members of the gov-
erning boards of the authorities are appointed by the
Governor. These boards have authority to approve
each issue with no debt limits. Each of the authori-
ties structure, issue and carry out all phases of the

- bonding process, with oversight of their board. Again,

the Division of Accounting collects yearly informa-
tion about the bond activity of the authorities for its
fiscal reports, but this is not a legal requirement. No
other office has information about the authority
bonds.

MONTANA

GO Bonds: All GO bonds are authorized by the
legislature. The bonds are issued by the state agen-
cy, along with the Board of Examiners, which coor-
dinates the rating process. The Department of Ad-
ministration collects information on the state debt
activity. The agency receiving authorization calcu-
lates and monitors the debt capacity and approves
the capital plans once the legislature has established:
adollar amount. There is no constitutional limit for
the issuance of GO bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: The same process applies to
revenue bonds issued in the name of the state.

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities act
independently once the legislature has given them

. .bonding authority. All processes related to the issu-

ance of bonds are carried out by the authorities. The
capital plans are approved by the governing board,
made up of members appointed by the Governor. No
central office of the state oversees the authorities or
collects information on their activities.

NEBRASKA

GO Bonds: The state does not actively issue GO
bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds are lssued
.for the Highway Department. The Highway Revenue
Commission oversees the process, chaired by the
Governor and Deputy of Roads. The Treasurer’s
Office serves as paying agent and trustee for the
bonds. The legislature must approve each issue.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The only authority that
issues bonds is the Nebraska Investment Finance
Authority. These bonds are not backed by the state
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and there is no reporting mechanism to the state. All
aspects of the bond issue are handled directly by the

" authority.

'NEVADA »
GO Bonds: The constitution limits GO bonds ac-.

cording to the assessed valuation of property in the
state subject to taxation, In practice, these issues re-
quire voter approval. The oversight of the bonding
process is carried out by the Department of Adminis-
tration Division, an executive office.

State Revenue Bonds: All revenue bonds require
legislative approval, setting a limit for outstanding

- debt. The Department of Administration also car-

ries out the bonding process, including structunng,
issuance and record keeping. :

Authority Revenue Bonds: The state does not cur-
rently have authorities issuing revenue bonds.

NEW HAMPSHIRE

GO Bonds: All GO bonds are approved by the leg-
islature and issued by the Treasurer’s Office. This
office handles all aspects of the bond process, but
each issue must be approved by the Governor.

State Revenue Bonds: The Treasurer’s Office issues
state revenue bonds, used primarily for the turnpike
system. Again, each issue must be approved by the
Governor. _

Authonty Revenue Bonds: Threeentities have the. -

power to issue debt. The Bond Bank, the Higher
Education and Health Authority and the Housing
Finance Authority issue bonds independently. The
Bond Bank and Housing Finance Authority do not
require formal approval for any of their issues. They
structure and issue all bonds in their own name and

“they do not carry any liability of the state. The Higher
Education and Health Authority requires approval -

of the Governor for each issue, but structures and
sells its own bonds. The Housing Finance Authori-
ty has a legislative limit on the amount of s out-

standing debt, but the other two authorities have no -

limits.

NEW JERSEY

VRS

'-&' —

GO Bonds: GO hnndame coasumuonally limit-

ed relative to the size of annual appropriations, but
the limit may be exceeded by referendum. The Treas-
urer’s Office reviews all GO bonds and handles the

* sale of debt. The Office of Financial Management

maintains records and information of all bond sales.
_State Revenue Bonds: The Treasurer’s Office
reviews and approves revenue bonds issued by state
agencies. The Office of Financial Management over-
sees the structuring of the bonds and the Treasurer’s
Office sells the debt. The state is now using certifi-
cates of participation more frequently, which do not
require legislative approval or review. The Office of
Financial Management maintains records and infor-
mation of all bond sales. _
Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities struc-
ture and issue their own bonds. There is no legisla-
tive approval required and no debt limit established

by the legislature for these authorities. The bonds -
carry no formal state backing.

NEW YORK
GO Bonds: GO bonds are authorized by state

. voters. The legislature must review and approve capi-
* tal plans on a case-by-case basis. The Office of the

Comptroller in the Division of Investment and Cash
Management handles all processes related tc the is-
suance of GO bonds. ,

State Revenue Bonds: New York does not currently

. issue revenue bonds directly. Lease-purchase debt is-

sued by state agencies is not considered by the state
to be “revenue debt’’

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities or
“Public Benefit Corporanons" operate on an in-
dependent basis with respect to issuing their bonds.
All aspects of the bonding process are handled direct-
ly by the authorities. Some authority revenue bonds .
are formally guaranteed by the state. Some are lease-
purchase service contracts. Initial authorization is set
by the legislature, as to dollar amounts ghd project.
Many authorities, but not all, are required to report
to the Public Authority Control Board regarding is-
suing activity and roll®ver requests.

NEW MEXICO =3

GO Bonds: The Board of Financereviews and is-
sues all GO bonds. These are backed by full faith and
credit of the state. GO authorization is by the elec-

- torate and review of capital plans by the executive
- branch and the legislature is required.

State Revenue Bonds: The Board of Finance also
reviews, approves and issues revenue bonds secured
by severance nding set by the legislature. These
carry full backiiag by the state. -

Authority Revenue Bonds: Housing, student loan,
mortgage finance and education finance revenue
bonds are not subject to “continuous review” by the

“" _ Board. Borrowing requests, howeverillust be pre-

sented for Board review and approval. Once the bond

- -issues are approved with regard to project, the au-

+. thority issues its own bonds andggersees the process.
“These bonds do not carry the fo¥Pfaith and credit of
the state. -~ -

-NORTH CAROLINA

GO Bonds: All GO debt is subject to approval by
the Treasurer’s Office. The legislature sets ceilings for
outstanding debt, within constitutional limits. The
executive branch, Department of Treasury, autho-
rizes the bond issue, coordinates the credit rating
process, issues the bonds and n¥kintains all records
regarding the bond process. The capital plans are also
approved by the executive branch,

State Revenue Bonds: Each issue must be approved
by the Treasurer’s Office. The Treasurer serves as
financial advisor, helps with the official statement
and collects information about the debt issues. Each
state agency can issue its own debt (i.e. arrange for
bond counsel and credit ratings), but most rely on the
Treasurer for these services. The legislature deter-
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mines the debt limits and monitors debt activity. The
Treasurer approves each capltal plan for the issuing

entity.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The Treasurer’s Office
authorizes specific issues, serves as financial advisory
to all of the authorities and issues the debt. The
_ Treasurer approves the capital plan of the issuing en-
tity in accordance with the legislative limits set for
each authority.

NORTH DAKOTA

GO Bonds. The state does not actwely issue GOV

bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: Revenue bond issues are ap-
proved by the legislature, then the agencies structure
and issue their own bonds. There is a legislative lim-
it on total outstanding debt, but no centralized over-
sight of the bonds once they are approved.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The State Building
Authority structures and issues its own bonds, sub-
ject to approval by the legislature. The state has
switched to using the Authority in the last six years
in an effort to circumvent the state debt limits. The
authority bonds do not count in the total debt lim-
its set by the legislature. There is no centralized re-
- view of the bonds or collection of information on the
. bond activity.

OHIO

-GO Bonds: GO bond issues are authorized by
referendum. They are issued and reviewed by the
Commissioners of Sinking Funds, including the
Governor, Attorney General, State Audltor and State
Treasurer.

State Revenue Bonds: There is no review of reve- -
nue bonds issued by state agencies. Each agency

structures, issues and coordinates all aspects of its
revenue bond issues. There is a debt limit set by the
legislature, but the agency does not require approval
of each issue by the legislature.

Authority Revenue Bonds: There is no formal re-

view of bonds issued by state authorities. They act
as separate entities, structuring and issuing their own
bonds. An elected official on the board has the power
to approve the issue, as long as it meets the debt limits
set by the legislature.

OKLAHOMA

- GO Bonds: All GO bonds require authorization
by the electorate. The Treasurer’s Office oversees the
process, maintains all records and serves as paying
agent and trustee.

State Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds are not is-

sued directly by state agencies or departments.
Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities act in-
dependently with respect to bond activity. Each
authority is overseen by its own directing board
which approves all capital plans and debt issues. The
authorities handle all aspects of the bonding process
including structuring the issue, arranging for bond
counsel and rating agencies and selling the bonds.

OREGON

GO Bonds: GO debt is limited by constitutional
restrictions and must be approved by referendum. All
GO bonds issued by the state are reviewed, approved
and issued by the Treasury Department’s Office of
Debt Management (ODM).

State Revenue Bonds: The State Treasurer ap-
proves the capital plans and authorizes all state reve-
nue bonds. Legal debt limits are set biannually by the
state legislature. The ODM coordinates the issuing
process, arranges for bond counsel, credit ratings, etc.
and issues the bonds. It also collects and maintains
a data base on all state bond issues and monitors all

_ debt limits.

Authority - Revenue Bonds: The only remaining
authority, the Mass Transportation Authority, issues
debt through the ODM. The Treasurer approves all
capital plans and authorizes all revenue bond issues.

PENNSYLVAN_IA .
GO Bonds: GO debt must be approved by the

“voters. Review and approval of GO debt is carried out

by the Governor’s Office, the Auditor General and

- the State Treasurer. The legislature establlshes debt

limits.

State Revenue Bonds: No revenue debt is issued by
state agencies or departments.

Authority Revenue Bonds: There is no direct over-
sight of bond issuance by state authorities. Except
for the Housing Authority, there is no state obliga-

~ tion for this debt. Each authority has its own board

which approves and oversees issues. A measure of
oversight is provided by the State Treasurer, who sits
on the board of each issuing authority.

RHODE ISLAND

GO Bonds: Voters must approve all GO debt. All
GO issues are handled directly by the Treasurer’s Of-
fice, which structures and sells the debt, and main-
tains all records on GO debt.

State Revenue Bonds: Rhode Island only uses rev-

. enue bonds on occasion to refund GO bonds. The

Treasurer’s Office authorizes this debt and handles
all aspects of its sale. -

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities au-
thorize and issue their own bonds. Some of the bonds
carry the state’s moral or legal obligation. The au-
thority is not required to get legislative approve for
their issues once the original borrowing authority has -
been established by the legislature. Bond issues and
capital plans are approved by the board of each au-
thority. Authorities must report all public finance ac-
tivity (bonds, lease purchase agreements, etc.) to the
Public Finance Management Board.

SOUTH CAROLINA

GO Bonds: GO bonds primarily go to service capi-
tal improvements for the state. The Treasurer’s Office
oversees the structuring of the bonds, sells the bonds
and serves as paying agent. The legislature sets an an-
nual debt service payment limit and the bonds must
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meet these restrictions. The Treasurer’s Office must
appear before the Central State Budget and Control

‘Board for approval of each issue. The Board is made

up of the Governor, two executive branch ofﬁcnals
and two members of the legislature. .-

State Revenue Bonds: The same procedures apply
for any revenue bonds issued directly by the state.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The Treasurer serves as
trustee and paying agent for the bonds of the Hous-
ing Authority, although the authority structures its
own issues. The Control Board must approve any is-

“sue of the Housing Authority. Issues of the other ma-

jor authority, the JETA, must also be approved by
the Control Board. Bonds of these two authorities

.carry no formal state backing. There is no manda-

tory reporting mechanism for information concern-
ing bond activity.

SOUTH DAKOTA

GO Bonds: The state does not currently issue GO

bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: The state does not current-
ly issue state revenue bonds.

Authority Revenue Bonds: All state authorities
structure and issue their own debt, with the excep-
tion of the Building Authority, which requires legis-
lative approval of each issue. Members of authority
governing boards, appointed by the Governor, over-
see the authorities, but most of the decision are made
by the respective executive directors. The Fiscal Ad-
ministration maintain some records on the bond ac-
tivity of authorities, but there is no legal reporting
requirement. The debt of the authorities is not con-
sidered debt of the state. The state acknowledges no
moral obligation or formal liability of any kind for
these authority bonds.

‘TENNESSEE

GO Bonds: The legislature authorizes GO bond is-
sues with no voter approval. The Bond Finance Of-
fice serves as staff for the GO bond issues, structur-
ing the bonds, coordinating the bond process and ar-
ranging for bond counsel. The bonds are issued and
approved by the State Funding Board (legislative
branch). All information on the bonds are maintain-
ed by the Bond Finance Office (legislative branch).

State Revenue Bonds: No revenue bonds are issued
directly by state agencies or departments.

Authority Revenue Bonds: All revenue debt is is-
sued by the Local Development, School Board or

Housing Authorities. These authorities cannot issue

bonds without the State Funding Board’s (legislative
branch) approval. The legislature sets bond authori-
zation for specific purposes and the authorities must

adhere to these limits. The Bond Finance Office (leg- -

islative branch) serves as staff for the issuance of the
bonds, coordinating all phases of the bonding process.
TEXAS

GO Bonds: All GO bonds must be approved by the
voters. These bonds are issued by the Bond Finance

Office with approval of the Bond Review Board com-

posed of the Governor, Lieutenant Govemor. Speak-

. er of the House, Comptroller and Treasurer.

) State Revenue Bonds: State revenue bonds may be
issued only with the Board’s approval. State agencies

_must also obtain the Bond Review Board’s approval

prior to entering into lease purchase agreements over

$250,000 or five years. The Board reviews the struc-

ture, the use and provision, content of official state-
ments, timing of the issues and costs associated with
the issue. '

Authority Revenue Bonds: Authorities approve,
structure and sell their own issues if these bonds do
not involve state liability.

UTAH
" GO Bonds: All GO bond:s are issued by the Treas-

ury Department after approval by the legisiature. No

voter approval is necessary, but constitutional restric-
tions limit the amount of GO debt that may be out-
standing. The Treasury Office maintains all records
and information related to GO bonds.

State Revenue Bonds: The same procedures apply
to revenue bonds issued directly by state agencies or

. departments.

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities have
a large degree of independence. The outstanding debt
is not limited by the state and the législature does not
approve the issues once the authorities have been leg-

~ islatively established. Authority boards are usually

chaired by the Treasurer. These boards approve the
capital plans and bond issues for the authorities. The
authorities handle all aspects related to the bond is-
sue, including structuring the debt, selecting bond
counsel, etc. No central office is responsible for
maintaining records on the activities of authorities

~ and there are no formal reporting requirements

regarding bond issues.

VERMONT

GO Bonds: All GO bonds are handled by the Trea-
surer’s Office. These issues require legislative ap-
proval only. The Treasurer’s Office oversees all
aspects of GO issues, including structuring, selection

--of bond counsel, record keeping and sale.

State Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds are not cur-
rently being issued by state departments or agencies.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The Treasurer serves as
an ex-officio member on each of the authority boards.
No legislative approval of the capital plans or the is-
sues is required. Each board approves the issue and
sets the debt capacity of the authority. Once estab-
lished by the legislature, all bond activity is indepen-
dent from direct oversight by any state office. There
is no reporting mechanism required for information
on borrowing.

VIRGINIA

GO Bonds: Voter approval is required for each GO
bond issue. The Office of Debt Management per-
forms all duties related to the bond issue including
structuring the sale, ammgmg for bond counsel and
ratings, etc.
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" State Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds sold by state
agencies are reviewed by the Treasury Board. The
Debt Management staff performs all duties related
to the bond issue.

Authority Revenue Bonds: The Treasury Board
approves the terms and structure of revenue bonds
issued by authorities only if the authority receives

general fund appropriations. The Division of Debt

Management of the Treasurer’s Office performs staff
services for several of the state authorities whose
bonds are reviewed by the Board. If the authority.
does not receive general revenue appropnauons, there
is no review process.

WASHING’ION

GO Bonds: The Finance Commission, a division
of the Treasurer’s Office, carries out all GO bond-
ing activities for universities, state buildings, pollu-
tion control, étc. Voters approve individual issues
with dollar limits set by the legislature. The Finance
Commission is responsible for issuing the bonds.
This office maintains all information on GO bond
activity of the state. The Commission is headed by
the Governor, Lieutenant Governor and Treasurer.
. State Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds are not cur-
rently issued by state departments or agencies.

Authority Revenue Bonds: State authorities issue
their own bonds independently. There is no legisla-
tive approval required for these issues. The board of
each authority makes all decisions regarding bond is-
sues. The Governor, Lieutenant Governor and Treas-
urer serve on most of the boards. The Treasurer’s Of-
. fice collects information on the authorities’ activi-

ties on a semiannual basis. .

WEST VIRGINIA

GO Bonds: All GO bonds are approved by the eiec- »

torate. The state legislature sets legal limits for debt
‘capacity. The Municipal Bond Commission, made
up of seven members who are appointed by the
Governor, provides the technical assistance for all
debt issues.

State Revenue Bonds: When a state agency requests
bond funding, the Municipal Bond Commission pro-
vides technical assistance for the issues. Again, the

legislature sets the limits and provides each agency
with the authority to issue bonds and approves the
capital plans. The Commission also gathers informa-
tion regarding all bond issues and mamtams records
on behalf of the state agencies. :

Authority Revenue Bonds: The leglslature sets
debt capacity for any state authority that issues
bonds. The legislature also approves the original cap-
ital plan of the issuing authority. All issuing activi-
ties, including bond structuring, bond counsel, credit
relations, etc., are carried out by the authority. There
is no on-going reporting mechanism for information
about the activities of state authorities.

WISCONSIN

GO Bonds: The legislature must authorize the
bond issues and approve all capital plans. The legis-
lature sets outstanding debt limits for the GO bonds.
The Department of Administration, Division of
Capital Finance, serves as staff for each issue. The
Capital Finance Office handles all aspects of the
bond issue including structuring and issuing the
bonds. This office also maintains all records regard-
ing the state GO debt. _

State Revenue Bonds: The same procedures apply
to any revenue bonds issued by the state or its
agencies.

Authority Revenue Bonds: Once the authorities re-
ceive their bonding authority from the législature, all
aspects of the bond issue are carried out by the au-

thority independent of direct oversight by the state..

The authority boards must submit a program report
to the State Building Commission annually. Authori-

ties report all bond amvmes to the legxslamre an-

nually =

WYOMING

GO Bonds: The state does not actively issue GO
bonds. ,

State Revenue Bonds: The only revenue bonds that
are issued are private activity bonds. All phases of

the bond issue are carried out by the Governor’s v

Office.
Authority Revenue Bonds: Authorities structure
and sell their own debt.
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